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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting of the Members of ABM KNOWLEDGEWARE LIMITED will be
held on Wednesday, the 9" day of August, 2023 at 11.00 a.m. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means
(“OAVM"), to transact the following business:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including Audited Consolidated Financial Statements)
forthe Financial Year ended 31 March, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To declare Final Dividend of ¥1.25/- per equity share of ¥5/- each forthe Financial Yearended 31*March, 2023.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Supriya P. Rane (DIN: 00152890), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
herself for re-appointment.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass, the following resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and Schedule IV and other applicable
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), and the Rules made thereunder, and the applicable provisions of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”) [including any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force], and based on
the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company,
approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Mr. Devendra Kamlakar Parulekar
(DIN: 06705320) as an Independent Director of the Company and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the
criteria for Independence under section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and is eligible
for re-appointment under the provisions of the Act, the Rules made thereunder and the Listing Regulations, and in respect
of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under section 160 (1) of the Act proposing the candidature for the
office of an Independent Director, as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second
term of five (5) consecutive years commencing from 10"August, 2023 to 09" August, 2028.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorized to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and / or, expedient in
connection therewith orincidental thereto, to give effectto the foregoing resolution.”

To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass, the following resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of resolution passed by the Members of the Company in their 27" Annual
General Meeting held on 04" September, 2020 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197 and 198 read with
Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (‘the Act') (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) and applicable provisions, if any, of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Articles of the Association of the Company, subject to
such other consents and approvals as may be required and based on the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded that the remuneration
as approved by the Members of the Company in their 27" Annual General Meeting held on 4" September, 2020 and by the
Board of Directors from time to time, be continued to be paid to Mr. Prakash B. Rane (DIN:00152393), Managing Director
w.e.f. 1% April, 2023 for the remaining period of his tenure ending on March 31 2025, and as detailed in the Explanatory
Statement annexed hereto with the liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the said terms and conditions of
remuneration, subject to the limits and conditions specified under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory
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modification(s) or re-enactment(s) there of.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any of the 2 (two) Financial Years
commencing from Financial Year 2023-2024, the remuneration as approved by the Members of the Company in their
27" Annual General Meeting held on 4" September, 2020 and by the Board of Directors from time to time, be paid to
Mr. Prakash B Rane, Managing Director, as minimum remuneration, as detailed in the Explanatory Statement hereto,
without any further reference to the Members of the Company in the General Meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHAT the above remuneration shall be subject to modification, as may be deemed fit by the Board
from time to time and subject to the limits and stipulations prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V
thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHAT except for the aforesaid revision in salary, all other terms and conditions of his appointment
as Managing Director of the Company, as approved by the resolution passed at the 27" Annual General Meeting held on
04" September, 2020 shall remain unchanged.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, to
enter into such agreement(s), deed(s) of amendment(s) or any such document(s), as the Board may, in its absolute
discretion, consider necessary, expedient or desirable including power to sub-delegate, in order to give effect to this
resolution."

NOTES:

1.

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Special Business, i.e. ltem No.
4 and 5, tobe transacted at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) is annexed hereto.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its General Circular Nos.20/2020 dated 5" May, 2020 read with General
Circulars Nos. 14/2020 dated 8" April, 2020, 17/2020 dated 13" April, 2020, 02/2021 dated 13" January, 2021, 19/2021
dated 8" December, 2021, 21/2021 dated 14™ December, 2021 and 10/2022 dated 28" December, 2022 (‘MCA
Circulars’), has allowed the Companies to conduct the AGM through Video Conferencing or Other Audio-Visual Means
(‘VC/OAVM) ill 30" September, 2023. In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Actand said MCA circulars, the
30"AGM of the Company shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the
Registered Office of the Company.

The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking re-appointment and of Managing Director for fixing his
remuneration at this AGM is also annexed to this Notice. Requisite declarations have been received from the Directors
seeking re-appointment. The Managing Director and Independent Directors of the Company are not eligible to retire by
rotation.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (as amended) and applicable Circulars, the
Company is pleased to provide the facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at
the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a
Member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue of voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. The
instructions for participation by Members are given in the subsequent paragraphs.

Pursuant to the provisions of the act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his / her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Pursuant to the Circular No.
14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, as the AGM will be conducted through VC /
OAVM, the facility for appointment of proxy by the member is not available for the AGM and hence the Proxy form,
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized
representatives to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC / OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the
AGM through VC / OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include
large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of
firstcomefirst served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/ list of Beneficial Owners as on Wednesday, 02™ August,
2023, being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. The voting right of Members
shallbe in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date. A personwho
isnota Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice of AGM for information purpose only.

The Notice of 30"AGM alongwith Annual Report for the Financial Year 2022-23 is available on the website of the Company
at www.abmindia.com, onthe website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website

of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

The Company has fixed Wednesday, 02" August, 2023 as the ‘Record Date’ for determining entitlement of members to
Final Dividend for the Financial Year ended March 31,2023, if approved at the AGM.

Ifthe final dividend, as recommended by the Board of Directors, is approved at the AGM, payment of such dividend subject
to deduction of tax at source will be made on or before Thursday, 07" September, 2023 as under:

i. Toall Beneficial Owners in respect of shares held in dematerialized form as per the data as may be made available by
the National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”),
collectively “Depositories”, as of end of day on Wednesday, 02" August, 2023;

ii. To all Members in respect of shares held in physical form after giving effect to valid transmission or transposition
requests lodged with the Company as of the close of business hours on Wednesday, 02™ August, 2023.

Members holding shares in demat form are hereby informed that bank particulars registered with their respective DPs,
with whom they maintain their demat accounts, will be used by the Company for the payment of dividend. Members
holding shares in demat form are requested to intimate any change in their address and / or bank mandate to their DPs
only, as the Company orits Registrar and Share Transfer Agent cannot act on any request received directly on the same.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate any change of address and / or bank mandate to
M/s. Universal Capital Securities Private Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company by sending a
request in Form ISR-1 or by email to info @ unisec.in from their registered email id. In case the Company is unable to pay
the dividend to any Member by the electronic mode, due to non-availability of bank mandate, the Company shall dispatch
the dividend warrantto such Member by postin due course.

Members may note that the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended by the Finance Act, 2020, mandates that Dividend paid or
distributed by a Company after 1* April, 2020 shall be taxable in the hands of the Shareholders. The Company shall
therefore be required to deduct Tax at Source (TDS) at the time of making the final dividend. In order to enable us to
determine the appropriate TDS rate as applicable, Members are requested to submit the documents in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Act and rules thereto.

a. For Resident Members: TDS shall be made under Section 194 of the Income Tax Act at 10% on the amount of
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Dividend declared and paid by the Company during Financial year 2023-2024, provided PAN is registered / updated
by the Member. If PAN is not registered/updated, then TDS would be deducted @ 20% as per Section 206AA of the
Income Tax Act.

i. However, no tax shall be deducted on the Dividend payable to a resident Individual if the total dividend to be
received by them during Financial Year 2023-2024 does not exceed ¥5,000. Please note that this includes the
future dividends if any which may be declared by the Board in the Financial Year 2023-2024.

ii. Separately, in cases where the Member provides Form 15G (applicable to any person other than a Company or a
Firm or HUF) / Form 15H (applicable to an Individual above the age of 60 years), provided that the eligibility
conditions are being met, no TDS shall be deducted.

In case of Resident Member having Order under Section 197 of the Income Tax Act, TDS will be deducted at the
rate mentioned in the Order provided the Member submits a copy of the Order obtained from the Income-Tax
authorities.

For Non-resident Members: Taxes are required to be withheld in accordance with the provisions of Section 195 of
the Income Tax Act at the rates in force. As per the relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, the withholding tax shall
be at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) on the amount of Dividend payable to them. However, as
per Section 90 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the non-resident member has the option to be governed by the provisions
of the Double Tax Avoidance Agreement (DTAA) between India and the country of tax residence of the Member, if they
are more beneficial to them. For this purpose, i.e.to avail the Tax Treaty benefits, the non-resident Member will have
to provide the following:

* Self-attested copy of Tax Residency Certificate (TRC) obtained from the tax authorities of the country of which the
shareholderis resident.

* Self-declarationin Form 10F if all the details required in this form are not mentionedinthe TRC.
* Self-attested copy of the Permanent Account Number (PAN Card) allotted by the Indian Income Tax authorities.
» Self- Declaration certifying the following points:

i. Member is and will continue to remain a tax resident of the country of its residence during the Financial Year
2023-2024;

ii. Memberis eligible to claim the beneficial DTAA rate for the purposes of tax withholding on dividend declared by
the Company;

ii. Memberhasnoreasontobelieve thatits claim for the benefits of the DTAA is impaired in any manner;

iv. Member is the ultimate beneficial owner of its shareholding in the Company and Dividend receivable from the
Company;and

v. Member does not have a taxable presence or a permanent establishment in India during the Financial Year
2023-2024.

15. Please note thatthe Company is not obligated to apply the beneficial DTAA rates at the time of tax deduction / withholding

16.

17.

on dividend amounts. Application of beneficial DTAA Rate shall depend upon the completeness and satisfactory review
by the Company, of the documents submitted by Non-Resident shareholder.

Accordingly, in order to enable us to determine the appropriate TDS / withholding tax rate applicable, we request you to
provide these details and documents as mentioned above on or before Thursday, 10" August, 2023.

Notwithstanding the above, in case PAN falls under the category of ‘Specified Person’, Member is mandatorily required to
submit a declaration providing status of Permanent Establishment in India for Financial Year 2023-24. As per Section
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

206AB of the Income Tax Act, if the said declaration is not furnished, the Company shall deduct tax at source at twice the
applicable rate referred above.

Kindly note that the aforementioned documents are required to be submitted to our RTA at abmtds @unisec.in or the

Company’s mail id at cs @abmindia.com on or before Thursday, 10" August , 2023 in order to enable the Company to

determine and deduct appropriate TDS / withholding tax rate. No communication on the tax determination / deduction
shall be entertained post Thursday, 10" August , 2023. It may be further noted that in case the tax on said dividend is
deducted at a higher rate in absence of receipt of the aforementioned details / documents, there would still be an option
available to the member tofile the return ofincome and claim an appropriate refund, if eligible.

In accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, TDS certificates can be made available to the Members at their
registered e-mail ID afterfiling of the quarterly TDS Returns of the Company, post payment of the said dividend.

The Company will send a separate e-mail communication the Members to inform regarding the relevant procedure to be
adopted by the Members to avail the applicable tax rate as per Income Tax Act.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, 03" August, 2023
to Wednesday, 09" August, 2023. (both daysinclusive).

In accordance with the General Circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, the Notice of 30" AGM along with Annual Report
2022-2023 is being sent by electronic mode to Members whose e-mail address is registered with the Company or the
Depository Participant(s). Physical copy of the Notice of 30" AGM along with Annual Report for the Financial Year
2022-2023 shall be sentto those Members who request for the same.

Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not updated their email addresses with the Company are
requested to update their email addresses by writing to the Company or Registrar along with the copy of the signed
request letter mentioning the name and address of the Member, self-attested copy of the PAN card, and self-attested copy
of any document (eg.: Driving License, Election Identity Card, Passport) in support of the address of the Member.
Members holding shares in dematerialized(demat) mode are requested to register/ update their email addresses with the
relevant Depository Participants. In case of any queries/ difficulties in registering the e-mail address, Members may write
to cs @abmindia.com.

SEBI vide its Circular dated 3" November, 2021 and subsequent notifications, has mandated registration of PAN, KYC
details and Nomination / Opt-out of Nomination, by holders of physical securities. Members holding shares in physical
form are requested to submit their PAN, KYC details and Nomination / Opt-out of Nomination details by sending a duly
filled and signed Form ISR-1to M/s. Universal Capital Securities Private Limited or by email to info @ unisec.in from their
registered email id.

Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of Companies Act, 2013 and Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, dividends which are not encashed / claimed by the shareholder for a period of
seven consecutive years shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority. The IEPF
Rules mandate the companies to transfer the shares of shareholders whose dividends remain unpaid / unclaimed for a
period of seven consecutive years to the demat account of IEPF Authority. Hence, the Company urges all the
shareholders to encash/ claim their respective dividend during prescribed period. The details of the unpaid / unclaimed
amounts lying with the Company as on 04" August, 2022 (date of last AGM) are available on the website of the Company
www.abmindia.com and on Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ website. The details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying
with the Company as on 31* March, 2023 shall be updated in due course. The Shareholders whose dividend / shares as
transferred to the IEPF Authority can now claim their shares from the Authority by following the Refund Procedure as
detailed on the website of IEPF Authority http://iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/refund.html.

Allthe documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be available for inspection

through electronic mode, basis the request being sent on cs @abmindia.com.

@
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a) Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a
speaker by sending the request along with their queries in advance mentioning their name, demat account number /
folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@abmindia.com. Only those speaker registration requests received till

5.00 p.m. on Saturday, 05" August, 2023 will be considered and responded during the AGM.

b) The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate for
smooth conduct of the AGM.

THEINSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER: -

The remote e-voting period will commence at 9.00 a.m. on Sunday, 06" August, 2023 and will end at 5.00 p.m.on Tuesday,
8" August, 2023. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in
theirdemat accounts in orderto access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding | 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
securities in demat mode with NSDL. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a

mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner
icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under
e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
Company name or e-Voting service provideri.e. NSDL and you will be
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for
IDeAS Portal’orclick at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/ Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enteryour User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held
with NSDL), Password / OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

4. Shareholders / Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for
seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on
‘ App Store B Google Play

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding | 1. Userswho have opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility, can login through
securities in demat mode with CDSL their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to
login Easi / Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab
andthen useryour existing my easi use name & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’
website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi / Easiest, option to register is
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New
System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

/5\
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4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user
by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the
e-Voting option where the e-Voting is in progress and also able to
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders (holding You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
securities in  demat mode) login through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for
through their depository participants e-Voting facility. Upon loggingin, you will be able to see e-Voting option.

Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provideri.e.
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depositoryi.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
securities in demat mode with NSDL sending arequest at evoting @ nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 -
24997000
Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
securities in demat mode with CDSL sending arequest at helpdesk.evoting @ cdslindia.comor contact at toll free
no.180022 5533

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

Howto Log-into NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’section.

3. Anewscreen willopen. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password / OTP and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https.//eservices.nsdl.com/ with

your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting
and you can proceed to Step 2i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

@
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4. YourUserID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12******
demat account with NSDL. then your user ID is IN300***12******.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

b) For Members who hold shares in
demat account with CDSL. then your user [D s 12******xxxxsees

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary |D ig 12

c) For Members holding shares in
Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456
then user ID is 101456001 ***

5. Password details for shareholders otherthan Individual shareholders are given below:

a)

b)

c)

Ifyou are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the
system will force you to change your password.

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your ‘initial password’ is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open
the email and open the attachmenti.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is
your 8digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares
heldin physical form. The .pdffile contains your‘User ID’and your ‘initial password’.

(i) Ifyouremail IDis notregistered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders
whose email ids are not registered.

6. Ifyouareunabletoretrieve or have notreceived the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Click on “Forgot User Details / Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting @nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number / folio number, your PAN, your name and your

registered address etc.

Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system
of NSDL.

7. Afterenteringyour password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. Afteryouclickonthe “Login”button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

a)

After successfullogin at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN”in which you are holding shares

0
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and whose voting cycle and General Meetingisin active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting
your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/ OAVM” link placed
under “Join Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify / modify the number of shares for
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit”and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirmyour vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

a)

b)

c)

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of
the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
ucshukla @ rediffmail.com with a copy marked to evoting @nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by
clickingon "Upload Board Resolution/Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in
the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886
7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to evoting @ nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

a)

b)

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs @ abmindia.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs @abmindia.com. If you are an Individual
shareholderholding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1
(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode.

Alternatively Shareholder / Members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and
email ID correctly intheir demat accountin order to access e-Voting facility.
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ONTHE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER: -

a) The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote
e-voting.

b)  Only those Members / Shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC / OAVM facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall
be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

c)  Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be
eligible to vote atthe AGM.

d)  Thedetails of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the
day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FORATTENDINGTHE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

27.

28.

29.

30.

a) Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting
system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system.
After successful login, you can see link of “VC / OAVM link” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company
name. You are requested to click on VC / OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder / Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed.
Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User
ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to
avoid last minute rush.

b)  Membersare encouragedto join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

c) Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

d) Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio / Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. Itis therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fior LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Mr. Upendra Shukla, Practising Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 2727) has been appointed as the
Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of Company to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and
transparentmanner.

The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company
www.abmindia.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman of the
meeting or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited,
Mumbai.

Members of the Company had approved the appointment of M/s. Borkar & Muzumdar Chartered Accountants, as the
Statutory Auditors at the Twenty Sixth AGM of the Company which is valid till Thirty First AGM of the Company. In
accordance with the Act, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every AGM.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, mandates that transfer, transmission and
transposition of securities of listed companies held in physical form shall be affected only in dematerialized (demat)
mode. Further, SEBI vide its Circular dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue securities
in demat form only while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from
unclaimed suspense account; renewal / exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of
securities certificate; consolidation of securities certificates / folios; transmission and transposition etc. In view of this
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31.

and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to demat mode.

Interms of Section 152 of the Act, Mrs. Supriya P. Rane is liable to retire by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and

being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

Details as required in Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard -2 are as under:

Name Mr. Prakash B. Rane

DIN 00152393

Date of Birth / Age 21/12/1965

Date of first Appointment on the Board 27/04/2000

Qualifications B.Tech, M.M.S

ﬁt;ﬁgeeholdlng in the Company as on date of the 95,42,300 Equity Shares of Z 5/- each.
Experience (approx) 30 years

Nature of Expertise and brief resume

As stated in the Explanatory Statement

Terms and conditions of appointment or
re-appointment

As per resolution approved by the members of the Company in
their 27" AGM and as stated in the Explanatory Statement

Details of remuneration sought to be paid

As stated in the Explanatory Statement

Remuneration last drawn during FY 2021-22

As stated in the Explanatory Statement

Number of Board Meetings attended during the
Financial Year

Seven

Relationship with other Directors or KMP

Mrs. Supriya Rane (Non-Executive Independent Director),
Wife of Mr. Prakash B. Rane

Directorship in other Companies

Instasafe Technologies Private Limited
Diagnostica Thrombus Private Limited

Names of listed entities in which the person
also holds the directorship and Chairman /
Member of the Committee of Board of other
Companies

None

Name Mrs. Supriya P. Rane
DIN 00152890

Date of Birth / Age 19/04/1969

Date of first Appointment on the Board 27/04/2000

Qualifications

BE (Electronics), Postgraduate Diploma in System Management

Shareholding in the Company as on date of the
Notice

24,54,000 equity shares of ¥ 5/- each.

Experience (approx)

23 years

Nature of Expertise and brief resume

Systems and Processes

Terms and conditions of appointment or
re-appointment

Mrs. Supriya Rane is a Non- Executive Director of the Company
liable to retire by Rotation

Details of remuneration sought to be paid

Not Applicable

Remuneration last drawn during FY 2021-22

Not Applicable

Number of Board Meetings attended during the
Financial Year

Seven

Relationship with other Directors or KMP

Mr. Prakash B. Rane (Managing Director), Husband of
Mrs. Supriya P. Rane

Directorship in other Companies Nil
Names of listed entities in which the person
also holds the directorship and Chairman / | None

Member of the Committee of Board of other
Companies
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Name Mr. Devendra Parulekar

DIN 06705320

Date of Birth / Age 02/03/1976

Date of first Appointment on the Board 10/08/2018

Qualifications B. Com, Master of Management Studies, Operations
Shareholding in the Company as on date of the .

Notice il

Experience (approx) 20 years

Nature of Expertise and brief resume Information Technology, Cyber Security

Terms and conditions of appointment or
re-appointment

Details of remuneration sought to be paid Not Applicable
Remuneration last drawn during FY 2021-22 Not Applicable

Number of Board Meetings attended during the

As stated in the Explanatory Statement

Financial Year Five
Relationship with other Directors or KMP None
Directorship in other Companies Saffron Studios Private Limited

Names of listed entities in which the person
also holds the directorship and Chairman /
Member of the Committee of Board of other | None
Companies

Mumbai, 26" May, 2023

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): L67190MH1993PLC113638 By Order of the Board of Directors

Registered Office: Sd/-
ABM House, Plot No. 268, Linking Road,
Bandra (W), Mumbai- 400 050.

Tel: 91 22 42909700 Fax: 91 22 42909701
E-mail: egovernance @ abmindia.com,
Website: www.abmindia.com

Sarika Ghanekar
Company Secretary
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ABMI
ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT
TO SECTION 102 THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEMNO.4

Mr. Devendra Parulekar is a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company who was appointed on the Board for his
firstterm of 5 (five) years w.e.f. 10" August, 2018 upto 9" August, 2023.

Mr. Devendra Parulekar is a management graduate with over 20+ years of experience in the Information Technology
industry with reputed consultancy firms. He has also founded the Cyber Security practice in EY, India and had grown it
exponentially as a Partner and Practice Leader -Cyber Security before moving on to launch his startup Saffron Stays. He
is passionate abouttechnology, coding, trekking photography, and swimming.

As per Section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), an Independent director shall hold office for a term of up to
5(five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company. However, an Independent director shall be eligible for
re-appointment for another term of up to five consecutive years on passing of special resolution by the Company. The
Members of the Company had at Annual General Meeting held on 8" August, 2018 approved the appointment of
Mr.Devendra Parulekar for a period of 5 (five) years.

Based on his performance evaluation and recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
pursuant to provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule 1V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations, Mr. Devendra is eligible for re-appointment as Independent Director for second term of 5 (five) years w.e.f.
10" August, 2023 to 9" August, 2028.

The Board considers that his vast Knowledge and varied experience will be of great value to the Company and his
continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail valuable
services of Mr. Parulekar as Independent Director. Therefore, the Board recommends the resolution in relation to
re-appointment of Mr. Devendra Parulekar as an Independent Director, for the approval by the Members of the Company
for second term of five years by passing Special Resolution.

In the view of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and also based on the opinion of the Board, Mr. Devendra
Kamlakar Parulekar is a person of integrity and has the relevant expertise and experience and fulfills all the conditions
specified in the Act and the Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations for re-appointment as an Independent Director
of the Company and he is Independent of the Management. A copy of the draftletter of appointment proposed to be issued
to him on his appointment as an Independent Director, setting out the terms and conditions is available forinspection at the
website of the Company upto the last date for e-voting i.e. 08" August, 2023. Further, the Company has also received a
notice in writing under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member proposing the
candidature of Mr.Devendra Kamlakar Parulekar for the office of Independent Director.

Brief resume of Mr. Devendra Parulekar, nature of his expertise in specific functional areas and names of companies in
which they hold directorships and memberships / chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding as stipulated under
Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are provided in the
notice of the Annual General Meeting and Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report.

The Company has received from Mr. Devendra Kamlakar Parulekar (i) consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2
pursuantto Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014; (ii) intimation in Form DIR-8
interms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that he is not disqualified under
Sub-Section (2) of Sec. 164 of the Companies Act, 2013; and (iii) a declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of
independence as provided in sub-Section 6 of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Devendra Kamlakar Parulekar and his relatives may be deemed to be interested to the extent of his re-appointment as
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an Independent Director and their shareholding interestif any, in the Company. Save and except, none of the Directors or

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives is, in any way concerned or interested financially or

otherwise in the proposed Resolution. The Board of Directors recommends for the Special Resolution at Item No. 4 of this
Notice forapproval of Members.

ITEMNO.5

Mr. Prakash B. Rane was appointed as Managing Director of the Company with effect from 01 April, 2020 for a period of 5

years at the 27" Annual General Meeting of the shareholders held on 04" September, 2020. The remuneration of
Mr. Prakash B. Rane had not been revised and no commission has been paid to him since his appointment. The terms of
the appointment are listed below:

1. Remuneration:

a) Basic Salary:3¥13,50,000/- per month.

b) Inadditiontothe aforesaid basic salary, he shall be entitled to following Perquisites and Allowance:

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Reimbursement of all medical expenses in India or abroad including hospitalization, nursing home and surgical
charges incurred for himself and his family.

Leave Travel Allowance including expenses like travel, fare, lodging, boarding, conveyance and other incurred for
self and family during leave / holiday travel periods, whenever undertaken, in India for an amount not exceeding of
¥ 3,50,000/-p.a.

iii. House RentAllowance will be payable as per the rules of the Company.

Actual Fees of clubs including admission and membership fee.

Actual premium for Personal Accidentinsurance policy and premium on Mediclaim policy.
Provision of Credit Cards for use of Company's business.

Reimbursement of Gas, Electricity, water, servants, security charges at residence.

Use of vehicles for official purpose including payment of fuel costs, repairs, maintenance, running expenses and
driver's salary.

Payment or reimbursement of telephone, mobile, fax, internet connectivity and other communication facilities at
residence.

Reimbursement of all cost, charges and expenses including entertainment expenses as may be incurred for the
purpose of or on behalf of Company.

Gratuity payable as per rules of the Company.
Leaves with full pay or encashment thereof for un-availed leaves as per the rules of the Company.

Company's Contribution towards Pension Scheme or Superannuation Fund and Provident Fund at rates as per
Company'srules.

Reimbursement of expenses paid towards repairs, refurbishing and furnishing of his residence.

All other payments or reimbursements in nature of perquisites and allowances agreed by Board of Directors from
timetotime.

1)
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2. Commission:

Commission as determined by the Board of Directors on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, which will be payable at the end of each Financial Year after the annual accounts are approved by the Board,
which shall be calculated with reference to the net profits of the Company and may exceed the overall ceiling stipulated
in Sections 197 and 198 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act (including any subsequent amendment /
modification) made thereunder.

Perquisites shall be evaluated as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 or any rules made thereunder or any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof; in the absence of any such rules, perquisites and allowances shall be
evaluated atactual cost. However, contribution towards pension scheme, superannuation fund, provident fund, gratuity
fund, use of vehicles, credit cards for official purposes, telephone, internet connectivity and other communication
facilities at residence, and encashment of un-availed leave at the end of the year shall not be treated as perquisites.

3. Minimum Remuneration:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, wherein in any Financial Year during the currency of the
tenure of office of the Managing Director, the Company has loss or no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company
will pay remuneration by way of salary, allowances and perquisites, as may be decided by the Board, even if it exceeds
the limits as prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Overall Remuneration:

The aggregate of salary, perquisites, allowances and commission payable to the Managing Director of the Company, in
any Financial Year(s), may be decided by the Board of Directors, i.e. the total remuneration may exceed 5% of the net
profits of the Company as prescribed under section 197 of the Companies Act. Net Profit shall be calculated as per
section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and any subsequent amendment(s) and / or modification(s) in the Companies
Act, Rules and/orapplicable laws in this regard.

5. Termination of Term of Office:

The Company will have the right to terminate the term of office of Managing Director at any time by providing the
Managing Director with 3 (three) months prior written notice or provide the Managing Director with 3 (three) months
salary and allowances in lieu thereof. The Managing Director shall also have a right to relinquish his office at any time
before expiry of his term by issuing a written prior notice of termination of not less than 3 (three) months to the Company
(“Notice Period”), provided that the Company may, at its discretion relieve the Managing Director from his duties at any
time after the receipt of his notice, prior to the expiry of the Notice Period by payment of salary for the remaining period of
the Notice Period.

Mr. Prakash B. Rane, is the Managing Director of the Company and has been in charge of the overall day-to-day business
and affairs and operations of the Company. He has been associated with the Company for the last 25 years and has rich
experience in various areas of operation of the Company. On 30" October, 2021, he received an award as Founder & MD,
ABM for 'Contributions to Digital Municipalities' recognising the contribution to the growth of e-Governance. Heisin charge
of the overall management and functioning of the Company. Over the years under Mr. Prakash B. Rane's stellar leadership,
considerable value has been added to the Company. He is actively involved in the business strategy, business development
andresearch and development functions inthe Company.

On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on
26" May, 2023 had approved payment of existing remuneration to Mr. Prakash B. Rane, Managing Director as set out in the
resolution w.e.f. 01* April, 2023, for the residual tenure of his office ending on March 31 2025, subject to the approval of the
members.
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Taking into consideration the challenging economic scenario and Company's cautious growth strategy Mr. Prakash B.Rane,
Managing Director has declined any increment in the existing remuneration paid and has agreed to continue with same
remuneration. The members may please note that the managerial remuneration payable to Mr Prakash B. Rane has not
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been revised since 2017 and is far below the market capitalization while the remuneration payable to other cadres in the
organization have been increased by 10-15% per annum as per the practices followed by the Human Resources
Department of the Company. It is also pertinent to note that while the Company’s operations continue to be profitable,
Mr. Prakash B.Rane has notbeen paid any commission on net profits of the Company since 2019.

In accordance with Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 companies have been permitted to pay remuneration to
managerial personnel in excess of the limits prescribed under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act with the consent
of the Members of the Company given by way of a special resolution and without requiring the approval of the Central
Government. Further, if in any Financial Year(s), the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, it may pay
remuneration to its Managing Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V or exceeding the limits specified
under Item (A) of Section Il of Part Il of the said Schedule, if the resolution passed by the Members is a Special Resolution.

Inview of above, where in any Financial Year, during the currency of the tenure of Mr. Prakash B. Rane as Managing Director,
the Company has no profits or loss or inadequate profit, your Directors propose to pay the remuneration as set out above as
aminimum remuneration.

Considering the present market conditions and growth of the Company and based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors at their respective meetings
held on 15" May, 2023 and 26" May, 2023 approved the remuneration of Mr. Prakash Rane with effect from 1* April, 2023 for
the remaining period of his tenure ending on March 312025, subject to the approval of Members.

Except for the aforesaid revision in salary, all other terms and conditions of his appointment as Managing Director of the
Company as approved by the Members of the Company shall remain unchanged.

Your Directors recommend the resolution as set-out in the notice convening the 30" Annual General Meeting.

Disclosure in terms of ScheduleV of the Companies Act,2013:
A. General Information

The Company is engaged in the business of providing

a) Nature of Industry Information Technology (Software & Services).

b) Date or expected date of commencement The Company was incorporated in 1993 and has commenced
of commercial production business since long.

c) In case of new companies, expected date of
commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions appearing
in the prospectus

Not Applicable.

d) Financial performance based on given F.Y. Sales & Other income  Profit / Loss before Tax
indicators 2021-2022 387,55,99,222 319,43,45,751
The Company has invested in Scanit Technologies INC

e) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any. in USA

B. Information about the appointee:

Mr. Prakash B Rane is Founder and Managing Director of the
Company, a qualified B. Tech., M.M.S. and has been
associated with the Company for the last 25 years.

The Shareholders at 27" Annual General Meeting held on 04"
September, 2020 had approved the appointment of
Mr. Prakash B. Rane as Managing Director for 5 years upto
31* March, 2025.

a) Background details

b) Past remuneration Basic Salary of ¥13,50,000/- p.m. in the Financial Year
2022-23.
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c) Recognition or awards

1)CEQO’s Association for Inclusive India (CAIll) led by
Secretariat and SKOCH Group presented SKOCH CEO’s
Choice Award to Prakash Rane, Founder & MD, ABM for
‘Contributions to Digital Municipalities' recognizing the
contribution to the growth of e-Governance.

2) Mr. Prakash Rane, Founder & MD, ABM along with other 8
alumni of LIT - Laxmi Narayanan Institute of Technology (A
world-class Institute for Chemistry and Technology) was
awarded 'LIT Jewel Award' on 25th Dec 2021 by LIT Alumni
Association.

d) Job profile and his suitability

Having more than 30 years of experience in IT and related
areas. He oversees the overall management and functioning
of the Company. He supervises the functioning of various
departments in the Organization.

e) Remuneration proposed

Basic Salary of ¥ 13,50,000/- per month.

Taking into consideration the challenging economic scenario
and Company's cautious growth strategy. Mr. Prakash B.
Rane, Managing Director has declined any increment in the
existing remuneration paid and has agreed to continue with
same remuneration.

f) Comparative remuneration profile with
respect to industry, size of the company,
profile of the position and person

The remuneration proposed and is commensurate with the
remuneration paid to similar senior level in other Companies.

g) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly
with the company, or relationship with the
managerial personnel, if any

Mr. Prakash B. Rane is also one of the Promoters of the
Company holding 95,42,300 Equity Shares singly. His wife,
Mrs. Supriya Rane is also holding 24,54,000 Equity Shares.
Together with her and other relatives, Mr. Prakash B. Rane is
holding 60.01% of the total paid up capital.

C. Other Information

a) Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

The Company has made reasonable profit during the past
year as per the industry norms, however as per calculation of
profit under Section 198 of the Companies Act, such profit is
inadequate to remunerate managerial personnel.

b) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for
improvement

All economic measures are being adopted to maintain
Profitability.

c) Expected increase in productivity and profits
in measurable terms

The Company is expecting growth in the turnover and
profits of the Company.

Mr. Prakash B.Rane and Mrs. Supriya P. Rane, she being the wife of Mr. Prakash B. Rane, be deemed to be interested in the
resolution to the extent of remuneration that Mr. Prakash Rane will receive as Managing Director. Save and except none of
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are interested financially or otherwise in this
resolution.

Mumbai, 26" May, 2023

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): L67190MH1993PLC113638 By Order of the Board of Directors

Registered Office: Sd/-

ABM House, Plot No. 268, Linking Road, Sarika Ghanekar
Bandra (W), Mumbai- 400 050. Company Secretary
Tel: 91 22 42909700 Fax: 91 22 42909701

E-mail: egovernance @ abmindia.com,

Website: www.abmindia.com
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1.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
ABM KNOWLEDGEWARE LIMITED

Your Directors are delighted to present the 30" Annual Report of the Company along with the Audited Financial Statements
(Standalone & Consolidated) for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2023.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY (STANDALONE & CONSOLIDATED):

(¥ In Lakhs)
Consolidated Standalone
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Gross Income 9,885 11,425 8,284 10,156
Profit Before Interest and Depreciation 2,177 2,095 1,822 2,096
Finance Charges 26 35 26 35
Gross Profit 3,118 2,785 2,184 2,400
Provision for Depreciation 300 247 123 118
Profit Before Tax 1,851 1,813 1,673 1,943
Provision for Tax 397 416 385 459
Profit after tax 1,455 1,397 1,288 1,485
Non-Controlling Interest for the year (132) 69 N/A N/A
Profit after tax attributable to owners of 1,323 1,467 1,288 1,485
the Company
Surplus - Opening Balance 18,966 17,767 18,921 17,704
Amount Available for Appropriation 20,288 19,234 20,209 19,189
Other.Comprehensive (Income) / Loss (net of tax) 6 (18) - (18)
attributable to owners of the Company
Dividend and Dividend tax paid during the year (250) (250) (250) (250)
Surplus - closing balance 20,044 18,966 19,966 18,921

The Company has performed well despite the challenges and recorded anincrease in the Consolidated Gross Profit and
PBT. The Profit attributable to owners is seen on the lower side, due to the non-conversion of the CCPS owned by the
Company into equity sharesin the subsidiary.

OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY:

There has notbeen any significant change inthe Company’s operations compared to last year. The level of operations has
beenonthelower side as most of the projects have moved into the support phase. ABM has been encouraging employees
to Work from Office partially to follow a hybrid model.

The IT industry was facing unusual attrition rates and the cost of manpower had also increased substantially compared to
the standard benchmarks. The attrition rates have been lowered in the past couple of quarters.

DIVIDEND:

Based on Company’s performance and keeping in mind the shareholders’ interest, the Directors have recommended a
Final Dividend @ 25% i.e. ¥1.25/- per Equity Share of Face Value of Z5/- each for the Financial Year ended 31* March,
2023. The payment of Final Dividend is subject to the approval of Members at the 30" Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of
the Company. The dividend if approved, by the members will be paid on or before Thursday, 07" September, 2023, to the
members whose names appear in the Register of Members, as onthe Record Date.

The Dividend if approved, would involve a cash outflow 0f% 2,50,02,750/-. Inview of the changes made under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, by the Finance Act, 2020, dividends paid or distributed by the Company shall be taxable in the hands of the
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Shareholders. Your Company shall, accordingly, make the payment of the final Dividend after deduction of tax at source.
4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the General Reserve out of the currentyear’s profit.
5. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDTOINVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND:

Interms of the provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016
/ Investor Education and Protection Fund (Awareness and Protection of Investors) Rules, 2001, ¥3,77,122/- of unpaid /
unclaimed dividends were transferred during the yearto the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

6. SHARE CAPITAL:

As on 31* March, 2023 the Authorized share capital of your Company was ¥12,50,00,000/- consisting of 2,50,00,000
Equity Shares of ¥5/- each and paid up equity share capital was ¥10,24,15,000/- consisting of 2,00,02,200 fully paid up
equity shares and 6,97,800 forfeited equity shares of ¥5/- each.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares or Bonus shares. The Company has not issued
shares with differential voting rights. It has neitherissued employee stock options nor sweat equity shares. The Company
has notbought back any of its equity shares.

7. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):

The Board of the Company is duly constituted. None of the directors of the Company is disqualified under the provisions of
the Act or the Listing Regulations. In accordance with the provisions of the Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013,
Mrs. Supriya P. Rane, Director retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers
herself forre-appointment. The Board recommends her re-appointment.

We would like to further inform that based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Board of Directors in their meeting held on 26" May, 2023, has re-appointed Mr. Devendra Parulekar for a second term of
five consecutive years with effect from 10" August, 2023 and for a term up to 9" August, 2028 subject to the approval of the
Members. Also, based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on 26" May, 2023 has approved payment of existing remuneration to Mr. Prakash B. Rane, Managing
Director as set out in the resolution w.e.f.1* April, 2023, for the residual tenure of his office ending on 31*March, 2025,
subjectto the approval of Members.

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that:

a) they meet the criteria of independence prescribed under the provisions of the Act, read with the Rules made
thereunder and the Listing Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status
as Independent Directors of the Company;

b) theyhave complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed under Schedule IV of the Act; and

c) theyhave registered themselves with the Independent Directors’ Database maintained by the Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs.

Inthe opinion of the Board, all Independent Directors possess requisite qualifications, experience, expertise and hold high
standards of integrity required to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external
influence. List of key skills, expertise and core competencies of the Board, including the Independent Directors, forms a
partof the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.
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10.

11.

As per the provisions of the Act, the Independent Directors are not liable to retire by rotation. Brief resume, nature of
expertise, disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se, details of directorships and committee membership held
in other companies of the Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed, along with their shareholding in the
Company, as stipulated under Secretarial Standard-2 and Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations, is appended as an
Annexure to the Notice of the ensuing AGM.

Mr. Prakash B. Rane, Managing Director, Mr. Paresh Golatkar, Chief Financial Officer and Mrs. Sarika Ghanekar,
Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on 31* March, 2023. There has been no other
changeinthe Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of your Company during the year under review.

POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT, REMUNERATION, BOARD EVALUATION AND DETAILS OF
FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMS:

The policy on Director's appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of Director, and also remuneration for Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, forms
part of the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report. Annual Board Evaluation process for Directors has also
been provided underthe Report on Corporate Governance.

The details of programmes for familiarisation of Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company

and related matters are put up on the website of the Company at www.abmindia.com. The Company has issued a formal
letter of appointment to the Independent Director in the manner as provided in the Companies Act, 2013. The terms and
conditions of the appointment have been disclosed on the website of the Company.

MEETINGS:

During the year Seven (7) Board Meetings and five (5) Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held. Forthe details
of the meetings of the Board and its Committees, please refer to the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms part of
thisreport. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed underthe Companies Act, 2013.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

InstaSafe Technologies Private Limited (“InstaSafe”), a subsidiary of your Company, is a leading Cloud based Security-
as-a-Service solution provider delivering comprehensive and uncompromising protection to mobile and remote workers
enabling them to safely and securely access enterprise apps, email and web from anywhere on any network. “InstaSafe
Inc” is wholly owned subsidiary of InstaSafe Technologies Private Limited incorporated in Delaware, United State of
America.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing salient features of
financial statements of subsidiary company in Form AOC-1 is attached herewith. The separate audited financial
statements in respect of the subsidiary company are available on the website of the Company at www.abmindia.com.

Your Company will also make available these documents upon request by any member of the Company interested in
obtaining the same.

Ason 31*March, 2023 the Company does not have any Joint venture or Associate Company.
PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

As the hybrid world settles into permanency and the need to stay protected continues across organizations & businesses,
InstaSafe stands prepared to capture this market momentum with their strong trust on R&D efforts. The outlook for
Financial Year 2023-2024 is to continue to stay focussed and execute as they continue to operate in a challenging VUCA
environment.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

InstaSafe was featured as Leader at “SPARK Matrix: Zero Trust Network Security, 2022” by Quadrant Knowledge
Solutions (Sep 2022) and a Consistent Leader of G2 Gridin ZTNA Category.

Internally InstaSafe have been making conscious changes within themselves to enable them to win through the right
combination of people, processes and technology and staying profitable as a company. These initiatives will reap us rich
benefits towards value creation in this Financial Year.

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITORS’REPORT:

In terms of provisions of Section 139 of the Act, M/s. Borkar & Muzumdar, Chartered Accountants(Firm's Registration No.
101569W) were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at 26" the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on
16" August, 2019 to hold the office till the conclusion of 31 AGM of the Company.

The Report given by the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements of the Company is part of Annual Report. There
has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Statutory Auditors in their Report.
Hence, it is an unmodified opinion in terms of the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. During the year under review, the Auditors have not reported any fraud under Section
143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013. Notes to Accounts and Auditors remarks in their report are self-explanatory and do
not call for any furthercomments.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Inline with the requirement of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has undertaken Secretarial Audit for
the Financial Year 2022-2023 which, inter-alia, includes audit of compliance with the Act, and the Rules made under the
Act, Listing Regulations and applicable Regulations prescribed by the SEBI and Foreign Exchange Management Act,
1999 and Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India. The Board has appointed
Mr. Upendra Shukla, Practicing Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditor to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the year ended on 31* March, 2023. The Secretarial Audit Report issued by Mr. Upendra Shukla in Form No.
MR-3 forms part of this Annual Report and is an Annexure to the Annual Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has generally complied with all applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings, General Meetings and dividend.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Board of your Company has laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively. Your Company has adopted policies and procedures for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The Audit Committee reviews the reports submitted by the Internal Auditors in each of its meeting. The Management duly
considers and takes appropriate action on recommendations made by the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors. The Company has appointed M/s. S.P. Sule & Associates, Chartered Accountants as
Internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year2022-2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company places great importance on maintaining the highest standards of Corporate Governance. It recognizes
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that good governance practices not only promote transparency and accountability but also contribute to the overall
credibility and trustworthiness of the organization. The Company has also implemented several best governance
practices. Your Company has complied with the governance requirements provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and
listing regulations.

A separate Report on Corporate Governance together with Auditor’s Certificate confirming compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is annexed to this Report.

A Certificate of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company in terms of Listing Regulations,
inter-alia, confirming the correctness of the financial statements and cash flow statements, adequacy of the internal
control measures and reporting of matters to the Audit Committee, is also annexed. The said certificate is signed by
Mr. Prakash B. Rane, Managing Director and Mr. Paresh Golatkar, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

. Industry Structure and Development:

India has made significant strides in e-governance over the past decade, emerging as a leader in the digital revolution.
Through a combination of government initiatives, private-sector partnerships, and innovative technologies, the country
has enhanced public services and improved overall governance. As we look towards the future, it's essential to
understand the currentlandscape, opportunities, and challenges in the realm of e-governance in India.

India's e-governance landscape has evolved rapidly thanks to initiatives like Digital India and the National e-Governance
Plan (NeGP). These programs have aimed to transform public service delivery and make government more accessible,
efficient, and transparent. Some of the visible achievements include:

1. Aadhaar: A unique identification number for every citizen that has improved access to various government services
and welfare programs.

2. Unified Payments Interface (UPI): A real-time payment system that has revolutionized digital transactions.

3. e-NAM: A pan-India electronic trading portal for agricultural commodities, streamlining the marketing of agricultural
produce.

4.  DigiLocker: A digital locker system to store and share critical personal documents electronically.

5.  DBT:Direct BenefitTransfers of assistance to the bank accounts of the recipients.

. Existing Opportunities and Outlook:

The growing digital infrastructure in India presents several opportunities for further growth and expansion of
e-governance:

1.  Bridging the Digital Divide: Ensuring equitable access to digital services across urban and rural areas by improving
infrastructure, digital literacy, and affordability.

2. Public-Private Partnerships: Collaboration between the government and private sector to develop innovative
solutions for e-governance and share expertise, resources, and technology.

3. SmartCities: Leveraging technology to create sustainable, efficient, and citizen-centric urban centers.

4.  Artificial Intelligence (Al) and Big Data: Harnessing Al and big data analytics for better decision-making,
personalized services, and improved efficiency in public service delivery.
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5.  Cyber security: Strengthening cyber security measures to protect sensitive data and ensure the integrity of
e-governance services

While the above gives an idea about e-Governance in general, ABM is in a specific niche of e-Governance dominated by
Urban Administration. With the impact of the pandemic slowly tapering off, we expected more opportunities in our
segment. Smart City Mission was to come to an end in June 2023. It was extended by one year, mainly allowing
incomplete projectstobe completed. There have been few new tenders in this space during the lastyear.

Gol has also undertaken an initiative for a large-scale rollout of a municipal ERP to be provided free of cost to willing states
through empaneled Implementation Partners. ABM has started working on this opportunity using the in-depth experience
of implementing different types of municipal ERPs across India. ABM has already won two state -wide projects, which are
underimplementation.

ABM has continued its efforts to develop more opportunities in the 5DBIM segment however the traction from potential
customersislowerthan expected.

ABM has continued to focus on education segment by tying up with the reputed providers such as industry 4.0 solutions to
provide a Center of Excellence for technical education institutions. These efforts have yet to give significant results. ABM
expects better results during the currentyear.

ABM has started the new Financial Year with approximately ¥175+Crs order book to be executed in 2-3 years.
C. BusinessThreats:

The Company has faced some challenges during the last year. Itincludes significant delays due to political turmoil in the
home state delaying many opportunities built painstakingly, unexpected continued impact on project execution in the
Urban Space and slowing down of Smart City Mission. This is likely to impact the current year revenues and profitability
significantly.

D. Business Strategies and Planning:

The Company is planning to de-risk the single govt vertical in the form of municipal bodies. As mentioned above, different
initiatives are undertaken to build adjacent businesses. The strategy of working closely with existing prestigious
customers and retaining them will continue with due consideration to the increased competition in some of the Company's
key accounts.

The Company has invested in a Silicon Valley Agri-tech start-up with a road map to acquire a majority stake. Hopefully,
this will help ABM to diversify into new geographies as well as new vertical.

E. Human Resource Management:

ABM's Human Resource workforce aims to achieve the organization's goals and objectives through various HR
interventions related to Inclusive Work Culture, Learning & Development, and Employee Motivation.

ABM’s objective isto acquire, develop, utilize, and retain efficient employees for mutually rewarding associations.

ABM thus continues to stay on course with our approach to Human Capital Management with key initiatives in areas like
Upskilling & Reskilling and Competency Building, Reward and Recognition, Employee Engagement, Open & Fair Work
Environment, and Staff Augmentation.

1.  Upskillingand Competency Building:

ABM has always believed in upskilling and reskilling of the employees which helps us to prepare for the changes
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happening now. These activities also get businesses ready to handle fast-approaching developments, which may
require more agility.

ABM also ensured that the terminology of training is renamed as a workshop so that the employees get maximum
benefit through quality learning interventions. A workshop is basically defined as an interactive meeting in which a
group of people goes through a series of activities to solve a problem or work on a particular assignment using various
tools &techniques. Here, during the Financial Year2022—-2023, ABM initiated multiple workshops for employees who
are working in various capacities. This has not only helped in the enhancement of the employee skills but also helped
in improvising quality support to our clients. Also, these enhanced employee capabilities are helping the
organization in sustaining existing business and likewise get more business opportunities. The said workshops were
deliveredin both the manneri.e., online & offline.

To name afew, below were the workshops:
» Effective Business Communication
e Java Full Stack
¢ Microsoft Project Tool
¢ SAP-HANA
e Statistics
e Building & Enhancing Sales Capability
* Funds Management
* Apache Nifi
e LabourlLaw
2. Rewardand Recognition:

The Human Resource Team had driven the revamped rewards and recognition program which is named as “The
Diamonds”— A League like never before.

The said reward and recognition are aimed at:
¢ Recognize and reward employees’superior contributions ontime and every time.
¢ Create a performance-based culture, and increase employee satisfaction, engagement & motivation.
¢ Retain critical employees and attract business-critical talent from the job market.
¢ Offerbetter employee experience.
Below are the key rewards categories:
1. Employee of the Month - Rockstar Rookie
. Employee of the Quarter - Gladiator

2

3. Employee of the Year— ACE
4. Customer Success Champion
5

. Service Rewards —for the employees who have completed a specific no. of years of service viz. 3,5, 10, 15, 20 and
25.

3. Employee Engagement:

Employee engagement is highly valued at ABM, which aims to connect all four pillars viz. Well-being, Company
culture, Learning and Development, and Recognition. Interactions between team members, colleagues, and
managers play animportantrole here. Itis about creating a sense of community and fostering a positive work culture
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ABM thus continued to celebrate Happy Hour across different regions - Bhopal, Delhi, Mumbai, Raipur, etc.

The celebration of Happy Hours and the Rewards & Recognition event was one of HR's prominent initiatives. This
program was basically to honour the winners nominated in various award categories. The said event took place in
Mumbai, wherein employees located in the Mumbai region were part of this grand celebration.

HR also organized multiple festival events namely:
¢ Ganesh Chaturthi

¢ Independence Day

e Dussehra

¢ DiwaliMania

e Christmas

4. Open &Fair Work Environment:

ABM has always ensured to maintain an open and inclusive work environment through various policies & practices
suchas:

e Equal Opportunities & Non-Discrimination.
e Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH) policy.

¢ Open and transparent communication through various HR policies and employee forums. For E.g. Whistle-blower
policy, Team meetings, 1 on1 discussions.

e Equal opportunity foremployees to learn and grow within the organization.
5. Staff Augmentation:

ABM always believed and thus continues to leverage its strength in the e-governance domain by providing quality
manpower to various PSUs and state government agencies. Staff augmentation in ABM has acted as a bridge
between the available talent pool with required skills and the availability of short / long-term positions in the market.
Staff augmentation is increasingly becoming the most sought-after recruitment model as it entails a flexibility in the
workforce. This further helps in faster recruitment for the defined projects as per RFP, thereby expanding the team as
required.

ABM has assisted multiple clients in staff augmentation viz.

1. National Mineral Development Corporation (NMDC)

2. Madhya Pradesh State Electronics Development Corporation (MAP —IT)
3. Maharashtra Information Technology (MAHA —IT)

4. Chhattisgarh Infotech Promotion Society (CHIPS)

6. Headcount:

S. No. Year Current Headcount*
1 April 2021 — March 2022 439
2 April 2022 — March 2023 422

* excludes full time associates.
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F. Discussion on financial performance with respect to the operational performance (Standalone & Consolidated):

(% In Lakhs)
Consolidated Standalone
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Gross Income 9,885 11,425 8,284 10,156
Total Expenditure 6,628 8,138 5,386 6,813
i) Operating Expenses 1,249 3,508 1,194 2,986

ii) Expenditure (excluding Operating Expenses) 5,379 4,631 4,192 3,827
Gross profit 3,118 2,785 2,184 2,400

The Company has achieved stellar growth in Gross Profit despite revenue reduction due to the excellent performance of

its Cybersecurity subsidiary.

G. Key Financial Ratios:

As per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements 2018) Amendment Regulations 2018, the Company is
required to give details of significant changes (changes of 25% or more compared to the immediately previous Financial

Year) in key financial ratios.
Standalone Ratios :

Ratios Unit March 2023 March 2022
Debtors Turnover Ratio Times 1.98 3.03
Current Ratio Times 7.21 6.28
Debt Equity Ratio Times 0.00 0.00
Net profit Margin % 19.62% 17.76%
Return on Net worth % 6.17% 7.35%

Consolidated ratios :

Ratios Unit March 2023 March 2022
Debtors Turnover Ratio Times 2.21 3.23
Current Ratio Times 6.43 6.22
Debt Equity Ratio Times 0.00 0.00
Net profit Margin % 18.24% 14.61%
Return on Net worth % 6.31% 7.25%

There are no significant changes (Change of 25% or more as compared to last year) in the other key financial ratios that
are identified by the Company except Debtors Turnover Ratio which is decreased significantly on account of decline in

sales andincrease in average receivable.
RISKMANAGEMENT:

There are no changes in the risk perception and mitigation strategies compared to previous years except for relooking at
the Core Business Model.

The Company has developed and adopted a Risk Management Policy that ensures the appropriate management of risks
in line with its internal systems and culture. The Company perceives risk management as a means of value optimization.
The Company also recognizes the importance of internal controls and risk management in sustaining business continuity.
The company endeavors to make risk management and control essential components of the business environment
exposed to different modalities of risks arising from internal and external sources. Risks are assessed department-wise
such as financial risks, information technology-related risks, legal risks, accounting fraud, etc. Itfurther assists the Board
in fulfilling its corporate governance oversight responsibilities about identifying, evaluating, and mitigating operational,
strategic, and external environmentrisks.
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The details of the Committee and its terms of reference are set out in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of
this report.

The following elements of risks can impact the performance of the Company.

. Core Business Model: Over the past two decades, the Company has established undisputed leadership in the Category

of e-Municipality. The Company has earned an exemplary reputation for implementing successful projects when most
other competitors had minimal success. However, the challenges faced in implementing projects successfully, demand
and block vital resources such as Senior management bandwidth, Talented resources Bandwidth, and Financial
resources on a much larger scale than the usual non-govt IT Services business. It poses restrictions on faster growth and
less than usual returns on talent and finances. The Company is evaluating this situation and plans to evolve a mid to long-
term strategy to minimize such impact/risk due to the prevailing core business model of the Company.

. Industry: With the movement to Digital Technologies, ABM will have to tweak its offerings by making necessary sales and

solution strategy changes.

. Supply-side risk for talent acquisition: The IT industry is characterized by its constant supply constraints due to

technological advancements and personal growth sought by the employees. With a growing customer base and mission-
critical projects, the unavailability of the right skilled resources at the righttime in the correct quantity can pose arisk.

ABM has adopted a strategy of taking fresh graduates and training them specifically for technologies and domain-specific
to ABM. Further, the Company constantly trains and re-trains existing resources for different skills and technologies.
Suitable HR practices are adopted to minimize the attrition rate. Lateral hiringis done to bringin freshleaders.

. Operational efficiency: The operational risk is mainly associated with client acquisition, execution of projects,

information security and continuity of customer's business operations. The Company has project-level monitoring where
such risks are identified and escalated to the board for suitable corrective measures on time. Security measures for WFH
employees have been implemented for safe access of ABM servers. In addition, employees are regularly updated on the
cyberrisks and care to be taken while using remote access.

. Reputation: The Company's projects are in the Government sector, which is necessarily funded by public finance. This

aspect may expose the Company to the risk of motivated public scrutiny from elements that are adversely affected by the
success of the project, leading to transparency and sometimes competition. The Company strictly follows the Govt.
processes of procurement. It executes projects with the highest possible standards of ethics and the best industry
processes. Employees are made aware of the company policy and ensure the proper code of conduct is followed
uniformly across projects. The Company has published its code of conduct for the benefit of employees. This has been
helping the Company so far to win over the confidence of customers, even in situations of motivated public scrutiny aimed
athurting the reputation of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE
ANDTHE DATE OF THE REPORT:

No planned material changes or commitments made by Company will affect the Company's financial position during the
period mentioned above except the continued investment in the Silicon Valley based Agri tech company as intimated
earlierto Stock Exchange. The liquid cash available with the Company is being utilized for this acquisition.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct and ethics for all Board Members and Senior Management and this is
strictly adhered to. A copy of the Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company www.abmindia.com. In
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addition, members of the Board and Senior Management also submit, on an annual basis, the details of individuals to
whom they are related and entities in which they hold interest and such disclosures are placed before the Board. The
members of the Board inform the Company of any change in their directorship(s), chairmanship(s) / membership(s) of the
Committees, in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

The members of the Board and Senior Management have affirmed their compliance with the Code and a declaration
signed by the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company annexed to this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE COMPOSITION:

The Composition of the Audit Committee is as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.
The Constitution, meetings, attendance and other details of the Audit Committee are given in the Corporate Governance
Reportwhichis part of the Report. During the year all the recommendations of the Audit Committee were accepted by the
Board.

VIGIL MECHANISM :

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act and rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors had approved
the Policy on Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to provide a mechanism for the Directors and employees to report
their grievances, genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, and violation of the Company’s
Code of Conduct.

As per the requirements of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the Company confirms that no personnel have been
denied access to the Audit Committee. Furthermore, there were no complaints reported during the year under the vigil
mechanism.

Brief details about the policy are provided in the Corporate Governance Report attached to this Report. The Whistle
Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015, the Company has in place a Code of Conduct to Regulate,
Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders, the disclosure requirements and procedure thereto. The Company endeavors to
preserve the confidentiality of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and to prevent misuse of such information. With
respect to this, the Company has also developed a Code for Procedure for Inquiry in case of Leak of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information. This code is prepared in accordance with Regulation 9(1) and Schedule B of the SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulation 2015 as amended by SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulation, 2020.
The Company regularly reminds the Employees about their obligation under the policies and also informs about
prevention of insider trading into the securities of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for implementation of the Code. All Board of Directors and the designated
employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

In line with requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and amendment to the Listing Regulations, your Company has
formulated a revised Policy on Related Party Transactions which is also available at Company’s website
www.abmindia.com. The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place

forall transactions between the Company and Related Parties.

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval for its review and approval. Prior
omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on an annual basis, which is reviewed and updated on quarterly
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basis. None of the Directors of the Company have any significant pecuniary relationships or transactions with the
Company.

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the Business and on Arm’s Length
basis. No Material Related Party Transactions, as per the materiality threshold adopted by the Board of Directors, were
entered during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under
Section 134 (3) (h) of the Companies Act,2013in Form AOC-2is not applicable.

ANNUAL RETURN:

As required, pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return of the Company in Form
MGT-7 for FY 2022-23, is available on the Company’s website at
https://abmindia.com//uploads/Final%20Category%20wise/20230707172501 Annual Return 2022-2023.pdf

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Social responsibility has always been at the forefront of ABM’s operating philosophy and as a result the Company
consistently contributes to socially responsible activities. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is deep rooted in the
Company’s core values of quality, reliability and trust and driven by our aspiration for excellence in the overall performance
of our business. Being a responsible corporate citizen, our CSRinitiatives are focused at delivering maximum value to the
society. Company’s approach to CSR has been more than justcompliance.

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company and the initiatives undertaken by the
Company on CSR activities during the year are set outin Annexure of this reportin the format prescribed in the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. In compliance with requirements of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Company has laid down a CSR Policy which is published on its website www.abmindia.com.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS,GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

There were no loans or guarantees given by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year
underreview. The Particulars of investments have been disclosed in the Financial Statements.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT (POSH) AT WORKPLACE:

The Company is committed to ensuring that all employees work in an environment that not only promotes diversity and
equality but also mutual trust, equal opportunity and respect for human rights. The Company is also committed to provide
awork environmentthat ensures every employee is treated with dignity, respect and afforded equal treatment.

The Company has adopted a Policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules thereunder. The
Company has also formed an “Internal Complaints Committee” for prevention and redressal of sexual harassment at
workplace. While maintaining the highest governance norms, the Company has appointed external independent person
who works in this area and has the requisite experience in handling such matters, as member of Internal Complaints
Committee. The Company has ensured a wide dissemination of the Policy and have conducted various online / offline
training sessions and awareness programmes for all employees across the Company. The Company has not received any
complaint of sexual harassment during the Financial Year 2022-2023.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as required under Section 197 of Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 5 (1) Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 have been
appended as Annexure to this Report. Details of employee remuneration as required under provisions of Section 197 of
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the Act and Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Rules, is provided in a separate annexure forming part of this report. Further, the
report and the accounts are being sent to the members excluding the aforesaid annexure. Interms of Section 136 of the
Act, the said annexure is open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. Any shareholder interested in
obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

Your Company consumes energy mainly for the operation of its software development, thus the consumption of electricity
is negligible. In order to conserve the electricity, the air conditioners are kept at a moderate temperature and all the
electrical equipment are turned off, whenever they are not required by the office staff.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,ADOPTION & INNOVATION AND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:

ABM is building competence in new areas like Digital Technologies,5DBIM etc. Automation of internal processes by
adhering to quality processes is also a focus area. There is no specific budget for R and D, however continuous
technologicalimprovement of flagship solutions are being done regularly.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo as required under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
8(8) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are mentioned below:

(¥ In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31* March, 2023 | For the year ended 31* March, 2022
Foreign Exchange Earnings 0.00 0.00
Foreign Exchange Outgo* 1,303.88 26.00

* Foreign Exchange Outgo for the current year includes investment in Scanit Technologies, INC (“Scanit”), California,
Silicon Valley, USA.

LISTING FEES:

The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited, Mumbai and the Annual Listing fees for the year under review
have been paid.

OTHER DISCLOSURES:
Duringthe year underreview:

o no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status of the Company or its operations;

o no proceedings are made or pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and there is no instance of
one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution;

. no public deposits as defined under ChapterV of the Act have been accepted by the Company.
o there has been nochange in the nature of business of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuantto Section 134 of the Act, the Board of Directors hereby confirm that:

a) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that no
material departures have been made from the same;
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b)  They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
Financial Year and of the Profit or Loss of the Company for that period;

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
otherirregularities;

d)  Theyhave preparedthe Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;

e) They have laid down internal financial controls for the Company and such internal financial controls are adequate
and operating effectively; and

f) They have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board places on record its deep appreciation to all Shareholders, Business Associates, Clients, Vendors, Banks,

Financial Institutions, Central and State Government Organizations, Regulatory Authorities, for their continued

co-operation and support which was a great help to us in managing our continued growth. We acknowledge their

contributions and commit ourselves to continue and strengthen this fruitful alliance in all times to come.

Your Board of Directors would like to convey their sincere appreciation for the wholehearted support and contributions

made by all the employees at all levels of the Company for their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and dedication during

theyear.
For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/ - Sd/ -
Date : 26" May, 2023 Prakash B. Rane Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar
Place: Mumbai Managing Director Director
(DIN: 00152393) (DIN: 00108866)
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Pursuant to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

A Brief Outline of the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy:

The objective of CSR policy of the Company is to directly / indirectly undertake projects / programs which will enhance the
quality of life and economic well-being of communities in and around our society at large. This policy focuses on
addressing social, environmental and economic needs of underprivileged sections of the society and also a sustainable
development for the society. The Company has identified education, environment protection, protection of art & Culture
asthe areas, healthcare where assistance is provided on a need-based and case-to-case basis. Your Company persisted
with participation in such activities at the local, grass-root level during the year. The contributions in this regard have been
made to the registered trust which is undertaking these schemes.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company, as approved by the Board of the Directors, is available
onthe Company’s website at www.abmindia.com.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr. Name of Directors Designation / Number of meetings|Number of meetings
No. Nature of Directorship of CSR Committee | of CSR Committee
held during the year| attended during
the year

Non-Executive Director,

1 | Mrs. Supriya P. Rane Chairperson 4 4

2 | Mr. Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar Independent Director, 4 4
Member

3 | Dr. Sumit D. Chowdhary Independent Director, 4 3
Member

4 | Mr. Ashokkumar Dugade Independent Direcior, 4 2
Member

The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company.

The composition of the CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects as approved by the board are available on our
website, at www.abmindia.com.

The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not Applicable.

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the Financial Year, if any: Not Applicable.

Sr. Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set-off for

No. Financial Year preceding Financial Years (in Rs) the Financial Year, if any (in Rs)

Not Applicable

Average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): ¥21,64,82,489/-
a) Two percentofaverage net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): I43,29,650/-
b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous FinancialYears.: Nil

c) Amountrequiredto be set off for the Financial Year, if any: Nil

2
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d) Total CSRobligation forthe FinancialYear(7a+7b-7c).: ¥43,29,650/-
8. a) CSRamountspentforthe FinancialYear:343,50,000/-
b) Details of CSRamount spentagainst ongoing projects for the Financial Year: Nil.
c) Details of CSRamount spentagainst otherthan ongoing projects for the FinancialYear:
Sr.| Name of the |ltem from|Local| Location of| Amount Mode Mode of implementation -
No. Project the list of| area | the project | spent for of Through implementing
activities | (Yes/ the impleme- agency
in No) project | ntation -
schedule (in %)) Direct CSR
VIl to State |District (Yes/ Name registration
the Act No) number
Vocational training,
1. |self - employment | (i) Yes | Maharashtra, | 344 q0g | o | SalamBombay |nop50009gg
traini Mumbai Foundation
raining
Medical Aid and . Maharashtra, Shublaxmi
2. Education (i) Yes Mumbai 3,00,000 No Pragati Mandal CSR00006174
. . Omkar Andh
5. [Medical Aid and () No | Maharashtra, | 55 54 509 No | Apang Samajik |CSR00003196
Education Nashik
Sanstha.
Medical Aid and . Maharashtra, Dapoli Education
% | Education ® No Dapoll 250,000 | No | gociety CSR00024186
5 Medlcgl Aid and (ii) No | AcrossIndia | 3,00,000 No Expa India CSR00040187
Education
Total 43,50,000
d) Amountspentin Administrative Overheads: Nil.
e) Amountspentonimpact Assessment,if applicable: Not Applicable.
f) Totalamountspentforthe Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): I43,50,000/-
g) Excessamountforsetoff,ifany: Nil.
9. a) Details of Unspent CSR amountforthe preceding three FinancialYears: Nil.
b) Details of CSR amount spent in the Financial Year for ongoing projects of the preceding Financial Year(s):
Not Applicable.
10. Whether any capital assets have been created oracquired through CSR amount spentinthe FinancialYear: No.
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section

135(5).: Not Applicable.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/ -
Prakash B. Rane
Managing Director
(DIN: 00152393)

e

Sd/ -
Supriya P. Rane
Chairperson, CSR Committee
(DIN: 00152890)

Date : 26" May, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration Under Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 5 (1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

1. The Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the Employees of the Company for
the Financial Year 2022-2023, the percentage increase in remuneration of Directors, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary during the Financial Year 2022-2023

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief financial Officer and Company Secretary during the
Financial Year 2022-2023, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employee of the
Company for the Financial Year 2022-2023 as under:

Sr. Name of Directors and Designation Ratio of remuneration % increase in
No. Key Managerial Personnel of each Director remuneration in
to median remuneration the Financial
of employees Year 2022-2023
1 Mr. Prakash B. Rane Managing Director 54.42 1%
2 Mrs. Supriya P. Rane Non-Executive Director 0.81 8%
3 Mr. Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar Non-Executive Director 1.13 6%
4 Dr. Sumit D. Chowdhary Non-Executive Director 0.75 (8%)
5 Mr. Devendra K. Parulekar Non-Executive Director 0.69 (21%)
6 Mr. Ashokkumar Dugade Non-Executive Director 0.44 (46%)
7 Mr. Punit Kumar Jain Non-Executive Director 0.44 17%
8 Mr. Paresh M. Golatkar Chief Financial Officer 3.44 12%
9 Mrs. Sarika A. Ghanekar Company Secretary 3.83 11%
2. The Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year: The Median remuneration

ofthe employeesin the Financial Year have increased by 9%.

3. The Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 422 employees excluding full time associates and in
house consultants as of March, 2023.

4. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in
the last Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration: The average percentile increase in Salaries of employees is approximately 7% other than managerial
remuneration. Managerial remuneration during the yearhave increased by 1%.

5. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors: During the year no
commission have been paid to any of the Executive or Non-executive directors of the company due to inadequacy of profits
of the Company as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V. Commission to Executive and Non-
executive directors is the variable component of their remuneration. Key parameters for determining the same are
provided in the remuneration policy of the Company.

6. Affirmation that the remunerationis as per the remuneration policy of the Company: Yes, the remunerationis as per
the remuneration policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/ - Sd/ -
Date : 26" May, 2023 Prakash B. Rane Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar
Place: Mumbai Managing Director Director
(DIN: 00152393) (DIN: 00108866)

C2m)

©



ABMY

30" ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Governance for your Company means being true to own belief and constantly strengthening and increasing
stakeholders’ value and return on investment by adopting principles of transparency, accountability and adherence of
committed value creation principles. We are firm in our belief that Corporate Governance means commitment for
achieving of value-based growth and meeting the commitment within predefined time frame without compromising with
ethical standards, set paradigms, transparency in transactions and fixing of accountability. At ABM, Corporate
Governance is a continuous process. ABM recognizes that Corporate Governance is notjusta principle to be followed but
away of life embedded inits behavior and culture.

Your Company believes that sustainable and long-term growth of every stakeholder depends upon the judicious and
effective use of available resources and consistent endeavor to achieve excellence in business along with active
participation in the growth of society, building of environmental balances and significant contribution in economic growth.

At ABM, we are committed to doing things the right way which means taking business decision and acting in a way that is
ethical and in compliance with applicable legislations. The Company has established systems, procedures and policies
to ensure thatits Board of Directors is well informed and well equipped to discharge its overall responsibilities and provide
the Management with the strategic direction catering to exigency of long-term shareholders value.

We follow the policy of continual disclosure of accurate financial and governance information on our website to ensure
investors awareness and protection. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance lays strong emphasis on
integrity, transparency, accountability and full disclosure in all facets of its operations to achieve the highest standards of
Corporate Governance. The Company recognizes the importance of good Corporate Governance, which is a tool for
building a strong and everlasting beneficial relationship with the customers, suppliers, bankers and most importantly with
investors.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) regulates corporate governance for listed companies through SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Your Company confirms the compliance of
Corporate Governance as contained in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
details of which are given below:

|. BOARDOFDIRECTORS:

The Company understands that good and quality governance is a powerful competitive differentiator and critical to
economic and social progress. The “Board” being the trustee of the Company, responsible for the establishment of
cultural, ethical and accountable growth of the Company, is constituted with high level of integrated, knowledgeable and
committed professionals. The Board operates independently, ensuring the integrity of its decision-making process and
consistently emphasizes the values of transparency, accountability, equity and responsibility, setting a strong example for
all employees and stakeholders. The Board diligently fulfils its duties and obligations as prescribed by Regulation 17 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations of 2015 commonly known as the Listing Regulations,
and otherrelevantlaws.

The Board is entrusted and empowered to oversee the management, direction and performance of the Company with a
view to protect interest of the stakeholders and enhance value for shareholders. The Board monitors the strategic
direction of the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management serves the short and long-
term interests of stakeholders. This belief is reflected in our governance practices, under which we strive to maintain an
effective, informed and independent Board. The Board of Directors have ultimate responsibility for the management,
general affairs, direction, performance and long-term success of business as a whole. The Board has delegated the
operational conduct of the business to the Managing Director of the Company. The Management Committee of the
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Company is headed by the Managing Director and has business / functional heads as its members, which look after the
management of the day-to-day affairs of the Company.

The composition of the Board is in conformity with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(‘Listing Regulations’) as amended from time to time. SEBI Listing Regulations enjoining specified combination of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors with at least one Women Director and not less than fifty per cent of the Board
comprising of Independent Directors. As on date of this Annual report, the Board consists of Seven Directors comprising
One Executive Director, Five Independent and One Non-executive Woman Director. The Independent Directors of the
Company have been appointed for a term of 5 years in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Act and are not
eligible to retire by rotation. The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and
experience and enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. The
profile of Directors can be found at our website at www.abmindia.com.

The Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors on the Board are well qualified, experienced, competent
and highly renowned persons from various fields. They take active part at the Board and Committee Meetings by
providing valuable guidance & expert advice to the Management on various aspects of business, policy direction,
governance, compliance etc. and play critical role on strategic issues, which enhances the transparency and add value in
the decision-making process of the Board of Directors. All the directors are expected to attend each Board Meeting and
each Committee meeting of which they are members, unless there are exceptional reasons preventing them from
participating. Only members of the Committees are entitled to attend Committee Meetings, but others may attend at
Committee Chair’s discretion.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, seven Board Meetings were held on 18" April, 2022, 27" May, 2022, 12" August, 2022,
30" September, 2022, 10" November, 2022, 03" February, 2023 and 28" March, 2023. The interval between any two
Board Meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of 120 days. The previous Annual General Meeting (AGM) of
the Company held on 04" August, 2022 was attended by all the Directors except Mr. Devendra Parulekar.

The Board on the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, approved the
re-appointment of Mr. Devendra Parulekar (DIN:06705320) as an Independent Director of the Company, for a second term
of 5(five) consecutive years with effect from 10" August, 2023 to 9" August 2028 subject to approval of the Shareholders.
As per the provisions of Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations, approval of Shareholders, for appointment/re-appointment
of Directors on the Board shall be taken either at the next General Meeting or within a time period of three months from the
date of appointment/re-appointment, whicheveris earlier. Mrs.Supriya P Rane, who is director liable to retire by rotation,
has expressed her eligibility for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders. The proposals seeking approval of Shareholders for appointment/ re-appointment of the Directors form a
partofthe Notice in this Annual Report.

Composition and Directorship(s)/ Committee Membership(s)/ Chairmanships (s) as on 31* March 2023:

The details of each Member of the Board along with the number of Directorship(s) / Committee Membership(s)/
Chairmanship(s), date of joining the Board and their shareholding in the Company are provided herein below: -
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MU S [ Number| Number of |GiEt SRR .
Name of the Directors Date of Shares of D|r_ectorsh|p in Committees Du"ectorshlp
& Category Joining held Board in other of Board of in other
the Board | ;. ihe [Meetings Public other Public Listed Entity
Company attended|Companies# Companies##
Mr. Prakash B. Rane . . )
(Executive-Managing Director) 27/04/2000| 95,42,300 7 Nil Nil Nil
Mrs. Supriya P. Rane
priya . ™ 27/04/2000 |24,54,000| 7 Nil Nil Nil
(Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar 98/10/2010 i . 4 5 :jndependent
. I irector in
(Independent Director) Ashoka Buildcon
Limited &
Dreamfolks
Services Limited
Dr. Sumit Chowdhury 28/03/2016|  Nil 6 Nil Nil Nil
(Independent Director) ! ! ! !
Mr. Devendra Parulekar 10/08/2018 Nil 5 Nil Nil Nil
(Independent Director) ! ! ! !
Mr. Ashokkumar V. Dugade 01/04/2020 Nil 4 Nil Nil Nil
(Independent Director) ! ! ! !
Mr. Punit Kumar Jain 04/09/2020|  Nil 7 Nil Nil Nil
(Independent Director) ! ! ! !

#  Excluding Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies and Alternate Directorships.
## Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

All the Directors have made disclosures regarding their directorship and memberships on various Committees across all
Companies in which they are directors and / or members. The number of Directorship(s), Committee Membership(s) /
Chairmanship(s) of all Directors is within respective limits prescribed under the Act and Listing Regulations as amended
from time to time. None of the Directors are related to each other except Mr. Prakash B. Rane and Mrs. Supriya P. Rane,
who are husband and wife.

The Company has obtained a certificate from Mr. Upendra Shukla, Practicing Company Secretary, under Regulation
34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of Listing Regulations confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Company by the SEBI
and Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such authority and the same forms part of this Report. In terms of Regulation
25(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of any
circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to
discharge their duties. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has
confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and that they are independent of the management. Further, as required under Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, all the Independent Directors have completed the registration
with the Independent Directors Data bank. None of the Independent Director(s) of the Company resigned before the
expiry of their tenure. The Company has issued letter of appointment to the Independent Directors in the manner as
provided in the Act. The terms and conditions of their appointment have been disclosed on the website of the Company.
The Board includes five Independent Directors as on 31 March, 2023.

The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review the quarterly results and other items on the agenda. Additional
meetings are held, when necessary to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and strategy apart from other
Board businesses. The Board exhibits strong operational oversight with regular presentations in quarterly meetings.
Board meeting dates are finalized in consultation with all directors. The Agenda of the Board / Committee meetings is set
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by the Company Secretary in consultation with the Managing Director of the Company and agenda papers with detailed
notes and other background information, which are essential for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their
duties and functions, are circulated well in advance before the meeting thereby enabling the Board to take proper
decisions. The Agenda for the Board and Committee Meetings covers items set out as per the guidelines in Listing
Regulations to the extent it is relevant and applicable. The Chairman of various Board Committees brief the Board on all
the important matters discussed & decided at their respective committee meetings, which are generally held prior to the
Board meeting. Video / Audio-conferencing facilities are also used to facilitate Directors travelling or located at other
locations to participate in the Meetings.

The minutes of the Board and committee meetings were circulated to all the Directors with comments taken into account
before finalization and confirmed at subsequent Meeting. The Board also reviews the declarations made by all
departmental heads of the Company regarding compliance of all applicable laws on a quarterly basis.

The Company Secretary is responsible for collation, review and distribution of all papers submitted to the Board and
Committees thereof for consideration. The Company Secretary is also responsible for preparation of the Agenda and
convening of the Board and Committee Meetings. The Company Secretary attends all the Meetings of the Board and its
Committees. The Company Secretary advises / assures the Board and its Committees on Compliance and Governance
principles and ensures appropriate recording of minutes of the Meetings.

The Company conducts Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors to enable them to familiarize with the
Company, its Management and its operations so as to gain a clear understanding of their roles, rights and responsibilities
for the purpose of contributing significantly towards the growth of the Company. They are given full opportunity to interact
with Senior Management Personnel and are provided with all the documents required and / or sought by them to have a
good understanding of the Company, its business model and various operations and the industry of which it is a part.
During the familiarization programme, the Company ensures that non-executive directors are introduced to the
organization structure, services, subsidiaries, constitution, board procedures, matters reserved for the Board, major
risks, risk management strategy, compliance mechanism, CSR activities etc. Detailed information about the
familiarization programme can be found on Company’s website at www.abmindia.com.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Board of Directors have laid down Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management, (“the Code”) for all the
Board members and Senior Management Personnel. The Code has been displayed on the Company’s website
www.abmindia.com

Allthe Board members and senior management have confirmed compliance with the Code for the year ended 31% March,
2023. Adeclaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer, is attached and forms part
of this Annual Report.

SEPERATE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING:

In compliance with requirement of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Independent Directors of the Company hold meetings
without presence of Non-Independent Directors or any Management Personnel. These meetings provide opportunity for
the Independent Directors to discuss various matters including:

a) Evaluatingthe performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as awhole;

b) Assessingthe performance of the Managing Director of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors;
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c) Reviewing the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the
Boardthatis necessary forthe Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

During the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2023 one meeting of Independent Directors was held on 28" March, 2023,
which was attended by all the Independent Directors. Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar, the Independent Director chaired
the meeting and established the meeting’s process.

BOARD EVALUATION:

In terms of the requirement of the Act and the Listing Regulations, an annual performance evaluation of the Board is
undertaken where the Board formally assesses its own performance with the aim to improve the effectiveness of the Board
and the Committees. The Board along with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down criteria of
performance evaluation of Board, its Committees and individual Directors.

Criteria for performance evaluation included aspects such as attendance at the meetings, participation and
independence during the meetings, interaction with management, role and accountability, knowledge and proficiency,
impact on the performance of Board/ Committees, contribution made to the Board/ Committees and active participationin
long-term strategic planning. Further, performance evaluation of the Managing Director was based on the
implementation of various plans & policies in the Company, monitoring and implementation of the projects including the
smooth day to day affairs and operations of the Company and finally performance and business achievements of the
Company. During the year, the Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board
committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The exercise
was led by the Managing Director of the Company along with the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. The Evaluation process focused on various aspects of the functioning of the Board and
Committees such as composition of the Board, Board Oversight and effectiveness, performance of Board Committees,
Board skills and structure, etc. Separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors on
parameters such as attendance, contribution and independent judgment.

The outcome of the Evaluation was shared with the Board, Chairman of respective Committees and individual Directors.
The Chairman of respective Board Committees also shared the results of evaluation with the respective Committee
Members. The Board expressed its satisfaction on the process as well as performance of all Directors, Committees and
Board as a whole. It was noted that the Board Members from different backgrounds bring about different
complementarities and deliberations in the Board and Committee Meetings are enriched by such diversity and
complementarities.

COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS:

In compliance with the statutory requirements, the Board has constituted various committees. The Board Committees
play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been constituted to deal with specific areas /
activities as mandated by applicable regulations, which concern the Company and need a closer review. The Board is
responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and fixing the terms of reference of various Committees. The Board
Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined roles which are considered to be
performed by Members of the Board. The Chairman of the respective Committee informs the Board about the summary of
the discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The minutes of the meeting of all Committees are placed before the
Board for review. During the year, all recommendations of Committees of the Board have been accepted by the Board.
Details on the role and composition of these Committees, including the number of meetings held during the Financial Year
andthe related attendance are provided below:
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The Audit Committee comprises of 4 (Four) Non- Executive Independent Directors. All Members are financially literate
and possess sound knowledge of accounts, finance and audit matters.

During the Financial Year 2022-2023, the Committee met five times on 18" April, 2022, 27" May, 2022, 12" August, 2022,
10" November, 2022 and 03" February, 2023.

Following are the details regarding the Composition and attendance of the Committee during the year:

Name of the Director Categories of Director Ou:hlf :t)tt;:jar::tii:gs
Mr. Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar, Chairman | Independent and Non-Executive Director 5
Dr. Sumit D. Chowdhury, Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Devendra Parulekar, Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 3
Mr. Ashokkumar V. Dugade, Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 3

The meetings of Audit Committee are also attended by the Chief Financial Officer, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor
as special invitees. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. The minutes of each Audit
Committee meeting are placed in the next meeting of the Board. The gap between the Audit Committee meetings was in
compliance with the provisions contained in the Act and the Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee also reviews the
functioning of the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company and cases reported thereunder. The Committee plays a pivotal
role in assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibility of overseeing the quality and integrity of Company’s accounting,
auditing and reporting practices. The Audit Committee reinforces the transparency, accuracy and reliability of Company’s
financial operations.

Terms of reference and role of Audit Committee:

. Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information to ensure that the
financial statements are correct, sufficientand credible;

o Reviewing and examining with management the quarterly and annual financial results and the auditors’ report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval;

. Reviewing management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

o Reviewing, approving or subsequently modifying any Related Party Transactions in accordance with the Related
Party Transaction Policy of the Company;

. Recommending the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company and
approval for payment of any other services;

o Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’sindependence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;
. Reviewing managementletters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors;
. Reviewing with management, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor, the adequacy of internal control systems;

. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function and discussing with Internal Auditor any significant finding and
reviewing the progress of corrective actions on such issues;

o Evaluating internalfinancial controls and risk management systems;

. Verifying that the systems for internal controls in relation to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
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C)

are adequate and are operating effectively;
. Reviewing the functioning of the Code of the Company and Whistle Blowing Mechanism.
. Review the financial statements, in particular, the investment made by the subsidiary companies.

The Committee is governed by the terms of reference which are in line with the regulatory requirements mandated by the
Act and Listing Regulations. During the year, the terms of reference of the Committee was updated in line with the
amendments to the Listing Regulations.

STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE :

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (SRC) comprises of three Non-Executive Directors of the Board. The
Shareholders Relationship Committee, apart from reviewing the shares related activities, also looks into the redressal of
shareholder and investor complaints, compliances in respect of dividend payments and transfer of unclaimed amount to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund pursuant to the provisions of Section 125 of the Act. During the year the
Committee met four times on 18" April, 2022, 12" August, 2022, 10" November, 2022 and 03" February, 2023 and same
were also attended by Company Secretary. The Minutes of the SRC Meetings are circulated and noted by the Directors at
Board Meetings.

The attendance of the Members of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was as under:

Name of the Director Status Out of total 4 meet_ings
the attendance is
Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar, Chairman | Independent and Non-Executive Director 4
Mrs. Supriya P. Rane, Member Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Devendra Parulekar, Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 3

In order to serve the shareholders expeditiously, the Board delegated its powers to approve the transfers / transmissions /
dematerialisation / rematerialisation and address the shareholders complaints / requests, the Company Secretary of the
Company. The total numbers of correspondences received from the Investors and resolved during the year under review
were 15.

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is dedicated to ensuring the highest level of service and responsiveness to our
valued shareholders. By promptly addressing grievances and upholding shareholder rights, we strive to foster
transparency, trust, and strong stakeholder relationships.

The Company has designated an e-mail ID egovernance @ abmindia.com for registering the complaints by investors /

shareholders. Mrs. Sarika Ghanekar, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

M/s Universal Capital Securities Pvt. Ltd. is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. All grievances can
be addressed to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at C 101, 247 Park, LBS Road, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400083.
ContactNumber: 28207203-05/28257641.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) is responsible for evaluating the balance of skills, experience,
independence, diversity and knowledge on the Board and for drawing up selection criteria, ongoing succession planning
and appointment procedures for both internal and external appointments. The role of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, inter alia, includes:

e Determine / recommend the criteria for appointment of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors to the
Board;
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e Determine/recommend the criteria for qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Director;

e Evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and prepare a description of the role and
capabilities required for Independent Director(s);

* Review and determine all elements of remuneration package of all the Executive Directors, i.e. salary, benefits,
bonuses etc;

e Formulate criteria and carry out evaluation of each Director’s performance and performance of the Board as awhole.
* Recommendtothe Board, allremunerations, in whatever form, payable to Senior Management;
e Devise apolicy on Board diversity;

e Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed as Key Managerial Personnel
(KMPs) and Senior Management in accordance with the criteria, and recommend to the Board their appointment /
re-appointment or removal;

e Oversee the performance review process for the KMPs and Senior Management with the view that there is an
appropriate cascading of goals and targets across the Company;

* Review the efficacy of HR practices including those for leadership development, rewards and recognition, talent
management and succession planning;

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee presently comprises of four Directors. During the year under review, two
Committee meetings were held on 27" May, 2022 and 17" March, 2023.

The attendance of the Members of Nomination & Remuneration Committee was as under:

Name of the Director Categories of Director Outthoef ;f:tt:rlm :a':z:tii:gs
Dr. Sumit D. Chowdhury, Chairman Independent and Non-Executive Director 2
Mrs. Supriya P. Rane, Member Non-Executive Director 2
Mr. Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar, Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 2
Mr. Ashokkumar V. Dugade, Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 1

The quorum of NRC meeting is either two members or one-third of the members of the Committee, whichever is greater
including at least one Independent Director. The Minutes of NRC Meetings are circulated and noted by the Directors at
Board Meetings. The Company has also devised a policy on board diversity which is available on website of the Company.
Based on the recommendations of NRC, the Board has adopted the Policy relating to selection, appointment and
remuneration of the Directors, KMPs and other employees.

POLICY FOR SELECTION, APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS ANDTHEIR REMUNERATION:

The Directors of the Company are appointed / re-appointed by the Board on the recommendations of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) and approval of the Members at the General Meetings or through means of Postal
Ballot. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company follows defined criteria for identifying, screening,
recruiting and recommending candidates for election as a Director on the Board. For the purpose of appointment of any
Executive Director, the NRC shall identify persons of integrity who possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership
qualities required for the position. The Committee shall also ensure that the incumbent fulfils such other criteria with
regard to age and other qualifications as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws.
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The appointment of Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Management Committee Members and other
employees are by virtue of their employment / contract of service with the Company as management employees and
therefore, theirterms of employment vis-a-vis salary, variable pay, service contract, notice period etc., are governed by the
applicable policies atthe relevant pointintime.

In case of re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the performance evaluation
of the Director and his engagement level. The Non- Executive Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise
and experience so as to have a diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of marketing, finance, taxation,
law, information technology, governance and general management.

The NRC shall consider the following attributes / criteria, whilst recommending to the Board the candidature for
appointment as Non-Executive Director.

i) Qualification, experience and expertise of the Non-Executive Directors in their respective fields;
i)  Personal, professional or business standing;
iii)  Diversity of the Board.

Asregards the appointment of Independent Directors following is the policy adopted by the Board;

1.  The Company has adopted the provisions with respect to appointment and tenure of Independent Directors which
are consistent with the Actand Listing Regulations.

2. As per the provisions of the Act, the Independent Directors shall be appointed for not more than two terms of
maximum of five years each and shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

3. The Company would not have any upper age limit of retirement of Independent Directors from the Board and their
appointment and tenure will be governed by provisions of the Actand the Listing Regulations.

4. The Company shall ensure that the appointment of any Non-Executive Director who has attained the age of 75 years
is approved by the Members of the Company by way of Special Resolution.

Every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he / she participates as a Director and thereafter at
the first meeting of the Board in every Financial Year, gives a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as
provided under law.

The Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Policy considers human resources as its invaluable assets. The said
Policy aims to pay equitable remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and employees of the
Company, to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company. The Remuneration
Policy for all employees is designed to attract talented personnel and remunerate them fairly and responsibly, this being a
continuous ongoing exercise at each level in the organization.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers the outcome of the annual Evaluation before recommending the
changesinthe remuneration of the Executive Directors and appointment/re-appointment of Directors.

The remuneration of the Managing Director is reviewed by the NRC based on certain criteria such as industry
benchmarks, Company’s growth and performance and the responsibilities shouldered by him. The remuneration of the
Managing Director comprises salary, perquisites, allowances and benefits and commission. Annual salary incrementand
commission or incentive remuneration is decided by the NRC within the overall ceilings prescribed under the Act and in
line with the terms and conditions approved by the shareholders. The recommendation of the NRC is placed before the
Board forits approval.

Any person who becomes Director or Officer, including an employee who is acting in managerial or supervisory capacity,
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shall be covered under Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance policy. The Company has provided insurance cover in
respect of legal action againstits Directors and employees under the Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance.

The remuneration to Non-Executive Directors comprises of sitting fees and variable commission. The remuneration by
way of commission to the Non-Executive Directors is decided by the Board of Directors and distributed to them based on
their participation and contribution at the Board and certain Committee meetings as well as time spent on matters other
than at meetings. The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are paid sitting fees of ¥20,000/- for attending every
meeting of the Board / Committee thereof. The details of the transactions with related parties during Financial Year 2022-
2023 are provided in the accompanying financial statements.

Remuneration paid to the Board of Directors during the year under review is as follows:

(% In Lakhs)
Name of the Director Status Salary & Perquisites (3)| Commission (%) [Sitting Fees (3)
Mr. Prakash B. Rane Managing Director 193.37 0.00 0.00
Mrs. Supriya P. Rane Director 0.00 0.00 2.60
Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar Director 0.00 0.00 3.60
Dr. Sumit Chowdhury Director 0.00 0.00 2.40
Mr. Devendra Parulekar Director 0.00 0.00 2.20
Mr. Ashokkumar V. Dugade Director 0.00 0.00 1.40
Mr. Punit Kumar Jain Director 0.00 0.00 1.40
Total (T) 193.37 0.00 13.60

Skills/Expertise/ Competencies of the Board of Directors:

The Board comprises of qualified members who possess required skills, expertise and competencies that allow them to
make effective contributions to the Board and its Committees. In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, the Board
has identified the following skills / expertise / competencies for the effective functioning of the Company.

1. Business Leadership: Innate leadership skills including ability to appropriately represent the organization; set
appropriate Board and organization Culture and make and take responsibility for decisions and actions.

2. Strategy and Strategic Planning: Ability to think strategically and identify and critically assess strategic
opportunities and threats and develop effective strategies in the context of strategic objectives of the company’s
relevant policies and priorities.

3. Finance & Accounting: Qualifications and experience in accounting and/or finance and ability to analyze key
financial statements, financial performance; contribute to strategic financial planning; oversees budgets and the
efficient use of resources; oversees funding arrangements resources; oversees funding arrangements and
accountability.

4. Risk: Ability to identify key risks to the organization in a wide range of areas including legal and regulatory
compliance, and monitor risk and compliance management frameworks and systems.

5. Law: Expertknowledge of Corporate Law and overseeing compliance with other applicable laws.

6. Information Technology: Knowledge and experience in the strategic use and governance of information
management and information technology within the organization.

7. Commercial: broad range of commercial/business experience in areas including communications, marketing,
branding and business systems, practices and improvement.

8. Marketing: Knowledge of and experience in marketing services to business clients.
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Givenbelow is a List of core skills, expertise and competence of the Individual Directors:

. Strategy Finance :
Name of the Director ngzler:(:f]?p Strz?ggic A &  |Risk|Law !I[gg;w;t;;; Commercial |Marketing
Planning ccounting
Mr. Prakash B. Rane v v v v v v
Mrs. Supriya P. Rane v v
Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar v v v | Vv
Mr. Devendra Parulekar v v v v v
Dr. Sumit Chowdhury v v v v v
Mr. Ashokkumar V. Dugade v v
Mr. Punit Kumar Jain v v

Directors:

Detailed profile of Director being re-appointed, Director retiring by rotation and being eligible, seeking re-appointment and
fixation of remuneration of Director is as below. The same has also been covered under Notice which is forming part of the
Annual Report of the Company.

Mr. Devendra Parulekar: Mr. Devendra Parulekar is a management graduate with over 20+ years of experience in the
Information Technology industry with reputed consultancy firms. He has also founded the Cyber Security practice in EY,
India and had grown it exponentially as a Partner and Practice Leader, Cyber Security before moving on to launch his
startup Saffron Stays. Heis passionate abouttechnology, coding, trekking, photography, and swimming.

Mrs. Supriya P. Rane: Mrs. Supriya P. Rane is a Promoter and Non-Executive Director of the Company. She has been
associated with the Company from its inception. She is an Electronic Engineer with a Post Graduate Diploma in System
Management. She has considerable management experience, particularly in systems and processes. She provides
advice and guidance to the Company for its overall growth to make it a dynamic and progressive organization. The
Company has been benefited from her rich experience.

Mr. Prakash B. Rane: Mr. Prakash B. Rane is the Founder and Managing Director of the Company. He holds a B.Tech.
and has a PG Degree in Management Studies (M.M.S.) and has been associated with the Company for the last 25 years.
He has an excellent academic record. He has extensive experience in the field of e-governance. Under his guidance, the
Company has attained a leadership position in the niche sector of e-governance in a short span of time. He has
conceptualized various pioneering and successful strategic solutions in e-governance which have become the
benchmarkintheindustry.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was formed pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended, read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021, to formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VIl to the Act, to
recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on such activities, action plan and to monitor the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time. The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company
(“CSR Policy”) is available on the website of the Company.

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the details on the number of Meetings held and
attended by the Members during the Financial Year 2022-2023 are given below:
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Name of the Director Status Out of total 4 meet_lngs
the attendance is
Mrs. Supriya P. Rane, Chairperson Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar, Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 4
Dr. Sumit Chowdhury, Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 3
Mr. Ashokkumar V. Dugade, Member Independent and Non-Executive Director 2

During the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2023, the Committee met four times on 27" May, 2022, 12" August, 2022,
10" November, 2022 and 03" February, 2023.

During the Financial Year 2022-2023, the Committee approved the CSR activities and monitored the progress on CSR
activities undertaken by the Company on quarterly basis. The Company has been able to spend the mandatory 2% of
average net profits of immediately preceding 3 years on various CSR activities, the details of which are given in CSR
Reportapproved by the Committee and attached to the Director’s Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE :

The Risk Management Committee of the Company comprises Mr. Prakash B. Rane as the Chairman and
Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar and Mr. Govind Singh Chauhan as members of the Committee. This Committee plays a
vital role in enhancing the Company’s governance, risk management, sustainability and compliance practices.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the risk management framework of the
Company, focusing on the strategic risks and reviewing the progress of the mitigation plan. It reviews, assesses the
quality, integrity and effectiveness of the Risk Management plan and systems and ensures that the risk policies and
strategies are effectively managed by the management and that risks taken are within the agreed tolerance and appetite
levels.

During the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2023, the Committee met four times on 27" May, 2022, 12" August, 2022,
10™ November, 2022 and 03" February, 2023. The quorum of RMC Meetings is two Members or one third of the Members,
whichever is greater and the gap between two meetings was not more than 180 days. The Company has formulated a Risk
Management Policy to establish an effective and integrated framework for the risk management process. The Minutes of
the RMC Meetings are circulated to the Board of Directors along with Agenda for subsequent Board Meetings.

The attendance of each member of the Committee is given below:

Name Status Out of total 4 meet'ings
the attendance is
Mr. Prakash B. Rane, Founder & Managing Director Chairperson 4
Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar, Independent and Non-Executive Director | Member 4
Mr. Govind Singh Chauhan Member 4

Code for prevention of Insider-trading practices:

In compliance with SEBI regulations on prevention of insider trading, the Company has implemented a Code of Conduct to
Regulate, Monitor, Report Trading by Designated Persons to deter the insider trading in the securities of the Company
based on the unpublished price sensitive information (UPSI). The objective of this Code is to prevent misuse of any
unpublished price sensitive information and prohibit any insider trading activity, in order to protect the interest of the
shareholders at large. All the Directors, employees and third parties such as auditors, consultants etc. who could have
access to the unpublished price sensitive information of the Company are governed by this code. The Code also
envisages procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing in the securities of the Company. The
Company has also established policies for handling leaks of unpublished price-sensitive information and determining
legitimate purposes. To ensure compliance, the Company maintains a Structural Digital Database (SDD) internally,
capturing all relevant details pertaining to UPSI. The trading window is closed during the time of declaration of results and
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occurrence of any material events as per the code. The Company has appointed Mrs. Sarika Ghanekar, Company
Secretary as Compliance Officer, who is responsible for setting forth procedures and implementation of the code for
tradingin Company’s securities. During the year under review there has been due compliance with the said code.

Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, as part of Vigil Mechanism to provide appropriate avenues to all
individuals associated with the Company to bring to the attention of the Management any issue which is perceived to be in
violation of or in conflict with the Code of conduct of the Company. The Company has provided dedicated e-mail
addresses whistleblower @ abmindia.com for reporting such concerns. Alternatively, individuals can also send written

communications to the Company. The employees are encouraged to voice their concerns by way of Whistle Blowing and
all the employees have been given access to the Audit Committee. The Policy provides an avenue to every employee and
every person as defined therein to report concerns directly to the Management or to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee. The Company Secretary is the designated officer for effective implementation of the Policy and dealing with
the complaints registered under the Policy. All cases, registered under the Code and the Whistle Blower Policy of the
Company, are reported to the management and are subject to the review of the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower
Policy is available on the website of the Company.

Fees paid to Auditors :

The total fees for all services paid by the Company and the subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the M/s. Borkar &
Muzumdar, Chartered Accountants Statutory Auditors and all the entities in the network firm / network entity of which
Statutory Auditorsis partduring the Financial Year2022-2023is%11,50,000/- (excluding taxes).

Certification by Chief Executive Officer:

The certificate of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on the financial statements and the cash flow
statement for the year is annexed at the end of the report on Page No. 56 . The said certificate is signed by Mr. Prakash B.
Rane, Managing Director and Mr. Paresh Golatkar, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION :
a) GeneralInformation:

30" Annual General Meeting

Date : 09" August, 2023
Time : 11.00a.m.
Venue : Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual

Means facility (Deemed Venue for Meeting: Registered Office: ABM House, Plot
No.268, Linking Road, Bandra (West), Mumbai- 400 050).

Date of Book closure : Thursday, 03 August, 2023 to Wednesday 09" August, 2023 (both days
inclusive)

Dividend Payment Date : Onorbefore 07" September, 2023 (subject to shareholder’s approval)

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : L67190MH1993PLC113638

b) AddressforCorrespondence:
Registered Office of the Company:

Shareholder can correspond at the Registered Office of the Company at Mumbai i.e. ABM House, Plot No. 268,
Linking Road, Bandra (West), Mumbai - 400 050.
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c) ShareTransfer Agent:

30" ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Registrar &Share Transfer Agents: M/s. Universal Capital Securities Private Limited, C 101, 247 Park, LBS Road,
VikhroliWest, Mumbai - 400083. Contact Number:28207203-05/28257641.

d) General Body Meetings:

The lastthree Annual General Meetings (AGM) of the Company were held on the following dates and time:

Date Time Address Special Resolution
57" AGM on |10.00 a.m. Meeting conducted through | i) Special Resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Prakash B.
VC / OAVM pursuant to the Rane as Managing Director of the Company for a period
04.09.2020 MCA Circular commencing from 01* April, 2020 to 31* March, 2025.
Meeting conducted through
i 10.30 a.m.
28" AGM on VC / OAVM pursuant to the -
12.08.2021 MCA Circular
Meeting conducted through
i 11.00 a.m.
23 AC;M;;n VC / OAVM pursuant to the -
04.08.20 MCA Circular

Postal Ballot:

No Special Resolution was passed by the Company last year through Postal Ballot. No Special Resolution is
proposed to be passedthrough Postal Ballot as on the date of this Annual Report.

e) Financial Calendar2023-2024
(Tentative and subject to change)
e Financial Results for the:
Quarterending 30" June, 2023 Within 45 days of end of respective quarter
Quarter ending 30" September, 2023
Quarter ending 31* December, 2023

e Yearending31° March, 2024 By 30" May, 2024
¢ Annual General Meeting 2023-2024 By September, 2024

IV. OTHERDISCLOSURES:

The Company has followed accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) as specified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provision of the Act while preparing
financial statements.

There were no non-compliances by the Company and no instances of penalties and strictures imposed on the Company
by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority on any matter related to the capital market during the last
three years.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards:

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a statutory body, has issued Secretarial standards (SS) on various aspects
of corporate law and practices. The Company has complied with the SS -1 on Board Meetings, SS - 2 on General Meetings
and SS-3 on Dividends.

Disclosure on Materially Significant Related Party Transactions:

During the year, there were no materially significant transactions with the related parties viz. promoters, directors or the
management or their relatives or subsidiary that had potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All details
relating to financial and commercial transactions where Directors may have a pecuniary interest are provided to the Board
and the interested Directors neither participate in the discussion nor vote on such matters. All related party transactions

T
(50



ABMY

are mentioned in the Notes to Accounts. The Related Party Transactions Policy as approved by the Board is uploaded on
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the Company’s website at www.abmindia.com.

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report:

The Company has undertaken a Secretarial audit for the Financial Year 2022-2023 for all applicable compliances as per
Act, SEBI Regulations and Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder.

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report has been submitted to the stock exchange within stipulated time.

Disclosures inrelation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act,2013:

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the Financial Year2022-2023.
Risk Management:

The Company has a Risk Management frame work, by which the information of any risk assessment and minimization
activity would be informed to the Board. A Risk Management Plan of the Company is in place prescribing various probable
risks, theirassessment and mitigation.

Listing at Stock Exchange :

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai Code
No.ABM KNOWLEDGE:531161 and the Company has duly paid the Listing fees as applicable to the Company.

Listingand Market Price Data:

The high and low prices of every month during the Financial Year 2022-2023 are given below:

Month High Low Close Volume (Number)
April 2022 131.40 105.50 113.15 5,90,798
May 2022 116.50 85.00 90.15 2,564,045
June 2022 94.00 65.85 72.85 2,33,086
July 2022 90.10 70.00 85.40 1,33,546
August 2022 96.00 80.30 90.85 1,41,007
September 2022 126.80 87.20 103.65 4,65,057
October 2022 129.75 99.05 117.65 2,59,429
November 2022 126.00 107.05 108.85 1,79,644
December 2022 114.00 88.00 98.80 1,89,256
January 2023 114.05 96.80 98.00 2,79,871
February 2023 103.75 81.00 82.00 1,10,844
March 2023 92.90 73.00 74.24 1,61,908
BSE INDEX Abm share price movement viz-a-viz Sensex ABM VALUE
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Share Transfer System:

All share transfer and other communications regarding share certificates, change of address, dividends, etc. should be
addressed to the M/s. Universal Capital Securities Pvt. Ltd., Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company.
Stakeholders™ Relationship Committee is authorized to approve transfer of shares in the physical segment. The
Committee has delegated authority for approving transfer and transmission of shares and other related matters to the
Company Secretary of the Company. A summary of all the transfers / transmissions etc. so approved by Company
Secretary of the Company is placed at every Committee meeting. All share transfers are completed within statutory time
limit from the date of receipt, provided the documents meet the stipulated requirement of statutory provisions in all
respects.

The Company obtains an annual certificate from Practising Company Secretary as per the requirement of Regulation
40(9) of Listing Regulations and same if filed with the Stock exchange and available on website of the Company.

In terms of amended Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations w.e.f. 1* April, 2019, transfer of securities in physical form shall
not be processed unless the securities are held in the demat mode with a Depository Participant. Further, with effect from
24"January, 2022, SEBI has made it mandatory for listed companies to issue securities in demat mode only while
processing any investor service requests viz. issue of duplicate share certificates, exchange / sub-division / splitting /
consolidation of securities, transmission/ transposition of securities and claim from unclaimed suspense account Vide its
Circular dated 25"January, 2022, SEBI has clarified that listed entities / RTAs shall now issue a Letter of Confirmation in
lieu of the share certificate while processing any of the aforesaid investor service request.

Simplified Norms for processing Investor Service Request:

SEBI, vide its Circular dated 3 November, 2021, as amended from time to time, had made it mandatory for holders of
physical securities to furnish PAN, KYC and Nomination / Opt-out of Nomination details to avail any investor service. The
timeline provided by SEBI to furnish / update the above details was 31 March, 2023, which has now been extended till
30" September, 2023. Folios wherein any one of the above-mentioned details are not registered by 1* October, 2023 shalll
be frozen. Members who are yet to update their KYC details are therefore urged to furnish PAN, KYC and Nomination/ opt
out of Nomination by submitting the prescribed forms duly filled by email from their registered email id to info @ unisec.in or
by sending a physical copy of the prescribed forms duly filled and signed by the registered holders to M/s. Universal Capital
Securities Private Limited at C-101, 247 Park, 1* Floor, LBS Road, Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai- 400083. In
accordance with the SEBI circular dated 16" March, 2023, the Company has sent out intimations to those Members,
holding shares in physical form, whose folios are incomplete with PAN, KYC and/ or Nomination details, requesting them
to update the details so as to avoid freezing of the folios.

A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out a Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) ("Depositories")
and the total issued and listed capital. The said report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital reconciles with the
total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL & CDSL. This report
is sentto the Stock Exchange on a quarterly basis within 30 days from the end of every quarter.
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Shareholding Pattern and Distribution of Shares -as at31* March,2023:

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING
% to the Respective

Category S'\lhc;'rzfs Total Paid up gaéigac:;\; Shareholders Shargholding

Capital Total % Total %
Promoters 13386929 66.93 1-500 4102 | 81.34 479473 2.40
NRIs / OCBs 2094225 10.47 501-1000 450 8.92 367920 1.84
Indian Public 3481517 17.41 1001-2000 209 1.14 323531 1.62
Bodies Corporate 367612 1.84 2001-3000 80 1.59 205060 1.03
Others: 1215 0.01 3001-4000 53 1.05 193423 0.97
HUF 292449 1.46 4001-5000 31 0.61 145767 0.73

learing Members/ Foreign National

clearing Merr ??\,E/Fosiggist;ed ale ai| 71430 036 |5001-10000 | 68| 1.35| 498673| 2.49
IEPF Alc 306823 1.53 10001-Above 50 0.99| 17788353| 88.93
Total 20002200 100.00 5043 |100.00( 20002200 |100.00

Dematerialization of Shares:

The Shares of the Company are compulsory traded in the dematerialized form on Stock Exchange by all investors. Ason
31*March, 2023, 86.37% shares of the Company are held in dematerialized form.

The International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company’s equity shares is ISIN INE850B01026.
Dividend:

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 26" May, 2023, recommended a Final Dividend of ¥1.25/- per equity share
of face value of ¥5/-each for Financial Year ended 31° March, 2023. Final dividend, if approved by shareholders will be
paid on or before Thursday, 7" September, 2023.

Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividends:

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of Companies Act, 2013 and Investor Education and Protection
Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules 2016, dividends not encashed/ claimed within seven years from the
date of declaration are to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority.

The IEPF Rules mandate companies to transfer shares of Members whose dividends remain unpaid / unclaimed for a
period of seven consecutive years or more to the demat account of IEPF established by the Central Government. The
Members, whose dividends/shares are transferred to the IEPF, can claim their shares/dividends from the IEPF Authority.
In accordance with the said IEPF Rules, as amended, the Company had sent notices to all the Members whose shares
were due to be transferred to IEPF requesting them to comply with the requirements to claim back the Dividends and avoid
transfer of shares and had simultaneously published newspaper advertisement for the same.

In the terms of the applicable provisions of the IEPF Rules, ¥ 3,77,122 of unpaid / unclaimed dividends and 16,200 shares
were transferred during the Financial Year 2022-23 to the IEPF. Further, the Company also paid ¥ 319,578.75 to IEPF
towards dividend in respect of shares that had already been transferred to IEPF consequent to dividend remaining unpaid
/ unclaimed for seven consecutive years. The Company has appointed a Nodal Officer under the provisions of IEPF
Rules, details of which are available on the website of the Company at www.abmindia.com. The Company does not have

any shares inthe demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account.

The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed dividend amount lying with the Company as at
31%March, 2022 on the website of the Company at www.abmindia.com and on the website of Ministry of Corporate Affairs

at www.iepf.gov.in. The details of unpaid / unclaimed dividend lying with the Company as on 31* March, 2023 shall be
updated on or before 30" September, 2023.

CEa)
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Governance of Subsidiary Companies:

InstaSafe Technologies Private Limited (“Instasafe”) is subsidiary of ABM. InstaSafe has incorporated a wholly owned
subsidiary Company by name “InstaSafe Inc” in Delaware, United State of America. The operations and performance of
the subsidiary company is reviewed on a quarterly basis as under:

b)  The minutes of the meetings of the Board of the Directors of the subsidiary companies are placed before the
Board of Directors of the Company and the attention of the Directors is drawn to all significant transactions and
arrangement, if any entered into by the subsidiary companies.

b)  The Audit Committee of the Company reviews the financial statements, in particular the investment made by the
subsidiary companies.

The Company has adopted a Policy for determining Material Subsidiary in line with the requirements of the Listing
Regulations and the same is disclosed on the website of the Company. The Company does not have a material subsidiary
as on date of this report, having an income or net worth exceeding 10% of the consolidated income or net worth
respectively, of the Company.

Proceeds from Preferential allotment or Qualified Institutional Placementetc.:

No funds were raised through preferential allotment or Qualified Institutional Placement as per the Regulation 32(7A) of
Listing Regulations.

Credit Ratings:

CRISIL has given the Long-termcredit rating of CRISIL BBB+/ Stable and Short Term as CRISIL A2+ for debt instrument/
facilities of the Company.

Compliance with the discretionary requirements under Listing Regulations:

The Board of Directors periodically reviewed the compliance of all applicable laws and steps taken by the Company to
rectify instances of non-compliance, if any. The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements of Listing
Regulations. In addition, the Company has also adopted the following non-mandatory requirements to the extent
mentioned below:

i) Audit qualifications:
The Company’s financial statements are unqualified.
ii) Reporting of Internal Auditor:
The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to the Audit Committee on functional matters.

The Company has submitted quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance with the Stock Exchange, in
accordance with the requirements of Regulation 27(2)(a) of the Listing Regulations.

The Company has complied with the requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of the
Regulation 46(2) of the Listing Regulations.

Disclosure onWebsite:

Following information has been disseminated on the website of the Company at www.abmindia.com;

1. Details of business of the Company.

o
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2. Composition of various Committees of the Board.

3. Code of Conductand Ethics.

4. Whistle Blower policy.

5. RiskManagement Policy.

6. BoardDiversity Policy.

7. Policy ondealing with Related Party Transactions.

8. Details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors.

9. Termsand conditions of appointment of Independent Directors.

10. Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.
11. Policy for procedure of inquiry in case of leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.
12. Code of Conductto Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders.

13. Corporate Responsibility Policy.

14. Policy on preservation of documents.

15. Policy on Determination of materiality of event.

16. Archival Policy.

17. Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace.

18. Policy fordetermining Material Subsidiary.

19. Nomination & Remuneration Policy.

20. Code of Conductfor Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel.

Means of Communication:

a) The quarterly, half yearly and annual results are published in Navshakti(in Marathi) and Free Press Journal (in
English) within 48 hours from the date of declaration. These are not sentindividually to the Shareholders.

b)  The Company’s website www.abmindia.com contains a dedicated functional segment called “Investors” where all
the information needed by the shareholders is available, including the Shareholding pattern, Financial Results,
Annual Reports, Notices, Statutory Policies, unclaimed / unpaid dividend, details about the Company and Board of
Directors and Management etc.

c) The Company’s dedicated email address for Investors’ Complaints and other communications is
egovernance @abmindia.com.

d) SCORES (SEBI complaints redressal system): SCORES platform of SEBI facilitates online filing of investor
grievance and online view of the status. The Company endeavors to redress the grievance of the Investors as soon
asitreceivesitfromthe SCORES platform.

e) Allprice sensitive information and matters that are material to Members are disclosed to the Stock Exchange where
the securities of the Company are listed. The Quarterly Results, Corporate Governance Report, Shareholding
Pattern and all other corporate communications to the Stock Exchange are filed through BSE Listing Centre, for
dissemination on their website. The Stock exchange filing are also made available on the website of the Company at
www.abmindia.com.

f) The Management Discussion & Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Prakash B. Rane Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar
Date: 26" May, 2023 Managing Director Director
Place: Mumbai (DIN: 00152393) (DIN: 00108866)
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CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE COMPANY

To,

The Board of Directors,
ABM Knowledgeware Limited,

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of ABM Knowledgeware
Limited (“the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

1.

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2023
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain any
statements that might be misleading;

(i) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness of the same
over the financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies
in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to
take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit Committee:
(i) significantchanges, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(i) significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been
disclosedinthe notesto the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial
reporting.

We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Management Committee have confirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Date: 26" May, 2023 Prakash B. Rane Paresh Golatkar
Place: Mumbai Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

(DIN: 00152393)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS

Under Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

TOTHE MEMBERS,
ABMKNOWLEDGEWARE LIMITED

1.

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement communication with ABM Knowledgeware
Limited.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by ABM Knowledgeware Limited (“the
Company”), for the year ended 31* March 2023, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of regulation
46(2) and Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time (“Listing Regulations”) pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the
Company with Stock Exchange.

Management Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the listing regulations is the
responsibility of the Company’s Management including the preparation and maintenance of all the relevant records
and documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and
procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing
Regulations.

Audit Responsibility

Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. ltis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance
whether the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing
Regulations for the year ended March 31, 2023.

We conducted our examination of the above corporate governance compliance by the Company in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) and Guidance Note on
Certification of Corporate Governance both issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”),
in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality
Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and
Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing
Regulations

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

(BN
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Restrictionon Use

10. The certificate is addressed and provided to the Members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling the
Company to comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for
any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or
to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

For Borkar & Muzumdar
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 101569W

Sd/-
Deepak Kumar Jain
Partner
Date: 26" May, 2023 Membership No: 154390
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 23154390BGXYMK7412
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C sub-clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To

The Board of Directors

ABM Knowledgeware Limited
ABM House, Plot No.268
Linking Road, Bandra(W)
Mumbai- 400050

I have examined the relevant registers, records, books, form, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of ABM
Knowledgeware Limited, (CIN L67190MH1993PLC113638), having Registered Office at ABM House, Plot No. 268
Linking Road, Bandra (West) Mumbai 400 050 (the Company), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-clause 10(i) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verification (including Director Identification Number
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanation furnished to me by the Company
and its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial
Year ended on 31* March, 2023 has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and/ or Ministry of Corporate Affairs:

:;'. Name of the Director & DIN Designation Dait:: tohfeAgg;i:;r;m
1 Mr. Prakash B. Rane (DIN: 00152393) Managing Director 27/04/2000
2 Mrs. Supriya P. Rane (DIN: 00152890) Non-Executive Director 27/04/2000
3 Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar (DIN: 00108866) Independent Director 28/10/2010
4 Dr. Sumit D. Chowdhury (DIN: 02117586) Independent Director 28/03/2016
5 Mr. Devendra Parulekar (DIN: 06705320) Independent Director 10/08/2018
6 Mr. Ashokkumar V. Dugade (DIN: 02922248) Independent Director 01/04/2020
7 Mr. Punit K. Jain (DIN: 07325636) Independent Director 04/09/2020

Note: Ensuring the eligibility for appointment/continuing as Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion based on verification of documents / information available to
me. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sd/-
UDIN: F002727E000394503 (UPENDRA C. SHUKLA)
Date: 26" May, 2023 COMPANY SECRETARY
Place: Mumbai FCS: 2727/CP No: 1654
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FORM No. MR 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
ABM Knowledgeware Limited,

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by ABM Knowledgeware Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has during the
audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31* March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also thatthe Company has proper Board process and compliance mechanismin place to the extent, in the mannerand
subjectto the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the ABM
Knowledgeware Limited for the Financial Year ended on 31 March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), Overseas Direct Investment (ODI) and External Commercial borrowing (ECB)
- as confirmed by the management, the Company does not have any FDI and ECB. The Company has made ODI
under automatic route.

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
I reportthat during the year under review there was no action/eventin pursuance of —

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018

c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021;

(o)
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(vi)

Note:

d) Securities and Exchange Board of India(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;and

f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with the client.

The Acts / Guidelines specifically applicable to the Company: The management has confirmed that there is no
specificlaw as identified and applicable to the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2)
issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India.

b) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Listing Agreement
entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned here in above:

| furtherreportthat—

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors during the year under review. There was no change in composition of the Board
of Directors during the year under review.

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sentin advance duly complying with the time limits specified and a system exits for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the chairman, the decisions of the Board were
unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

| further report that based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorised representatives
during the conduct of the audit and also on the review of quarterly compliance reports of respective department
heads / Company Secretary, which are reviewed by the Managing Director, in my opinion adequate systems and
processes and control mechanism exists commensurate with the size and operation of the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable general laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax laws has
not been reviewed in this audit since the same is subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated
professionals.

| further report that during the audit period, there was no specific event / action in pursuance to the laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, etc. as referred to above, having major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

Sd/-

Date: 26" May, 2023 UDIN: F002727E000389511 (U.C. SHUKLA)

. . . COMPANY SECRETARY
Pl M Peer Review Certificate No. 1882/2022
ace: Mumbai FCS: 2727/CP: 1654

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE A’ and forms an integral part of

thisreport.
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ANNEXURE A
To,
The Members,
ABM Knowledgeware Limited

My report of even date is to be read with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the process and practices, | followed, provide
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. lhave notverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4.  Where ever required, | have obtained the management representation about the compliance of the laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the
responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sd/-
(U.C. SHUKLA)
Date: 26" May, 2023 COMPANY SECRETARY
Place: Mumbai FCS: 2727/CP: 1654
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TOTHE MEMBERS OF
ABM KNOWLEDGEWARELIMITED

Reportonthe Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ABM KNOWLEDGEWARE LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group”),which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the year then ended on that date, a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated
profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the
yearended on thatdate.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountant of India
(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a Separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters tobe communicated in our report.
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Sr. No

Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

01

Revenue Recognition (refer to the summa

ry of significant accounting policies in point 2.02 (b) and

the disclosures in note 2.25 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group derives significant portion of
its revenue from long-term projects.
Estimation of efforts is a critical estimate to
determine revenues for contract. This
estimate has a high inherent uncertainty as
it requires consideration of progress of the
contract, efforts incurred till date, efforts
required to complete the remaining contract
performance obligations. Some of the
contracts have complex terms and
conditions requiring management analysis,
judgement and application of guidance for
appropriate recognition of revenue and the
corresponding balances of accounts
receivables, unbilled revenues and
deferred revenues. In consideration of
certain key judgements and principles used
for recognition of revenue we have identified
this matterto be a key audit matter.

We have performed walkthrough and understood the
process and tested key controls associated with the
revenue recognition process.

We made enquiries of management and analysed
contracts on sample basis to evaluate whether revenue
was recognized in accordance with their terms and
conditions.

1. Assessed the Company’s accounting policies relating
torevenue recognition.

2. Checked the revenue recognition from contracts by
reading the supporting documents including inspection
of contracts / statement of work/purchase orders from
customers and documents evidencing delivery, on a
testcheck basis;

3. Checked, pre and post year end, sample of revenue
recognized and agreed with the supporting
documents;

4. Checked the Consolidated Ind AS financial statement
disclosuresinthisregard.

02

Receivable from Government customers
the Consolidated financial statements)

(refer to disclosures in note 2.05 & 2.09 of

The Gross balance of trade receivables as
at March 31, 2023 amounted to INR
4,589.70/- Lakhs, which comprises of
receivable from Government INR
3,999.28/-lakhs.

The assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables from the Government
Customers, requires management to make
judgements and estimates to assess the
certainty regarding the recoverability from
Government Customer. Accordingly, this
has beenidentified as a Key audit Matter.

We evaluated the Group’s processes and controls relating
to the monitoring of trade receivables and review of credit
risks of customers.

Our audit procedures include:

1. We evaluated management’s continuous assessment
of the assumption used in the recoverability
assessment. These considerations include whether
there are regular receipts from the customers, past
collection history as well as an assessment of the
customers’credit ability to make repayments;

2. We have checked the subsequent collection made from
the Government debtors and discussed with
management the reasons of any long outstanding
amounts and correspondences with the customers;

3. We have checked the calculation of delay risk under
expected creditloss model.

4. Evaluated the Consolidated financial statement
disclosurein this regard.
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03 Assessment of fair value of Quoted equity investment and Mutual Fund Investment (refer to
disclosures in note 2.08 of the Consolidated financial statements- Investment in Quoted Equity
shares and Mutual Fund)

The Group has quoted equity investment
and Quoted Mutual fund as at the Balance
sheet date. The investment is carried at fair
values, a fair valuation is done as per the
requirementof Ind AS- 109.

Ouraudit procedures included the following:

1. Obtained an understanding from the management,
assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s key controls over the
fair valuation of quoted equity share and mutual fund.

The Fair value measurement of the Quoted

equity shares and Quoted Mutual Fund was

a key Audit matter because

2. Assessed the carrying value/fair value calculations of
all individually material investments, where applicable,
to determine whether the valuations performed by the

The value of quoted equity shares and
mutual fund is material to the financial
statements, and

As at the Balance sheet date March 31,
2023, the value of quoted equity shares
and mutual fund is amounted to INR
8392.52/- lakhs representing 49.09% of

Company were within an acceptable range determined
basis the fair valuation reports and statement.

Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures made in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Based on the above procedures performed, we did not
identify any significant exceptions in the management’s

assessment in relation to the fair value of quoted equity
investments and mutual funds.

total current assets and 39.33 % of total
equity. The value of Quoted Equity
shares and Mutual Fund represents
majority of the balance sheet value.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, for example Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
reportthereon.The Annual reportis expected to be made available to us after the date of this our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary action as applicable under the relevant
laws and regulations.

Management’s and Those Charged with Governance Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give true & fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated
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responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud orerror.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken because of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India,
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Director use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosure, and whether the consolidated financial statement represent the underlying transaction and the eventsin a
manner that achieve fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision, and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any other significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during the audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thoughtto bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other Matter

We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of one subsidiary included in the consolidated financial
statements, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 1269.64 lakhs as at March 31, 2023, total revenues of
Rs. 1460.77 Lakhs and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 13.14 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose reports have
been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far asit relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far asitrelates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the
otherauditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified by the management.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our report and on consideration of report of the other auditor on
separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries as referred in the ‘Other Matter
paragraph, we reportto the extentapplicable that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary forthe purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been relating to preparation of the aforesaid

T
(&



ABMY

30" ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the
reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of accounts maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
Prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of Holding Company as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the Statutory auditors of its
subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Companies are disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting;
referto our separate reportin “Annexure A” which is based on the auditor's report of the Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors of its subsidiary Company incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial control over financial reporting of those companies,
forreason stated therein.

g. Withrespecttothe other mattersto beincludedinthe Auditor’s Reportin accordance with the requirements of Section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31,
2023, has been paid/ provided by the group to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with
ScheduleV tothe Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanation given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor on separate financial
statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigation on the Consolidated Financial
Position of the Group. Referto Note 2.32 to the consolidated financial statements.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts
duringthe yearended March 31,2023.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group during the yearended March 31, 2023.

iv. a) The respective Management of the Holding Company and it’s subsidiaries whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act has represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries that,
to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective holding company or any of such subsidiaries
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
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Vi.

c)

Beneficiaries;

The respective managements of the holding company and its subsidiaries whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act have represented to us and other auditors of such subsidiaries,
respectively that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, nofunds (which are material either individually
orin aggregate) have been received by the respective holding company or any of such subsidiaries from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the holding Company or any of such subsidiaries shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India are in compliance with section 123 of the Act.

Proviso to Rule 3 (1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of Accounts using

accounting software which has a feature of recording Audit Trial (Edit Log) facility is applicable to the company
w.e.f. April 1, 2023 and accordingly reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014
is notapplicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Company (Auditor's report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order’/CARO) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s
report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the

Company and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under

CAROQ s applicable, we reportthatthere are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For Borkar & Muzumdar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 101569W

Sd/-
Deepak Kumar Jain
Date: May 26, 2023 Partner - (M.No. 154390)
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 23154390BGXYMJ5571
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in the paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of ABM KNOWLEDGEWARE LIMITED of even date).
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March
31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ABM KNOWLEDGEWARE LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as “Company”) and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, as of that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Management and Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are Companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountant of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based onthe assessedrisk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

The Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
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regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those, policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, and based on the consideration of
report of other auditor, as referred to in ‘Other Matter’ paragraph below, the Holding Company and its Subsidiary
Companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India(“ICAI").

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company, in so far as it relates to separate financial statements of subsidiaries, which is Company incorporated in India,

For Borkar & Muzumdar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 101569W

Sd/-
Deepak Kumar Jain
Date: May 26, 2023 Partner - (M.No. 154390)
Place: Mumbai UDIN:23154390BGXYMJ5571
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Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023

(¥ In Lakh)
. As at As at
Particulars Note  njarch 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
1.  Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 2.03 4,308.26 4,406.30
b) Capital work-in-progress 2.038 - -
c) Intangible assets 2.03 588.28 488.83
d) Goodwill 335.45 335.45
e) Financial assets
i) Investments 2.04 1,385.31 121.15
ii) Trade Receivables 2.05 332.02 224.93
iii) Other Financial assets 2.06 361.35 376.29
f) Income tax asset (net) 284.17 145.64
g) Deferred tax asset 2.18 16.09 37.44
h) Other non-current assets 2.07 20.99 16.60
7,631.92 6,152.61
Total non-current assets
2. Current assets
a) Financial assets
i) Investments 2.08 8,492.52 7,892.97
ii) Trade receivables 2.09 3,963.04 3,960.53
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 210 721.55 2,051.53
iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 211 879.83 702.19
v) Loans 2.12 8.89 21.06
vi) Other Financial assets 213 1,460.62 1,053.29
b) Current tax assets (Net) 214 86.71 269.96
c) Other current assets 2.15 1,480.82 1,584.85
Total current assets 17,093.98 17,536.37
Total Assets 24,725.90 23,688.97
Equity and Liabilities
1. Equity
a) Equity share capital 2.16 1,024.15 1,024.15
b) Other equity 217 20,044.39 18,965.53
Equity attributable to the Owners of the Company 21,068.54 19,989.68
¢) Non-controlling interest 270.59 141.73
Total equity 21,339.13 20,131.41
2. Liabilities:
Non-current liabilities
a) Deferred tax Liabilities 2.18 669.51 687.96
b) Provisions 2.19 35.87 28.59
c) Other non-current liabilities 2.20 22.27 22.27
Total non-current liabilities 727.65 738.82
3. Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Trade payables 2.21
- Trade payables - outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 16.04 10.52
- Trade payables - outstanding dues to other than micro and small enterprises 469.12 814.27
ii) Other financial liabilities 2.22 392.86 852.61
b) Provisions 2.23 0.82 0.70
c) Other current liabilities 2.24 1,780.28 1,140.65
Total Current Liabilities 2,659.12 2,818.74
Total Equity and Liabilities 24,725.90 23,688.97
Notes 1.1 to 2.44 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Borkar & Muzumdar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:101569W

Deepak Kumar Jain - Partner Prakash B. Rane - Managing Director (DIN : 00152393)

Membership No.: 154390 Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar - Director (DIN : 00108866)
Mumbai Sarika A. Ghanekar - Company Secretary
May 26, 2023 Paresh M. Golatkar - Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

( In T Lakh)
Particul Not Year ended Year ended
articuars ote March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
1. Income
a) Revenue from operations 2.25 7,974.29 9,559.72
b) Other income 2.26 505.51 391.88
Total income 8,479.79 9,951.60
2. Expenses:
a) Operating expense 1,249.22 3,507.54
b) Employee benefits expense 2.27 3,607.15 3,266.70
c) Finance costs 2.28 26.32 34.88
d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.29 299.56 24711
e) Rent expense 70.57 47.93
f) Travelling and conveyance expenses 124.02 49.91
g) Other expenses 2.30 1,251.50 984.40
Total expenses 6,628.34 8,138.47
3. Profit before exceptional items and tax (1-2) 1,851.46 1,813.13
4. Exceptional Items - -
5. Profit before tax (3-4) 1,851.46 1,813.13
6. Tax Expense: 2.31
a) Current tax 393.80 472.66
b) Deferred tax 2.88 (56.65)
396.68 416.01
7. Profit for the year (5-6) 1,454.78 1,397.12
8. Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Measurements of defined employee benefit plans 10.44 (16.54)
Exchange differences on translation into presentation currency (7.46) (1.02)
Income tax effect on the above 2.31 - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) net of Tax 2.98 (17.56)
9. Total comprehensive income for the year (7+8) 1,457.76 1,379.56
Profit attributable to
Owners 1,322.79 1,466.54
Non controlling interest 131.99 (69.42)
1,454.78 1,397.12
Other Comprehensive Income (OClI) attributable to:
Owners 6.11 (18.05)
Non-controling interests (3.13) 0.49
L . 2.98 (17.56)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners 1,328.89 1,448.49
Non-controling interests 128.86 (68.93)
. . 1,457.76 1,379.56
10. Earnings per equity share of ¥ 5 each
a) Basic () 2.34 6.64 7.24
b) Diluted (%) 2.34 6.64 7.24
Notes 1.1 to 2.44 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Borkar & Muzumdar Prakash B. Rane - Managing Director
Chartered Accountants (DIN : 00152393)

Firm Registration No.:101569W

Deepak Kumar Jain Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar - Director

(DIN : 00108866)

Partner

Membership No.: 154390 Sarika A. Ghanekar - Company Secretary
Mumbai Paresh M. Golatkar - Chief Financial Officer
May 26, 2023
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Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

A. Equity Share Capital (Refer note 2.16) (In % Lakh)
. Balance as at | Changes in equity Restated Changes in equity | Balance as
Particulars April 01,2021 |share capital due to | balance as at | share capital | at March 31,
prior period errors | April 01,2021 | during the year 2022
Equity Share Capital 1024.15 - 1024.15 - 1024.15
( In % Lakh)
. Balance as at | Changes in equity Restated Changes in equity | Balance as
Particulars April 01,2022 |share capital due to | balance as at | share capital | at March 31,
prior period errors | April 01,2022 | during the year 2023
Equity Share Capital 1024.15 - 1024.15 - 1024.15
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

(In % Lakh)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit Before Tax 1,851.46 1,813.13
Non-cash adjustment to Profit Before Tax:

Depreciation and amortization expense 299.56 24711
Interest income (74.15) (91.37)
Impairment expense of Trade receivable 100.00 76.68
Impairment on non current/current assets 28.00 6.00
Profit on Sale of Asset 0.16 (4.00)
Liability written back - (1.84)
Gain on investment - (0.01)
Exchange differences on translation into presentation currency (7.46) (1.19)
Change in fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (378.25) (291.62)
Dividend income (0.41) (0.83)
Finance costs 26.32 34.88

1,845.22 1,786.94

Change in operating assets and liabilities :

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (214.75) (1,618.95)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (339.62) (529.84)
Decrease/(increase) in loans & other financial assets - Current (395.16) (264.14)
Decrease/(increase) in loans & other financial assets - Non Current (17.89) (15.90)
Decrease/(increase) in other bank balance (96.43) 1,193.52
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets 2.54 33.98
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets 104.37 (304.62)
Increase/(decrease) in other financial Liability (459.75) 517.00
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 639.30 125.80
Increase/(decrease) in non-current provisions 7.28 7.33
Increase/(decrease) in Provisions 0.12 0.13
Cash generated from operations 1,075.22 (855.70)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (434.12) (516.23)
Net cash flow generated /(used in) operating activities (A) 641.10 415.01

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchases of fixed assets, including capital work-in-progress and capital advances (299.44) (385.39)
Payments for purchase of investments (6,099.88) (6,386.77)
Proceeds from sale of investments 5,880.72 5,130.82
Investment (1,250.76) -
Proceed from sale of Property plant equipment 0.07 22.50
Gain on investment - 0.01
Interest received 74.15 0.01
Dividends received 0.41 11.52
Net cash flow generated/(used in) investing activities (B) (1,694.73) (1,607.32)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

(In ¥ Lakh)
Particul Year ended Year ended
articulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance Cost (26.32) (34.88)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders (250.03) (250.03)
Net cash flow generated/(used in) in financing activities (C) (276.35) (284.91)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+ C) (1,329.98) (1,477.22)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,051.53 3,528.75
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 721.55 2,051.53
Cash and cash equivalents as per note 2.10 to the financial statements
Balance with Bank 270.12 1,279.39
Cash in hand 444-72 3.14
Cheques in hand 6.6 769.00
Total 721.55 2,051.53

Notes 1.1 to 2.44 form an integral part of these financial statements

Note:
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under Indirect Method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)- 7,
"Statement of Cash Flows".

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Prakash B. Rane - Managing Director
(DIN : 00152393)

For Borkar & Muzumdar
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:101569W Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar - Director
Deepak Kumar Jain (DIN : 00108866)
Partner Sarika A. Ghanekar - Company Secretary

Membership No.: 154390
Mumbai
May 26, 2023

Paresh M. Golatkar - Chief Financial Officer
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1.01

2.01

a)

b)

c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

GROUP BACKGROUND:

ABM Knowledgeware Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited Company incorporated in India under the Companies
Act, 1956.The registered office of the Company is located at ABM House, Bandra West, Mumbai, India. The company has
its primary listing on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company is one of the few information technology (IT)
services companies with exclusive focus on e governance since 1998.

ABM Knowledgeware Limited along with its subsidiary, InstaSafe Technologies Private Limited and sub-subsidiary
InstaSafe Inc. (incorporated in USA)(hereinafter referred to as “Group”) is engaged in providing activities in e-
governance,information security, technology enabled applications through cloud services and other software services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements:

These Financial Statements are the separate Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group (also called Consolidated
Financial Statements) prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by
the Companies (India Accounting Standard) (Amendment) Rules 2016 and other relevant provision of the Act.The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. The Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on
the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values
atthe end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities on the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses for the year reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the
estimates are revised, and future periods are affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty as at the date of Consolidated Financial Statements, which may cause a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of the following:

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. The Group combines the financial
statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses. Intergroup transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the

T
@



ABMY

30" ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

d)

2.02

a)

transferred asset.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Consolidated Statement of
Profitand Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Balance Sheet respectively.

Business Combinations:

The Group accounts for Business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of
any non-controlling interestin the acquiree. For each business combination, the Company elects whether it measures the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition costs which are administrative in nature are expensed out.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
orliabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed-off is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
orloss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed-off in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values
of the operation disposed-off and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Common control business combinations include transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or businesses, between
entities within a Group.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the pooling of
interest’s method. Under pooling of interest method, the assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at
their carryingamounts, the only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting policies.

The financial information in the consolidated financial statements in respect of prior periods are restated as if the business
combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the consolidated financial statements,
irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, if business combination had occurred after that date, the prior
periodinformation is restated only from that date.

The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form
of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and presented
separately from other capital reserves with disclosure of itsnature and purpose in the notes.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Current vs non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An assetistreated as currentwhenitis:

e Expectedtoberealized orintended to be sold orconsumed in normal operating cycle.

e Held primarily for purpose of trading.

e Expectedtobe realized within twelve months after the reporting period.

e Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
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months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability istreated as currentwhenitis:

e ltisexpectedto settle inthe normal operating cycle.

e |tisduetobe settled within twelve months after the reporting date.

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
Advance tax paidis classified as non-current assets.

Revenue

The Group derives its revenues primarily from software development, Software implementation, maintenance of
software/ hardware and related services, business process services, Sale of IT and other products and internet security
related technology enabled solution software services.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services. The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of
the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, service
level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the
customer.

Goods and Service tax (GST) is not received by the Group on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on service
rendered by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is initially included and subsequently gets excluded
fromthe gross revenue.

Revenue from software services & projects comprise income from time-and-material and fixed price contracts.

Revenue from time and material contracts is recognized when the services are rendered in accordance with the terms of
contracts with clients. Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method
(POC method), calculated as the proportion of the cost of effort incurred up to the reporting date to estimated cost of total
effort. The Company uses judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine
the degree of completion of the performance obligation.

Maintenance revenue is recognized ratable over the period of underlying maintenance agreements.
Revenue from sale of services is shown as net of applicable discounts and pricing incentives to customer.

Revenues from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of significant risks and rewards where it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Company and there is neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective control over the
goods sold.

o)
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In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received.

Accrued revenues are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Accrued revenues
are classified as accruals - receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash,
and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned revenue is recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues. The billing schedules agreed with
customers could include periodic performance-based payments and/or milestone-based progress payments. Advances
received for services are reported as liabilities until all conditions for revenue recognition are met.

Interestincome is recognized asitaccrues in the Statement of Profit and Loss using effective interest rate method.

Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive the dividend is
established, it is probable that the economic benefit associated with the Dividend will flow to the Company, and the
amount of the dividend can be reliably measure.

Property, Plantand Equipment
Measurement and recognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairmentlosses.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately, if the part
has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining item.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including import duties and other non
refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade discounts and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the
recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is
capitalized under relevant heads of property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Costs in nature of
repairs and maintenance are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss as and whenincurred.

Capital work in progress and Capital advances:

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. Advances
given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as Other Non-Current
Assets.

Depreciation:

Depreciation on each part of an item of property, plant and equipment is provided using the Straight-Line Method based
on the useful life of the asset as estimated by the management and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as per
the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The estimate of the useful life of the assets has been
assessed based on technical advice which considers the nature of the asset, the usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the operating conditions of the asset etc. The estimated useful life of items of property, plantand equipment
is mentioned below:

N
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( InYear)
Assets Useful life as per | Useful life estimated
Companies Act, 2013| by the management

Buildings (Other than factory buildings) 60 30-68
Plant and Equipment 15 05
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10
Office Equipment 5 5
Vehicles 8 8
Computer Equipment 3 3/6
Lease hold improvements Not applicable As per the lease term
Purchased Software/ Internally developed for self-consumption As per Ind AS 38
Internally developed Software for sale As per Ind AS 38

Freeholdlandis not depreciated. Leasehold land and Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease.
The Group, based on the historical experience & internal technical assessment and management estimate, depreciates
certain items of property plant and equipment (as mentioned above) over estimated useful lives which are different from
the useful lives prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The useful lives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment and the depreciation methods are
reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

All assets Costing up to Rs 5000/- are expensed out in the year of purchase/use.
Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
is recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss when the item is derecognized.

Intangible Assets
Measurement at recognition:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets arising on acquisition
of business are measured at fair value as at date of acquisition. Internally generated intangibles including research cost
are not capitalized and the related expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the
expenditureisincurred.

Amortization:

Intangible Assets with finite lives are amortized on a Straight-Line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The estimated
useful life of intangible assets is mentioned below:

Assets Life
Software 1-8years

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with finite useful life is reviewed at the end of
each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change
inan accounting estimate.
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Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognized in the
Statement of Profitand Loss when the assetis derecognized.

Impairment of Assets:

Carrying Amount of Tangible assets, Intangible assets, Investment in Subsidiaries (which are carried at the cost) are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amountis the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation modelis used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or company’s assets(cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
ofthe impairment atthe end of each reporting period.

Leases:

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a
lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Company as alessee:

A contractis, orcontains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether:

- thecontractinvolvesthe use of anidentified asset;

- the Company has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period
ofuse;and

- the Company hastherightto directthe use of the asset.

Atinception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices of the lease components and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the
lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
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to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on
whichitis located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the
straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.Impairmentloss, if any, is recognised in the Consolidated statement of profitand loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental
borrowing rate applicable to the entity within the Company. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may
adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a
whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise
price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessmentor lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
Consolidated statement of profitand loss.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of all assets that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as alessor

When the Company acts as a lessor at the inception, it determines whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a
constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it
accounts foritsinterests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head
lease is a short -term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease
as anoperating lease.

Ifan arrangement contains a lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115-Revenue to allocate the
considerationinthe contract.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
assetthat necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready forits intended use or sale are capitalized as part of
the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Initial Recognition and Measurement — Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI”) or fair value through profit orloss(“FVTPL’) on the basis of following:

— theentity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

— thecontractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortized Cost:

Afinancial assetis classified and measured atamortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

— the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

FVTOCI:
Afinancial assetis classified and measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

— the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets;and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

FVTPL:

Afinancial assetis classified and measured at FVTPL unlessitis measured at costorat FVTOCI.

Car
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All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortized
cost. Theimpairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significantincrease in credit risk.

The Group determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition,
an amount of reasonable provision is measured and recognized as loss of allowance on the basis of historical experience
and internaltechnical analysis.

Classification and Subsequent measurement: Financial Liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans an borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial Liabilitiesat FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated upon initial
recognitionas FVTPL.

Gains orlosses on financial liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.
Other Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortized
costusing the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the net carryingamount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities:

The Group de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
ittransfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. If the Group enters into transactions
whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Afinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Derivatives Financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters into derivative financial contracts in the nature of forward currency contracts with external parties to
hedge its foreign currency risks relating to foreign currency denominated financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.
The Group formally establishes a hedge relationship between such forward currency contracts (‘hedging instrument’) and
recognized financial liabilities (‘hedged item’) through a formal documentation at the inception of the hedge relationship in
line with the Group’s Risk Management objective and strategy. The hedge relationship so designated is accounted for in
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accordance with the accounting principles prescribed for afair value hedge under Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’.
Recognition and measurement of fair value hedge:

Hedging instrument is initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and is
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Gain or loss arising from changes in the fair value of hedging
instrument is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Hedging instrument is recognized as a financial asset in the
Balance Sheet if its fair value as at reporting date is positive as compared to carrying value and as a financial liability if its
fair value as at reporting date is negative as compared to carrying value. Hedged item (recognized financial liability) is
initially recognized at fair value on the date of entering into contractual obligation and is subsequently measured at
amortized cost. The hedging gain or loss on the hedged item is adjusted to the carrying value of the hedged item as per the
effective interestmethod and the corresponding effect is recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Derecognition: On Derecognition of the hedged item, the unamortized fair value of the hedging instrument adjusted to the
hedgeditem, is recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

FairValue

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal marketforthe assetorliability, or
¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows, the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3inputs).

Level 1- quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities

Level 2- inputs otherthan quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
orindirectly

Level 3- inputsthatare unobservable forthe asset or liability Business

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements at fair value on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at
the end of each reporting period and discloses the same.

Foreign CurrencyTranslation
Initial Recognition:

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Group are recorded in the functional currency
(i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency amount, the spot exchange rate between the functional currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions
settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date:
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Foreign currency monetary items of the Group are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items that are
measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value is measured.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.
Income Taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current tax
and deferred tax.

Currenttax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in otheryears and items that are never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable tax laws.

Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting period for the amounts expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit under
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, in case of temporary
differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that
affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. Also, for temporary
differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary difference can be utilized. In case of temporary
differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that
affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not recognized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of part or all of such deferred tax
assetstobe utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expectedtobe recovered or settled.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case, the current and deferred tax income/
expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
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recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Group.

Provisions and Contingencies

The Group recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event exists and itis
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the
amountof such obligation can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
timeis recognized as a finance cost.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation can not be
measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances,
demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less and other short term highly liquid
investments.

Gratuity and other post-employment benefits
a) Short-termobligations:

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and
Loss of the yearin which the related services are rendered.

b) Post-employmentobligations:

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:
- Defined benefit plan such as Gratuity and
- Define Contributions plans such as Provident Fund:

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheetin respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The Gratuity plan for the Holding Company is
funded whereas for the Subsidiary Company is unfunded.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation.

The netinterest costis calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the
fairvalue of plan assets. This costis included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profitand Loss.
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Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized at amount net of taxes in the period in which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive Income. They are
includedinretained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognized immediately in the Statement Profitand Loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans:

The Group contributes to Employee’s State Insurance Corporation and Provident Fund which are considered as defined
contribution plans. A contribution is made to Regional Provident Fund Commissioner for certain employees. In case of
other employees covered under the Provident Fund Trust of the Group, the management does not expect any material
liability on account of interest shortfall to be borne by the Group. The said contributions are charged to the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations:

The liabilities for leave are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to
be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected
to occur.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the period by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The number of shares used in computing diluted
earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share, and also the
weighted average number of equity shares which could be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have beenissued ata
later date. The diluted potential equity shares have been arrived at, assuming that the proceeds receivable was based on
shares having been issued at the average market value of the outstanding shares. In computing dilutive earnings per
share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that would, if issued, either reduce future earnings per share or
increase loss per share, are included.

Cashdividend to equity holders of the Group

The Group recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Group when the distribution is
authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a
liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the Group's Board of Directors.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets
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which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies
the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting
period following the change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses
(includingimpairment gains orlosses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the netamountis reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“‘MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements-

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.The
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the consolidated financial
statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors —

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help
entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption
of thisamendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and
thereis noimpactonits consolidated financial statements.

Ind AS 12—-Income Taxes —

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that
giverise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of thisamendmentis annual periods
beginning on or after April 1,2023.The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its consolidated
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 2.04 Non-current investments (In % Lakh)
Particulars Face | As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Value No Amount No Amount
(i) Investment Unquoted
(a) Investment in Equity Instrument- measured at
amortised cost
Scanit Technologies, Inc [Refer note 2.32 (iv)] $0.001| 9,51,085 727.44 - -
(b) Investment in Share Warrant- measured at amortised cost
Scanit Technologies, Inc [Refer note 2.32 (iv)] $0.001| 5,94,428 523.32 - -
(c) Investment in Alternative Investment Fund
(AIF)-measured at Fair value through P/L - - 134.55 - 121.15
Total Non-current Investments 1,385.31 121.15
Aggregate books value of Quoted Investments - -
Aggregate market value of investments designated at FVTOCI - -
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 1,385.31 121.15
Note 2.05 Trade Receivable (In ¥ Lakh)
Particul As at As at
articutars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Trade receivables
Trade Receivables - Considered good and secured - -
Trade Receivables - Considered good and unsecured 332.02 224.93
Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - -
Allowance for doubtful debts - -
Total trade receivable 332.02 224.93
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule- March 31,2023
. Less than|6 months More than
Particulars 6 months | - 1year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed - Considered Good 31.88 66.46 62.90 46.45 124.33 | 332.02
(ii) Undisputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed - Considered Good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total 31.88 66.46 62.90 46.45 124.33 | 332.02
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule- March 31, 2022
. Less than|6 months More than
Particulars 6 months | -1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed - Considered Good 34.32 21.03 45.25 124.33 - | 224.93
(ii) Undisputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed - Considered Good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total 34.32 21.03 45.25 124.33 - | 224.93
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 2.06 Other non-current financial asset

(In % Lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(i) Security/margin deposit 50.64 46.89
(ii) Deposits with bank

- with maturity period of more than 12 months * 310.71 329.40
Total other non-current financial asset 361.35 376.29

* Amount held as margin money or security against Bank Guarantee ¥309.47 Lakh an

Note 2.07 Other non-current assets

d Previous year 3328.22 Lakh.

(In % Lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(i) Capital Advance
(ii) Advances other than capital advance
(a)Advances to other parties
Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, considered doubtful 105.00 105.00
Less: Provision for doubtful advance (105.00) (105.00)
(iii) Others
Employee benefit assets 13.32 15.69
Prepaid expenses 7.67 0.91
20.99 16.60
Total other non-current assets 20.99 16.60
Note 2.08 Current Investment ( In T Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Investment Quoted

Particulars

(a) Investment in equity instruments-measured at Fair value through 38.47 40.89
profit and loss
(b) Investments in Debentures - carried at Fair value through profit and loss 100.00 101.08
(c) Investment in Mutual Funds - carried at Fair value through profit and loss 8,354.05 7,751.00
Total current investment 8,492.52 7,892.97
Aggregate books value of Quoted Investments 8,492.52 7,892.97
Aggregate market value of investments designated at FVTPL 8,492.52 7,892.97
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments - -
Note 2.09 Trade Receivable (In X Lakh)
As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Trade receivables
Trade Receivables - Considered good and secured

3,228.64

3,411.42

Trade Receivables - Considered good and unsecured

Trade Receivables - Doubtful which have significant increase in Credit Risk 1,029.04 748.90
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - -
Allowance for doubtful debts (294.64) (199.79)
Total trade receivable 3,963.04 3,960.53

Cam)
()
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Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule- March 31, 2023

. Less than|6 months More than
Particulars 6 months | -1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed - Considered Good 1,849.59 | 596.63 779.79 2.62 - | 3,228.64
(ii) Undisputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - [1,000.12 | 1,000.12
(iii) Undisputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed - Considered Good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - 28.92 28.92
(vi) Disputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total 1,849.59 | 596.63 779.79 2.62 (1,029.04 | 4,257.68
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule- March 31, 2022
. Less than|6 months More than
Particulars 6 months | -1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed - Considered Good 2,509.20 | 571.48 246.44 82.16 2.14 | 3,411.42
(ii) Undisputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - 748.90 748.90
(iii) Undisputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed - Considered Good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total 2,509.20 | 571.48 246.44 82.16 751.04 | 4,160.32
Note 2.10 Cash and cash equivalents ( In T Lakh)
; As at As at
Particulars
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
(i) Balances with banks
(a) In current accounts # 270.12 1,279.39
(b) Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months - -
(ii) Cheques in hand 446.64 769.00
(iii) Cash in hand 4.79 3.14
Total cash and cash equivalents 721.55 2,051.53

# The current accounts are in form of cash credit which are payable on demand and are secured by:-
(a) Hypothecation of book debts of the company.

(b) Collateral:

i) EMT of Office premises at Swastik Chambers, Office No.514 and 515, 5" floor, Umarshi Bappa Chowk, Chembur,
Mumbai - 400071 standing in the name of the company.

i) EMT of Office Premises at Prabhadevi Unique Industrial Premises Co-op Society Ltd, Unit No.5, Ground Floor, Off
Veer Savarkar Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400025 standing in the name of the company

iii) EMT of Office Premises at ABM House, Unit No. 801, Eighth Floor, Plot no. 268, Linking Road, Bandra West, Mumbai-
400050 standing in the name of the company.

iv) Three Fixed deposits in Canara Bank of Mr. Prakash B. Rane amounting to ¥ 3.13 Lakh hypothecated to the bank.
v) 5 KDR's having face value of ¥ 2.60 lakh in the personal names of directors Mr. Prakash B. Rane

vi) Personal Guarantee from director — Mr. Prakash B. Rane

vii)Company has cash credit facility from banks on the basis of security of current assets:

-Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of

accounts.

Con)
©
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 2.11 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
(i) Earmarked balances in unclaimed dividend account 66.30 49.83
(i) Fixed Deposits with maturity period of more than 3 months but less 813.53 652.36
than 12 months *
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 879.83 702.19
* Amount held as margin money or security against Bank Guarantee
Note 2.12 Current Loans ( In T Lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

(i) Advances to employees

Unsecured, considered good 8.13 3.90
8.13 3.90
(ii) Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good 0.76 17.16
0.76 17.16
Total current loans 8.89 21.06
Note 2.13 Other financial assets ( In ¥ Lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

(i) Security deposits

Unsecured, considered good 83.69 67.50

Significant increase in credit risk 16.38 16.38

100.07 83.88

Less: Provision for doubtful deposits (16.38) (16.38)

83.69 67.50

(ii) Accruals - receivables 1,376.93 985.79

Total others financial assets 1,460.62 1,053.29
Note 2.14 Current tax assets (net) ( In T Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022

Tax Paid 88.50 1,463.98

Less: Tax Provision (1.79) (1,194.02)

Total current tax assets 86.71 269.96
Note 2.15 Other Current Assets ( In T Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
(i) Advance to vendors 29.14 28.80
(ii) Others
(a) Prepaid Expenses 89.76 52.61
(b) Project under process (WIP)
Unsecured, considered good 1,233.29 1,400.34
Unsecured, considered doubtful 106.14 81.14
Less: Provision for doubtful WIP (106.14) (81.14)
1,233.29 1,400.34
(c) Balances with statutory / revenue authorities
- Goods & Service Tax 128.43 101.51
(d) Others 0.20 2.83
Total other current assets 1,480.82 1,584.85

Amounts in Lakh, except for per equity share data and number of shares are stated in absolute figures.
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Note 2.16 Equity Share capital (In X Lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised Share Capital

Equity Shares of % 5/- each at par with voting rights 2,50,00,000 | 1,250.00 | 2,50,00,000 | 1,250.00
Issued

Equity Shares of % 5/- each at par with voting rights 2,07,00,000 | 1,035.00 |2,07,00,000 | 1,035.00
Subscribed & Fully Paid up

Equity Shares of % 5/- each at par with voting rights 2,00,02,200 | 1,000.11 |2,00,02,200 | 1,000.11
Subscribed but not fully Paid up Nil Nil Nil Nil
Forfeited Shares ( amount originally Partly paid-up)

Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each at par with voting rights 6,97,800 24.04 6,97,800 24.04

Total 2,07,00,000 | 1,024.15 | 2,07,00,000 | 1,024.15

Note 2.16(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amout of share capital
as at the March 31, 2023 and as at March 31, 2022 as set out below.

Equity shares As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares | Amount | No. of shares | Amount
At the beginning of the year 2,07,00,000 |1,024.15| 2,07,00,000 |[1,024.15
Add:- Issued during the year - - - -
Less:- Forfeited during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,07,00,000 |1,024.15| 2,07,00,000 |1,024.15

Note 2.16(ii) Details of Shares held by each shareholder holding mo

re than 5% shares

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Name of Shareholder
No. of sh % of No. of sh % of
o. of shares Holding o. of shares Holding
Prakash Baburao Rane 95,42,300 47.71 95,42,300 47.71
Supriya Prakash Rane 24,54,000 12.27 24.54,000 12.27
Lipsita Projects and services Private Limited 13,81,500 6.91 13,81,500 6.91
Total 1,33,77,800 66.89 1,33,77,800 66.89
Note 2.16(iii) Details of shareholding of Promoters
Shares held by promoters As at March 31, 2023
P t No. of % of % Change
romoter name Shares total shares |during the year
Prakash Baburao Rane 95,42,300 47.71 -
Supriya Prakash Rane 24,54,000 12.27 -
Lipsita Projects & Services Private Limited 13,81,500 6.91 -
Baburao Bhikunaik Rane 5,000 0.03 -
Sunita Baburao Rane 2,500 0.01 -
Sharada Rane 1,629 0.01 -

)
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Shares held by promoters

As at March 31, 2022

Promoter nam No. of % of % Change

omoter name Shares total shares |during the year
Prakash Baburao Rane 95,42,300 47.71 -
Supriya Prakash Rane 24,54,000 12.27 -
Lipsita Projects & Services Private Limited 13,81,500 6.91 -
Baburao Bhikunaik Rane 5,000 0.03 -
Sunita Baburao Rane 2,500 0.01 -
Sharada Rane 1,629 0.01 -

Note 2.16(iv) Details of Shares forfeited (In % Lakh)

As at As at

Class of shares

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

No. of Amount No. of Amount

Shares paid up Shares paid up
Equity Shares with voting rights 6,97,800 24.04 6,97,800 24.04
Total 6,97,800 24.04 6,97,800 24.04

Note 2.16 (v) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has a only one class of share referred as Equity shares having par value of ¥ 5 per share. Each Shareholder of equity

share is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company

after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to number of shares held.

Note 2.17 Other Equity

(In % Lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

General reserve 308.05 308.05
Retained earning 19,736.34 18,657.48
Total Other Equity 20,044.39 18,965.53

Note 2.18 Deferred tax Asset / Liabilities

Note 2.18(a) Deferred tax liabilities (In X Lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Deferred income tax asset
Deductible Expenditure
Provision for doubtful financial asset
Current Year Losses
Gratuity Provision
Deferred income tax liability
Taxable temproary difference
Depreciation adjustment as per Books and Income Tax

(103.96)

773.47

(73.06)

761.01

Deferred Tax Liability

669.51

687.96

®)



ABMY

30" ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 2.18(b) Deferred tax assets

(In % Lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Deferred income tax asset
Deductible Expenditure
Provision for doubtful financial asset

41.00

Current Year Losses -
Gratuity Provision 9.23 7.37
Deferred income tax liability
Taxable temproary difference
Depreciation adjustment as per Books and Income Tax 6.86 (10.93)
Deferred Tax Asset 16.09 37.44
Note 2.18 (c) Movement in gross deferred tax liability / asset (In % Lakh)
. . Recognised in .
Particulars Opening Profit and Loss Closing Balance
2022-2023
Deferred tax liability / asset in relation to
Unabsorbed depreciation as per income tax 771.94 (5.33) 766.61
Provision for doubtful financial asset (73.04) (30.92) (103.96)
Current Year Losses (41.00) 41.00 -
Gratuity Provision (7.37) (1.86) (9.23)
Total 650.54 2.88 653.42
2021-2022
Deferred tax liability / asset in relation to
Unabsorbed depreciation as per income tax 765.99 5.95 771.94
Provision for doubtful financial asset (52.90) (20.13) (73.04)
Current Year Losses - (41.00) (41.00)
Gratuity Provision (5.90) (1.47) (7.37)
Total 707.19 (56.65) 650.54
Note 2.18 (d) The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to
income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss (In  Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Accounting Profit 1,851.46 1,813.13
Tax at the domestic rate 465.98 456.33
Difference between Depreciation on Property Plant and equipment (3.80) (10.68)
including Intangibles as per books and Income taxes
Tax on Income at different rates (7.72) -
Other than temporary differences (90.26) (3.10)
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (9.57) 0.57
Income tax effect on OCI - -
Current tax on short term capital gain on sale of units of mutual fund 29.61 29.35
Current tax on long term capital gain on sale of units of mutual fund 9.56 0.19
Tax Expense 393.80 472.66
Note 2.19 Provisions ( In T Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Provision for employee benefit 35.87 28.59
Total Provisions 35.87 28.59

®
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Note 2.20 Other non-current liabilities (In % Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Provision for disputed liability 22.27 22.27
Total Other non-current liabilities 22.27 22.27
Note 2.21 Trade payables (In % Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 16.04 10.52
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 469.12 814.27
Total Trade Payables 485.15 824.78
Trade Paybale Ageing Schedule- March 31, 2023
. Less than More than
Particulars 1 Year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
(i) MSME 13.06 0.67 1.17 1.14 16.04
(i) Others 120.69 308.12 - 40.30 469.12
(iii) Disputed Dues MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -
Total 133.75 308.79 1.17 41.44 485.15
Trade Paybale Ageing Schedule- March 31, 2022
. Less than More than
Particulars 1 Year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
(iy MSME 9.21 0.32 - 0.99 10.52
(i) Others 773.96 - - 40.30 814.27
(iii) Disputed Dues MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -
Total 783.17 0.32 - 41.30 824.78
Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (MSMED Act): (In % Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

(Total outstanding dues of creditors of micro enterprises and small enterprises) | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

(i) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year
- Principal 2.94 -
- Interest 0.17 -

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED - -
Act along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year.

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 0.17 -
accounting year.

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - -
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act.

Note: Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of information available with the Company . This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

PN
N
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Note 2.22 Other financial liabilities

(In % Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Salary Payable 28.24 37.84
Unpaid Dividend 66.32 49.83
Outstanding expenses 298.30 764.95
Total Other financial liabilities 392.86 852.61
Note 2.23 Provisions (In X Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Provision for employee benefit 0.82 0.70
Total Provisions 0.82 0.70
Note: 2.24 Other current liabilities (In X Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Statutory remittances 119.67 167.81
Unearned revenue 1,660.62 965.90
Advance from customer - 6.94
Total Other current liabilities 1,780.28 1,140.65
Note 2.25 Revenue from Operations ( In T Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Particulars

Income from sale of products and services 9,379.75 11,033.09
Less: GST recovered 1,405.46 1,473.36
Total revenue from operation 7,974.29 9,559.72
Note 2.26 Other Incomes (In % Lakh)
Year ended Year ended

March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Income related to financial assets

Interest on bank deposit 60.75 67.87
Interest on Investment 13.40 23.50
Dividend income 0.41 0.84
Interest on income tax refund 27.75 -
Miscellaneous income 1.23 5.39
Gain on foreign currency translation 21.57 2.48
Other non - opearting income
Fair value of investment through Profit and Loss account 380.39 291.79
Total other income 505.51 391.88
* Total Fair value gains include ¥ 84.81 Lakh (previous year: ¥ 56.83 Lakh) as ‘Net gain on sale of investments.
Note 2.27 Employee Benefit Expenses (In % Lakh)
Particul Year ended Year ended
articulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Salaries, Incentives and allowances 3,340.07 3,012.72
Contribution to provident and other funds 199.19 191.57
Staff welfare Expenses 67.88 62.40
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 3,607.15 3,266.70

®
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Note 2.28 Finance Cost

(In % Lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Other borrowing cost

Particulars

Bank Limit charges 4.68 5.56
Interest Expenses 0.17 1.54
Bank Guarantee charges 21.47 27.78
Total finance cost 26.32 34.88
Note 2.29 Depreciation and amortisation expenses (In ¥ Lakh)
Particul Year ended Year ended
articufars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Depreciation and amortisation Expenses 299.56 247 11
Total Depreciation and amortisation expenses 299.56 247 .11
Note 2.30 (i) Other Expenses (In ¥ Lakh)
Particul Year ended Year ended
articufars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Rates and taxes 35.18 30.99
Communication expenses 36.98 24.70
Electricity charges 21.99 18.06
Legal and professional fees 307.79 283.58
Printing and stationery 6.17 7.36
Membership and subscription 7.58 9.99
Advertising and Business Promotion Expenses 91.12 60.63
Corporte social responsibility contributions 43.50 48.00
Bank charges 7.12 9.72
Provision for impairment 128.00 80.00
Insurance expenses 21.53 7.44
Other expenses 532.20 391.58
Total Other Expenses 1,239.15 972.05
Note 2.30 (ii) Payment to auditors (In X Lakh)
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Auditors of the company
Components of audit fees

Particulars

Service as Statutory auditor (including limited review) 12.35 12.35
Total Payment to Auditors 12.35 12.35
Note 2.31 Tax expenses ( In ¥ Lakh)
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(a) Income tax expenses :
Current tax

Current tax on profit for the year 403.36 473.20
Current tax expense pertaining to prior year (9.57) (0.54)
393.80 472.66
Deferred tax

Deferred tax expense for the current year
Deferred tax expense for the current year 2.88 (56.65)
Deferred tax arising on income and expenses recognised in other - -

comprehensive income

2.88 (56.65)
Total tax expense recognised in current year 396.68 416.01

(A03)
(103)
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(In % Lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

(b) The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income
tax rate to income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss

Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 1,851.46 1,813.13
Profit from discontinuing operations before income tax expense - -
1,851.46 1,813.13
Tax at domestic tax rate (effective) - 25.17% 465.98 456.33
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (9.57) 0.57
Current tax on short term capital gain on sale of units of mutual fund 29.61 29.35
Tax on Income at different rates (7.72) -
Current tax on long term capital gain on sale of units of mutual fund 9.56 0.19
Difference between WDV of Property Plant and equipment including (3.80) (10.68)
Intangibles as per books and Income taxes
Expenses provided but allowable in Income Tax on payment/writeoff(net)
Other than temporary differences (90.26) (8.10)
Income tax expense 393.80 472.66
Note 2.32 Contingent Liabilities and commitments (to the extend not provided for): ( In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(A) Contingent liabilties:
(a) Bank gurantees [Refer Note 2.32 (i)]
(b) Service taxes [Refer Note 2.32 (ii)]
(c) Income taxes [Refer Note 2.32 (iii)]

(B) Capital commitments

(C) Investment in the shares of ScanlIT [Refer Note 2.32 (iv)]

3,091.88
14.33
38.86

3,686.86

2,719.16
14.33
38.86

Note 2.32 (i)

The Cash Creditand Bank Guarantee facility availed by the Company are payable on demand and are secured by:-

(a) Hypothecation of book debts of the company.
(b) Collateral:

i) EMT of Office premises at Swastik Chambers, Office No.514 and 515,5" floor, Umarshi Bappa Chowk, Chembur,

Mumbai- 400071 Standing in the name of the company.

i) EMT of Office Premises at Prabhadevi Unique Industrial Premises Co-op Soc. Ltd, Unit No.5,Ground Floor, Off
Veer Savarkar Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai-400025 standing in the name of the company.

iiiy EMT of Office Premises at ABM House, Unit No. 801, Eighth Floor, Plot no. 268, Linking Road, Bandra West,

Mumbai - 400050 standing in the name of the company.

iv) Three Fixed depositsin Canara Bank of Mr. Prakash B. Rane amountingto ¥3.13 Lakh hypothecated to the bank.

v) 5KDR's havingface value 0f¥2.60 lakh in the personal names of director Mr. Prakash B. Rane.

vi) Personal Guarantees from directors —Mr. Prakash B. Rane.

TR
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Note 2.32 (ii)
The service taxamount shown of ¥ 14.33 lakh pertains to the show cause notices received by the company for
i) Disallowances of cenvatcreditforthe F.Y.2014-15t02017-18,
ii) Service Taxon "Employee Notice Pay Recovery amount”,
iii) Common Cenvat Credit as per Rule 6(3A) of the Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 in proportionate to income from
Investmentin Mutual Fund and Sale of Motor Car.
The Company is in process of contesting or filing appeals in respect of the aforesaid disputed matters before the
authorities. The managementis hopeful that matters will be decided in favour of the company.

Note 2.32 (iii)
For Assessment Year 2016 - 2017, the subsidiary InsataSafe Technologies Private Limited has received assessment
order u/s 143(3) of the Income Tax Act, dated 18th December 2018, raising a tax demand of ¥38,85,541.The company
has already contested the demand at the appropriate Appellate Forum and the Management feels that the outcome of the
appeal will be in the company's favour in as much as the grounds on which the additions made to the income are
applicable to many start-ups.

Note 2.32(iv)

The Company at a Board meeting held on September 30, 2022, has approved strategic investment in ScanlIT. The
company has entered into definitive agreements for investment up to Rs. 50 crores (approx.) for acquiring 52%
shareholding in Scanit Technologies, Inc (“ScanlIT”), California, Silicon Valley, USA. ScanlIT is developing a Solution to
solve a critical unmet need in agriculture by providing a way to physically detect airborne disease before infection enabling
preventive action. In accordance with the definitive agreements the indicative time period for completion of acquisition of
approx. 52% shareholding stake would be 24 months subject to the achievement of certain milestones. As of March 31,
2023, Company has invested Rs.12.51 Cr.in ScanIT.

Note 2.33
During the Financial year 2022-23, an additional amount of ¥ 275.32 Lakh has been recognised as an Intangible asset on
fulfillmentfulfiiment of the recognition criteria during the financial year 2022-23.
The useful life of the intangible assetis estimated to be 5 years and overall amortisation has been worked out accordingly.

Note 2.34 Earnings Per Share (EPS) (In % Lakh)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for Basic EPS 1,328.89 1,448.49
Add/Less: Adjustment relating to potential equity shares - -
Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for Diluted EPS 1,328.89 1,448.49
Weighted average no. of equity shares (in Lakh) outstanding during the year

For basic EPS 200.02 200.02
For diluted EPS 200.02 200.02
Face Value per Equity Share (%) 5 5
Basic EPS }) 6.64 7.24
Diluted EPS }) 6.64 7.24

Reconciliation between no. of shares (in Lakh) used for calculating
basic and diluted EPS

No. of shares used for calculating Basic EPS 200.02 200.02
Add: Potential equity shares - -
No. of shares used for calculating Diluted EPS 200.02 200.02

®
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Note 2.35 Employee benefits
A) Defined contribution plans
Provident fund:

The company operated defined benefits contribution retirement benefits plans for all qualifying employees.

The total expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss of ¥ 133.45 lakh (for the year ended March 31, 2022:

145.89 lakh) represent contributions payable to Provident fund by the Company at rates specified in rules of the plans.

B) Defined Benefit plans:-
Movement in plan assets and Plan liabilities:-

( In T Lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Amount recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost

Finance cost/(income)

Past service cost

Total expense recognised in the Statement of profit /loss

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised for the period
Return on plan assets excluding net interest

Total actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Changes in present value of obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning

Interest cost

Current service cost

Past service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on present value of obligation
Present value of obligation at the end

Changes in present value of planned assets
Fair value at the beginning

Adjustment to opening fair value of plan asset
Return on plan assets

Interest income

Contributions

Benefits paid

Fair Value at the end of the year

Compostion of the plan assets is as follow
Gratuity Fund (LIC OF INDIA)

Actuarial assumptions
Financial assumptions
Discount rate
Salary Escalation
Expected return on plan assets
Attrition
Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate

57.19
(0.34)

56.86

(12.64)
2.20

(10.44)

223.62
14.09
57.19

(50.26)
(12.64)
232.01

210.03

(2.20)
14.43
36.64
(50.26)
208.64

100.00%

7.10%
4%
7.01%
2%

IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate

45.54
(1.34)

44.20

15.73
0.81
16.54

198.28
11.84
45.54

(47.76)
15.73
223.62

224.68
(34.04)
(0.81)
13.18
54.79
(47.76)
210.03

100.00%

7.10%
4%
7.59%
20/0

IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate
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C) The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end March 31, 2023 as follows:

(In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
First year 7.75 5.87
Second year 44.50 7.81
Third year 5.76 43.79
Fourth year 6.68 6.30
Fifth year 7.43 7.04
Sixth to Ten year 68.49 69.50

Sensitivity analysis:

Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumption for determination of defined obligation and

based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

(In % Lakh)

Particulars

ABM Knowledgware Limited

InstaSafe Technologies
Private Limited

As at

March 31, 2023

As at

March 31, 2022

As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

As at

Discount rate increase by 100 basis Points
Discount rate decrease by 100 basis Points
Salary Escalation rate increase by 100 basis points
Salary Escalation rate decrease by 100 basis points

177.72
216.17
216.00
177.67

175.97
216.07
215.56
176.22

32.48
41.66
40.87
32.75

25.86
33.32
32.55
25.87

Note: 2.36 Related party disclosure

(A) Name of related parties and description of relationship

(i) Key Management Personnel (KMPS):
Mr. Prakash Baburao Rane, Managing Director
Mr. Paresh Golatkar, Chief Financial Officer
Mrs. Sarika Ghanekar, Company Secretary

(ii) Non-Executive Directors
Mrs. Supriya Prakash Rane
Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar
Mr. Sumit Dutta Chowdhary
Mr. Devendra Kamalakar Parulekar
Mr. Ashokkumar Vitthal Dugade
Mr. Punit Kumar Jain

(iii) Enterprises over which directors and relatives of such personnel exercise significant influence:

Khaitan & Company LLP, Mumbai
Saffron Studios Private Limited
Lipsita Projects & Services Private Limited

®
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(B) Transactions with related parties

Nature of Transactions As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Purchase of material / services:
Khaitan & Company LLP 6.00 -
Saffron Studios Private Limited 0.53 -
Transaction with key management personnel
Remuneration 217.04 212.67
Other long term benefit 1.81 27.26
Dividend
Mr. Prakash Rane 119.28 119.28
Mrs. Supriya Rane 30.68 30.68
Lipsita Projects & Services Private Limited 17.27 17.27
Sitting Fees
Mrs. Supriya Rane 2.60 2.40
Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar 3.60 3.40
Mr. Sumit Dutta Chowdhary 2.40 2.60
Mr. Devendra Kamalakar Parulekar 2.20 2.80
Mr. Ashok Dugade 1.40 2.60
Mr. Punit Jain 1.40 1.20

Note 2.37 Capital Management
Risk management

The group’s objectives when managing capital are to:
(i) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, and
(i) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by
Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet, including non-controlling interests).

The Company's strategy is to maintain a gearing ration within 1:1. The gearing ratios were as follows :

(In X Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Net debt - B
Total equity 21,339.13 20,131.41
Net debt to equity ratio - -

Note 2.38 Financial Instruments

(i) Method and assumptions used to estimate the fair value

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either

observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

e Level 1-Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e.as prices) orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

¢ evel 3-Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part
using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market
transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

The cost of unquoted investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy approximate their fair value because there is a wide
range of possible fair value measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy Based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole.The fair value hierarchy is described as below:

March 31, 2023 (In ¥ Lakh)
Parti Carrying Classification Fair Value
articulars "
Value FVTPL |FVTOCI| Amortised Cost | Level 1| Level 2 | Level 3
Financial assets
Long Term Loans - - - -
Trade Receivables 4,295.06 - - 4,295.06
Cash & Cash equivalents 721.55 - - 721.55
Other Bank Balances 879.83 - - 879.83
Short term Loans 8.89 - - 8.89
Other financial assets 1,821.97 - - 1,821.97
Investments 9,877.83 | 8,627.07 - 1,250.76 8,627.07
17,605.12 | 8,627.07 - 8,978.05 8,627.07 - -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - -
Trade payables 485.15 485.15
Other financial liabilities 392.86 392.86
878.01 - - 878.01 - - -
March 31, 2022 ( In % Lakh)
Parti Carrying Classification Fair Value
articulars -
Value FVTPL | FVTOCI| Amortised Cost | Level 1| Level2 | Level 3
Financial assets
Long Term Loans - - - - - - -
Trade Receivables 4,185.46 - - 4,185.46 - - -
Cash & Cash equivalents 2,051.53 - - 2,051.53 - - -
Other Bank Balances 702.19 - - 702.19 - - -
Short term Loans 21.06 - - 21.06 - - -
Other financial assets 1,429.57 - - 1,429.57 - - -
Investments 8,014.12 | 8,014.12 - - 8,014.12 - -
16,403.93 | 8,014.12 - 8,389.81 8,014.12 - -
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 824.78 - - 824.78 - - -
Other financial liabilities 852.61 - - 852.61 - - -
1,677.40 - - 1,677.40 - - -

Financial Risk Management

The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment & oversight of the company's risk management
framework. The Board of directors has established a risk management policy to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management systems
are reviewed periodically to reflect changed market conditions and the company's activities. The audit committee oversees
how management monitors compliance with the company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the risk
management framework. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee. risk
management framework. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Ano)
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Note 2.39 Additional Information on the entities inculded in the Consolidated Financial Statement

2022-23

(In

% Lakh)

Net assets (total assets

Share in profit

Share in other comp-

Share in total compreh-

2021-22

minus total liabilities) or (loss) rehensive income ensive income
Name of the entity As % of As % of As % of As % of
in the group consolidat- consolidat- consolidated consolidated
ed net Amount | ed profit [Amount other Amount total Amount
assets or loss comprehen- comprehen-
sive income sive income
Parent
ABM Knowledgeware Ltd 98.40% |20,989.90 88.54% | 1,288.09 232.40% 6.93 88.84% | 1,295.02
Subsidiaries
InstaSafe Technologies 0.33% 78.63 2.39% 34.70 -27.56% (0.82) 2.32% 33.88
Pvt. Ltd.
Non Controlling Interest
in the Subsidiary
Indian
InstaSafe Technologies 1.27% 270.59 9.07% | 131.99| -104.84% | (3.13) 8.84% 128.87
Pvt. Ltd.
100% (21,339.13 100% | 1,454.78 100% 2.98 100% | 1,457.76
( In T Lakh)

Net assets (total assets

Share in profit

Share in other comp-

Share in total compreh-

minus total liabilities) or (loss) rehensive income ensive income
Name of the entity As % of As % of As % of As % of
in the group consolidat- consolidat- consolidated consolidated
ed net Amount | ed profit [Amount other Amount total Amount
assets or loss comprehen- comprehen-
sive income sive income
Parent
ABM Knowledgeware Ltd 99.07% |19,944.93 | 106.28% | 1,484.79 103.50% | -18.18 106.31% | 1,466.61
Subsidiaries
InstaSafe Technologies 0.22% 44.76 -1.31% | (18.25) -0.73% 0.13 -1.31% (18.12)
Pvt. Ltd.
Non Controlling Interest
in the Subsidiary
Indian
InstaSafe Technologies 0.70% 141.73 -4.97% | (69.42) -2.77% 0.49 -5.00% -68.93
Pvt. Ltd.
100% (20,131.41 100% |1,397.12 100% | -17.56 100% | 1,379.56

Note 2.40 Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, company is require to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the
immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of
hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment
sustainability, disaster relief, and rural developement projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the act
andthe CSRfunds are usedinthe areas mentioned above to some extent.

(In X Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act for the year 43.30 47.77
Shortfall of previous year/s (if any) - -
Total amount required to be spent for the year 43.30 47.77
Amount spent during the year 43.50 48.00
Excess/(short) amount spent 0.20 0.23

Note 2.41

The Company's business activity falls within a single business segmenti.e. software and services and hence no additional
disclosure other than those already made in the financial statements are required under Accounting Standard 108,
"Operating Segments". The Company at present, operates in India only and therefore analysis of geographical segmentis

notapplicable.

)
119



ABMY

30" ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 2.42

Balance of sundry Creditors, Debtors, Loans & Advances and Deposits are subject to confirmation and reconciliation if any.
For the year, letters for confirmation of balances have been sent to various parties by the Company which have not been
responded to. The Management however, does not expect any material changes therein. The balances are as per records
available with the company.

Note 2.43 Additional Disclosure
Note 2.43(a) Relationship with Struck off Companies

Name of struck off Company

Nature of transactions with|Balance as at March 31,|Relationship with the
struck-off Company 2023 (in T in Lakh) |[Struck off company,

Daman Investments And Securities (P) Ltd | Shares held by stuck off 0.21 Shareholder

Note2.43(b):

Note 2.43(c):

Note 2.43(d):
a.

Note 2.43(e):

Details of Benami Property held

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and
rules made thereunder.

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans
No Loans or Advances inthe nature of loans are granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as

defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

The company has not advanced or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other source or
kind of funds) to any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intremidiaries) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermidiary shall: (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entiities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding
parties) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entiities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (the ultimate beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the
ultimate beneficiaries.

Registration of Charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The Company does not have any charge or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of
Companies beyond the statutory period.

Note 2.43(f) Significant Financial Ratio

Rati Numerator Denominator Current |Previous| % of [Reason for
atio umerato enominato Period | Period |Variance| Variance
(a) Current Ratio Total Current Assets Total Current liabilities 6.43 6.22 3.33
; Net Profits after taxes -
(b) Return on Equity S Average o o
Ratio (%) I(:i’frzfr?;;ance Dividend Shareholder’s Equity 7.03% | 7.05% -0.29
(c) Trade Receivables Average Accounts
turnover ratio Revenue Receivable 2.21 3.23 -31.55 Note 1
(d) r’;‘ﬁgcap'tal turnover | pevenue Working Capital 0.55 0.65| -14.95
(e) Net profit ratio (%) Net Profit Revenue 18.24% | 14.61% 24.83
Capital Employed =
(f) Return on Capital Earning before interest | Tangible Net Worth +
employed (%) and taxes Total Debt + Deferred | 8-53% | 8.88% -3.88
Tax Liability
(g) Return on Income generated : o o
investment. (%) from investments Average invested fund | 4.85% | 4.34% 11.82
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Note1: Trade Receivablesturnover ratio decreased on account of decrease in sales & increase in average receivables.
Thereis no significantchange (i.e.change of 25% or more as compared to the FY 2021-22) in the other key financial ratios.

Note 2.44: Previous year figures
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015 (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognised accounting
practices and polices to the extent applicable. The previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Borkar & Muzumdar - Prakash B. Rane - Managing Director
Chartered Accountants (DIN : 00152393)

Firm Registration No.:101569W Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar - Director
Deepak Kumar Jain (DIN : 00108866)

Partner .

Membership No.: 154390 Sarika A. Ghanekar - Company Secretary
Mumbai Paresh M. Golatkar - Chief Financial Officer
May 26, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TOTHE MEMBERS OF
ABM KNOWLEDGEWARELIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of ABM KNOWLEDGEWARE LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, profit and total comprehensive income,
changesin equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
reports.

)
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Sr. No

Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

01

Revenue Recognition (refer to the summa

ry of significant accounting policies in point 2.02 (b) and

the disclosures in note 2.24 of the standalone financial statements)

The Company derives significant portion of
its revenue from long-term projects.
Estimation of efforts is a critical estimate to
determine revenues for contract. This
estimate has a high inherent uncertainty as
it requires consideration of progress of the
contract, efforts incurred till date, efforts
required to complete the remaining contract
performance obligations. Some of the
contracts have complex terms and
conditions requiring management analysis,
judgement and application of guidance for
appropriate recognition of revenue and the
corresponding balances of accounts
receivables, unbilled revenues and
deferred revenues. In consideration of
certain key judgements and principles used
for recognition of revenue we have identified
this matterto be a key audit matter.

We have performed walkthrough and understood the
process and tested key controls associated with the
revenue recognition process.

We made enquiries of management and analysed
contracts on sample basis to evaluate whether revenue
was recognized in accordance with their terms and
conditions.

1. Assessed the Company’s accounting policies relating
to revenue recognition.

2. Checked the revenue recognition from contracts by
reading the supporting documents including inspection
of contracts / statement of work/purchase orders from
customers and documents evidencing delivery, on a
testcheckbasis;

3. Checked, pre and post year end, sample of revenue
recognized and agreed with the supporting
documents;

4. Checked the Standalone Ind AS financial statement
disclosuresinthisregard.

02

Receivable from Government customers
standalone financial statements)

(refer to disclosures in note 2.05 & 2.10 of the

The Gross balance of trade receivables as
at March 31, 2023 amounted to INR
4,104.83/- Lakhs, which comprises of
receivable from Government INR
3,999.28/-lakhs.

The assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables from the Government
Customers, requires management to make
judgements and estimates to assess the
certainty regarding the recoverability from
Government Customer. Accordingly, this
has beenidentified as a Key audit Matter.

We evaluated the company’s processes and controls
relating to the monitoring of trade receivables and review of
credit risks of customers.

Our audit procedures include:

1. We evaluated management’s continuous assessment
of the assumption used in the recoverability
assessment. These considerations include whether
there are regular receipts from the customers, past
collection history as well as an assessment of the
customers’ credit ability to make repayments;

2. We have checked the subsequent collection made from
the Government debtors and discussed with
management the reasons of any long outstanding
amounts and correspondences with the customers;

3. We have checked the calculation of delay risk under
expected creditloss model.

4, Evaluated the standalone financial statement
disclosurein this regard.

o
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03 Assessment of fair value of Quoted equity investment and Mutual Fund Investment
(refer to disclosures in note 2.09 of the standalone financial statements- Investment in Quoted
Equity shares and Mutual Fund)

The Company has quoted equity | Ourauditproceduresincluded the following:
investment and Quoted Mutual fund as at
the Balance sheet date. The investment is
carried at fair values, a fair valuation is done
as perthe requirement of Ind AS- 109.

1. Obtained an understanding from the management,
assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s key controls over the
fair valuation of quoted equity share and mutual fund.

The Fair value measurement of the Quoted

equity shares and Quoted Mutual Fund was

akey Audit matter because

2. Assessed the carrying value/fair value calculations of
all individually material investments, where applicable,
to determine whether the valuations performed by the

- The value of quoted equity shares and Company were within an acceptable range determined
mutual fund is material to the financial basis the fair valuation reports and statement.

statements, and
3. Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures made in the

- As at the Balance sheet date March 31, Standalone Financial Statements.

2023, the value of quoted equity shares )
and mutual fund is amounted to INR Based on the above procedures performed, we did not

8387.14/- lakhs representing 50.95% of identify any significant exceptions in the management’s
assessment in relation to the fair value of quoted equity
investments and mutual funds.

total current assets and 39.96 % of total
equity. The value of Quoted Equity
shares and Mutual Fund represents
majority of the balance sheetvalue.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Reportthereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, for example Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
Annual reportis expected to be made available to us after the date of this our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charges with governance and take necessary actions as applicable under the relevant
laws and regulations.

Management’s andThose Charged with Governance Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
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responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
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application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud orerror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Director’s are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system (with reference to standalone
financial statement) in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Director use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
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disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
mannerthat achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thoughtto bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matter communicated with those charge with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in audit of standalone financial statement of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation preclude public disclosure about the matters or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that the matters should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we reportthat:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s Internal Financial Controls over
the financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the managerial
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(h)

remuneration paid or provided by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations givento us:

Vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements. Refer Note 2.31 to the standalone financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amount, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

a. a.The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, nofunds have been received
by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

c. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances;
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with section 123 of the Act

Proviso to Rule 3 (1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of Accounts using
accounting software which has a feature of recording Audit Trial (Edit Log) facility is applicable to the company
w.e.f. April 1,2023 and accordingly reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2023

For Borkar & Muzumdar

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 101569W

Sd/-
Deepak Kumar Jain
Partner

Date: May 26, 2023 (M.No. 154390)
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 23154390BGXYMI7952
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Vi.

ANNEXURE “A”TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of ABM KNOWLEDGEWARE LIMITED)

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone financial
statements for the yearended March 31,2023 we report that:

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a. (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plantand Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets

b. The Company has regular program of verification of Property, Plant & Equipment by which all Property, Plant &
Equipment of the Company are being verified in a phased manner, which, in our opinion, is reasonable, having regard
to the size of the Company and nature of its business. Pursuant to program, a portion of Property, Plant & Equipment
has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on
verification conducted during the year as compared with book records.

¢ According to the information and explanations given to us, based on test check examination of the records and Sale
deeds/ conveyance deeds / registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as
fixed assets in the standalone financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company.

d According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant &
Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year;

e According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against
the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

The Company is in the business of providing software services and does not have a physical inventory. Accordingly
reporting under clause 3 (ii) of the orderis not applicable to the company.

The Company has not made investments in, and not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advancesinthe nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, clause 3 (iii)(a) to (f) of the
orderis notapplicable to the Company;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans, making investment and providing guarantee
and securities, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year.
The Company does not have any unclaimed deposits and therefore the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act, are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section148(1) of the Act for
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Vii.

viii.

xi.

the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the

Company.

Statutory Dues

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the

Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income-tax, employees' state insurance, goods and service tax, duty of customs and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident
fund, income-tax, employees' state insurance, goods and service tax, duty of customs and other material statutory
dueswereinarrears as atMarch 31,2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. Accordingtotheinformation and explanations givento us, there are no dues of duty of customs, goods and service tax

and Income tax which have notbeen deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

There were no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts and have been surrendered or

disclosed asincome during the year in the tax assessments under the Income tax Act,1961 (43 of 1961).

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

()

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(ix)(a) of the Orderis notapplicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
orgovernmentauthority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not obtained any
termloans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Orderis not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the
Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-term basis by the Company. Accordingly, clause
3(ix)(d) of the Orderis not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements
of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of
the Orderis not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Orderis not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
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xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

Xviii.

XiX.

officers oremployees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) Noreportundersub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 is required to be filed by the auditors in
Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rules, 2014 with the central government during the year and upto the date of this
report.

(c) Basedonourenquires and according to the information and explanation given by the management, we have been
informed that no whistle blower complaint has been received during the year

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
detail transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in the Standalone financial statements as required by
applicable Indian Accounting Standard.

(a) Basedoninformation and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company has
aninternal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in
Section 192 of the Act.

(@) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the orderis not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the orderis not applicable.

(c) The Company is nota Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined by Reserve Bank Of India. Accordingly, clause
3 (xvi)(c) of the orderis notapplicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the group does not have
any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are notapplicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has notincurred cash losses in the financial year
andinthe immediately precedingfinancial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the
orderis notapplicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and based on our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet and as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We however, state that this is notan assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts upto the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due with a period of one year from the
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Balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. In Our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub
section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the order are not
applicable.

For Borkar & Muzumdar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 101569W

Sd/-
Deepak Kumar Jain
Partner
Date: May 26, 2023 (M.No. 154390)
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 23154390BGXYMI7952
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ANNEXURE “B”TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of ABM KNOWLEDGEWARE LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to the aforesaid Standalone
Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ABM KNOWLEDGEWARE LIMITED (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for
the yearended onthat date.

Management and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
onthe Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
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assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assetsthat could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Borkar & Muzumdar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 101569W

Sd/-
Deepak Kumar Jain
Partner
Date: May 26, 2023 (M.No. 154390)
Place: Mumbai UDIN: 23154390BGXYMI7952
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Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023

( In T Lakh)
] As at As at
Particulars Note  y1arch 31,2023 March 31 2022
Assets
1. Non-Current Assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 2.08 4,292.13 4,396.54
b) Capital work-in-progress 2.08 - -
c) Intangible assets 2.03 5.57 9.60
d) Financial assets
i) Investments 2.04 2,074.06 835.37
ii) Trade receivables 2.05 332.02 224.93
iii) Loans 2.06 155.51 141.37
iv) Others financial asset 2.07 350.03 372.82
e) Income tax asset (net) 273.77 131.33
f) Other non-current assets 2.08 20.99 16.60
Total non-current assets 7,504.08 6,128.55
2. Current assets
a) Financial assets
i) Investments 2.09 8,487.14 7,887.84
i) Trade receivables 2.10 3,478.17 3,831.08
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 2.1 660.00 2,003.39
iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 212 879.83 702.19
v) Loans 2.13 8.89 21.06
vi) Others financial assets 2.14 1,460.62 1,053.29
b) Current tax assets (Net) 215 23.40 208.20
c) Other current assets 2.16 1,462.94 1,571.05
Total current assets 16,460.99 17,278.09
Total Assets 23,965.07 23,406.64
Equity and Liabilities
1. Equity
a) Equity share capital 217 1,024.15 1,024.15
b) Other equity 2.18 19,965.75 18,920.78
Total equity 20,989.90 19,944.93
2. Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2.19 669.51 687.96
b) Other non-current liabilities 2.20 22.27 22.27
Total non-current liabilities 691.78 710.23
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Trade payables 2.21
a) Trade payables- outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 15.95 10.52
b) Trade payables- outstanding dues to other than micro and small enterprises 443.02 813.46
ii) Other financial liabilities 2.92 306.31 821.82
b) Other current liabilities 293 1,518.11 1,105.69
Total current liabilities 2,283.39 2,751.49
Total Equity and Liabilities 23,965.07 23,406.64

Notes 1.1 to 2.41 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Borkar & Muzumdar
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:101569W
Deepak Kumar Jain

Partner

Membership No.: 154390
Mumbai

May 26, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Prakash B. Rane - Managing Director
(DIN : 00152393)

Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar - Director
(DIN : 00108866)

Sarika A. Ghanekar - Company Secretary
Paresh M. Golatkar - Chief Financial Officer
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

( In ¥ Lakh)
Particul Not Year ended Year ended
articuars ote March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1. Income
a) Revenue From Operations 2.24 6,564.72 8,358.76
b) Other Income 2.25 493.91 397.24
Total Income 7,058.63 8,755.99
2. Expenses:
a) Operating expense 1,193.79 2,985.57
b) Employee benefits expense 2.26 3,186.86 2,973.17
c¢) Finance costs 2.27 26.32 34.88
d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.28 123.14 117.57
e) Rent expenses 53.18 46.53
f) Travelling and conveyance expenses 102.23 45.86
g) Other expenses 2.29 700.19 608.94
Total Expenses 5,385.70 6,812.53
3. Profit before exceptional items and tax (1-2) 1,672.93 1,943.46
4. Exceptional Item - -
5. Profit before tax (3-4) 1,672.93 1,943.46
6. Tax expense 2.30
a) Current tax 403.30 472.66
b) Deferred tax (18.46) (13.99)
384.84 458.67
7. Profit for the year from continuing operations (5-6) 1,288.09 1,484.79
8. Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Measurements of defined employee benefit plans 2.33 6.93 (18.18)
Income tax effect on the above 2.30 - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) net of Tax 6.93 (18.18)
9. Total comprehensive income for the year (7+8) 1,295.02 1,466.61
10. Earnings per equity share of ¥ 5 each
a) Basic (%) 2.32 6.47 7.33
b) Diluted }) 2.32 6.47 7.33
Notes 1.1 to 2.41 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Borkar & Muzumdar Prakash B. Rane - Managing Director
Chartered Accountants (DIN : 00152393)
Firm Registration No.:101569W Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar - Director
Deepak Kumar Jain (DlN - 001 08866)
Partner i
Membership No.: 154390 Sarika A. Ghanekar - Company Secretary
Mumbai Paresh M. Golatkar - Chief Financial Officer
May 26, 2023
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Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
A. Equity Share Capital (Refer Note No. 2.17)

(In % Lakh)

Balance as at Changes in equity Restated |Changes in equity Balance as at
Particulars April 01. 2021 share capital due to| balance as at share capital March 31. 2022
P ’ prior period errors | April 01,2021 | during the year ’
Equity Share Capital 1,024.15 - 1,024.15 - 1,024.15
( In T Lakh)
Changes in equity Restated |Changes in equity
Particulars ‘B\alr?ln:f Zgzazt share capital due to| balance as at share capital MB::::;e: 32502;
P ’ prior period errors | April 01,2022 | during the year ’
Equity Share Capital 1,024.15 - 1,024.15 - 1,024.15
B. Other Equity (Refer Note No. 2.18) (In % Lakh)
Other Equity
Reserve and Surplus Items of OCI Total
Particulars General Retained | Equity intrument|Other items
Reserve Earnings through OCI of OCI
As at April 01, 2021 308.05 | 17,350.79 0.33 45.03 17,704.19
Profit/(loss) for the year - 1,484.79 - - 1,484.79
Other comprehensive income / (losses) - - - (18.18) (18.18)
Dividend Paid during the year - - - -
- (250.03) - (250.03)
Balance as on March 31, 2022 308.05 | 18,585.55 0.33 26.85 18,920.78
As at April 01, 2022 308.05 | 18,585.55 0.33 26.85 18,920.78
Profit/(loss) for the year - 1,288.09 - - 1,288.09
Measurements of defined employee - - - 6.93 6.93
benefit plans (net of tax)
Dividend Paid during the year - (250.03) - - (250.03)
Balance as on March 31, 2023 308.05 | 19,623.61 0.33 26.85 19,965.75

Pursuant to the requirements of Division Il to Schedule lII, below is the nature and purpose of each reserve:

General Reserve:- The Company created a General reserve in earlier years pursuant to the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 wherein certain percentage of profits were required to be transferred to General Reserve before declaring
dividends. As per Companies Act 2013, the requirements to transfer profits to General Reserve is not mandatory. This
represents a free reserve and is available for dividend distributions.

Retained Earnings:- Retained earnings comprises of prior and current year’s undistributed earnings after tax.

As per our report of even date

For Borkar & Muzumdar
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:101569W
Deepak Kumar Jain

Partner

Membership No.: 154390
Mumbai

May 26, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Prakash B. Rane - Managing Director
(DIN : 00152393)

Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar - Director
(DIN : 00108866)

Sarika A. Ghanekar - Company Secretary
Paresh M. Golatkar - Chief Financial Officer
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(In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash flow from operating activities

Profit Before Tax 1,672.93 1,943.46

Non-cash Adjustment to Profit Before Tax:
Depreciation and amortization expense 123.14 117.57
Interest income (74.15) (85.55)
Interest Income on Preference shares accounted at FVTPL (14.14) (13.87)
Loss/(Profit) on sale of asset 0.16 (4.00)
Impairment expense of Trade receivable 100.00 74.00
Impairment on non current/current assets 28.00 6.00
Liability written back - (1.84)
Gain on investment - (0.01)
Fair valuation loss on preference shares 25.47 27.59
Change in fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (380.14) (291.62)
Dividend income (0.41) (0.83)
Finance costs 26.32 34.88
1,507.17 1,805.79

Change in operating assets and liabilities :
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 140.67 (1,739.35)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (365.01) (524.08)
Decrease/(increase) in loans & other financial assets (Non Current) (10.03) (264.14)
Decrease/(increase) in loans & other financial assets (Current) (395.16) (15.90)
Decrease/(increase) in other bank balance (96.43) 1,193.52
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets 2.54 33.98
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets 108.11 (296.91)
Increase/(decrease) in other financial Liability (515.51) 530.37
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 412.42 172.84
Increase/(decrease) in other non-current liabilities - -
Cash generated from operations 788.75 896.12
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (445.58) (493.14)
Prior Period Adjustment - -
Net cash flow generated /(used in) operating activities (A) 343.17 402.98

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchases of Property plant equipment (14.93) (149.81)
Payments for purchase of investments (6,099.88) (6,386.77)
Proceed from sale of Property plant equipment 0.07 22.50
Proceeds from sale of investments 5,880.72 5,130.82
Gain on investment - 0.01
Investment (1,250.76) -
Interest received 74.15 5.92
Dividends received 0.41 -
Net cash flow generated / (used in) investing activities (B) (1,410.21) (1,377.34)

Eon)
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

(In ¥ Lakh)
Particul Year ended Year ended
articutars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance Cost (26.32) (34.88)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders (250.03) (250.03)
Net cash flow generated/(used in) in financing activities (C) (276.35) (284.91)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1,343.39) (1,259.27)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,003.39 3,262.66
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 660.00 2,003.39
Cash and cash equivalents as per financial statements
Balance with Bank 208.57 1,231.25
Cash on hand 4.79 3.14
Cheques in hand 446.64 769.00
Total 660.00 2,003.39
Notes 1.1 to 2.41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
*The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under Indirect Method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS)- 7, "Statement of Cash Flows".
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Borkar & Muzumdar Prakash B. Rane - Managing Director
Chartered Accountants . (DIN : 00152393)
Firm Registration No.:101569W Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar - Director
Deepak Kumar Jain (DIN : 00108866)
Partner Sarika A. Ghanekar - Company Secretary
Membership No.: 154390
Mumbai Paresh M. Golatkar - Chief Financial Officer
May 26, 2023
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1.01

2.01

b)

2.02

a)

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as at and
for the year ended March 31, 2023

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
COMPANY BACKGROUND:
ABM Knowledgeware Limited (the ‘Company”) is a Public Limited Company incorporated in India under the Companies Act,
1956. The registered office of the Company is located at ABM House, Bandra West, Mumbai, India. The company has its

primary listing on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company is one of the few information technology (IT) services
companies with exclusive focus on e-governance since 1998.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company (also called standalone financial
statements) prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other
relevant provision of the Act. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements.

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS.

These standalone financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the
accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been applied
consistently over all the periods presented in these standalone financial statements.

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities on the date of the standalone financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses for the year reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are
revised, and future periods are affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty as at the date of standalone financial statements, which may cause a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of the following:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Current vs non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An assetis treated as currentwhenitis:

e Expectedtobe realized orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

e Heldprimarily for purpose of trading.

(A20)
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e Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Aliability is treated as current whenitis:
e |tisexpectedto settle in the normal operating cycle.
e ltisdueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting date.
e Thereis nounconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
Advance tax paid is classified as non-current assets.
b. Revenue

The Company derives its revenues primarily from software development, Software implementation, maintenance of
software/ hardware and related services, business process services, Sale of IT and other products.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services. The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

Goods and Service tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on service
rendered by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is initially included and subsequently gets excluded from
the gross revenue.

Revenues from software services & projects comprise income from time-and-material and fixed price contracts.

Revenue from time and material contracts is recognized when the services are rendered in accordance with the terms of
contracts with clients. Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method (POC
method), calculated as the proportion of the cost of effort incurred up to the reporting date to estimated cost of total effort.
The Company uses judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the
degree of completion of the performance obligation.

Maintenance revenue is recognized ratable over the period of underlying maintenance agreements.
Revenue from sale of services is shown as net of applicable discounts and pricing incentives to customer.

Revenues from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of significant risks and rewards where it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Company and there is neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective control over the goods
sold.

In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received.

PPN
18D



ABMY

30" ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Accrued revenues are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Accrued revenues are
classified as accruals - receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and
only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned revenue is recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues.The billing schedules agreed with customers
could include periodic performance-based payments and/or milestone-based progress payments. Advances received for
services are reported as liabilities until all conditions for revenue recognition are met.

Interestincome is recognized as it accrues in the Statement of Profit and Loss using effective interest rate method.

Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive the dividend is established,
itis probable that the economic benefit associated with the Dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend
can be reliably measure

c. Property,Plantand Equipment
Measurement and recognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately, if the part
has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining item.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including import duties and other non-
refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition
criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under
relevant heads of property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Costs in nature of repairs and
maintenance are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

Capital work in progress and Capital advances:

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. Advances
given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as Other Non-Current
Assets.

Depreciation:

Depreciation on each part of an item of property, plant and equipment is provided using the Straight-Line Method based on
the useful life of the asset as estimated by the management and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as per the
requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The estimate of the useful life of the assets has been assessed
based on technical advice which considers the nature of the asset, the usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear,
the operating conditions of the asset etc. The estimated useful life of items of property, plant and equipment is mentioned
below:

({250
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(InYears)
Assets Useful life as per | Useful life estimated
Companies Act, 2013 | by the management

Buildings (Other than factory buildings) 60 30-68
Plant and Equipment 15 05
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10
Office Equipment 5 5
Vehicles 8 8
Computer Equipment 3 3/6
Lease hold improvements Not applicable As per the lease term
Purchased Software/ Internally developed for self-consumption As per Ind AS 38
Internally developed Software for sale As per Ind AS 38

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land and Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease.
The Company, based on the historical experience & internal technical assessment and management estimate, depreciates
certain items of property plant and equipment (as mentioned above) over estimated useful lives which are different from the
useful lives prescribed under Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013.The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The useful lives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment and the depreciation methods are
reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

All assets Costing up to¥ 5000/- are expensed out in the year of purchase/use.
Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized.

Intangible Assets
Measurement at recognition:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets arising on acquisition of
business are measured at fair value as at date of acquisition. Internally generated intangibles including research cost are not
capitalized and the related expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the
expenditure isincurred.

Amortization:

Intangible Assets with finite lives are amortized on a Straight-Line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The estimated
useful life of intangible assets is mentioned below:

Assets Life
Software 1 -8 years

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with finite useful life is reviewed at the end of
each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in
an accounting estimate.

(23
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Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognized in the Statement of
Profitand Loss when the asset is derecognized.

d. Impairmentof Assets:

Carrying Amount of Tangible assets, Intangible assets, Investment in Subsidiaries (which are carried at the cost) are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amountis the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or company’s assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

e. Leases:

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a
lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Company as alessee

A contractis, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether:

- the contractinvolves the use of an identified asset;

- the Company has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of
use;and

- the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices of the lease components and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease
commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial

P
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measurement of the lease liability, adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs such as commissions incurred and an estimate of the costs to be
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on whichiitis
located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if
any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line
method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful
lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets
are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment
loss, if any, is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental
borrowing rate applicable to the entity within the Company. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as
the discount rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt
either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The
lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a
purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of
the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in standalone statement of profit
andloss.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of all assets that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as alessor

When the Company acts as a lessor at the inception, it determines whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant
periodic rate of return on the lessor’s netinvestment in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for
its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short -
term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.

If an arrangement contains a lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115-Revenue to allocate the
consideration in the contract.

f. Borrowingcosts

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings
and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the

e
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takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

d. Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Initial Recognition and Measurement — Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to ordeducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets.

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss(“FVTPL’) on the basis of following:

— theentity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
— thecontractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Amortized Cost:
Afinancial asset s classified and measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collectcontractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

FVTOCI:
Afinancial asset is classified and measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

- thefinancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractualcash flows
and selling financial assets;and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

FVTPL:
Afinancial asset s classified and measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at cost or at FVTOCI.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value,depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

G
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h. Impairment of Financial Assets:

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its assets carried atamortized
cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significantincrease incredit risk.

The Company determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition,
an amount of reasonable provision is measured and recognized as loss of allowance on the basis of historical experience
and internal technical analysis.

Classification and Subsequent measurement: Financial Liabilities

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans an borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated upon
initialrecognition as FVTPL.

Gains orlosses on financial liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Other Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortize dcost
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities:

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. If the Company enters into transactions
whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Afinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
i. Investmentin Subsidiaries:

A Subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by another entity. An investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has the
following; (i) Power over the investee, (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and (iii)
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

The Company’s investments in its Subsidiary and is accounted at cost.
j- Derivatives Financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company enters into derivative financial contracts in the nature of forward currency contracts with external parties to

(A7)
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hedge its foreign currency risks relating to foreign currency denominated financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.
The Company formally establishes a hedge relationship between such forward currency contracts (‘hedging instrument’)
and recognized financial liabilities (‘hedged item’) through a formal documentation at the inception of the hedge relationship
in line with the Company’s Risk Management objective and strategy. The hedge relationship so designated is accounted for
in accordance with the accounting principles prescribed for a fair value hedge under Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’.

Recognition and measurement of fair value hedge:

Hedging instrument is initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and is
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Gain or loss arising from changes in the fair value of hedging
instrument is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Hedging instrument is recognized as a financial asset in the
Balance Sheet if its fair value as at reporting date is positive as compared to carrying value and as a financial liability if its fair
value as at reporting date is negative as compared to carrying value. Hedged item (recognized financial liability) is initially
recognized at fair value on the date of entering into contractual obligation and is subsequently measured at amortized cost.
The hedging gain or loss on the hedged item is adjusted to the carrying value of the hedged item as per the effective interest
method and the corresponding effect is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition: On Derecognition of the hedged item, the unamortized fair value of the hedging instrument adjusted to the
hedged item, is recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

k. FairValue

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2— inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly orindirectly

Level 3— inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability Business

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of
each reporting period and discloses the same.

. Foreign Currency Translation
Initial Recognition:

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are recorded in the functional currency

)
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(i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency amount, the spot exchange rate between the functional currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions
settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date:

Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items that are
measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is measured.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
m. IncomeTaxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current tax and
deferredtax.

Currenttax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable tax laws.

Currenttax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting period for the amounts expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit under Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, in case of temporary
differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that
affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. Also, for temporary
differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary difference can be utilized. In case of temporary differences
that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not recognized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of part or all of such deferred tax assets
to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
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expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

n. Provisions and Contingencies

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the
amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognized as a finance cost.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured
reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

o. Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances,
demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less and other short term highly liquid
investments.

p. Gratuity and other post-employment benefits
a) Short-termobligations:

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and
Loss of the year in which the related services are rendered.

b) Post-employment obligations:
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
- Defined benefit plan such Gratuity and
- Define Contributions plans such as Provident Fund:

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation.

70N
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The netinterest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized at amount net of taxes in the period in which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive Income. They are
included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognized immediately in the Statement Profit and Loss as past service cost.

q. Defined contribution plans:

The Company contributes to Employee’s State Insurance Corporation, Provident Fund which are considered as defined
contribution plans. A contribution is made to Regional Provident Fund Commissioner for certain employees. In case of other
employees covered under the Provident Fund Trust of the Company, the management does not expect any material liability
on account of interest shortfall to be borne by the Company. The said contributions are charged to the Statement of Profitand
Loss.

r. Otherlong-term employee benefit obligations:

The liabilities for leave are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to
occur.

s. [Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the period by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The number of shares used in computing diluted
earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share, and also the
weighted average number of equity shares which could be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a
later date. The diluted potential equity shares have been arrived at, assuming that the proceeds receivable was based on
shares having been issued at the average market value of the outstanding shares. In computing dilutive earnings per share,
only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that would, if issued, either reduce future earnings per share or increase
loss per share, are included.

t. Cashdividend toequity holders of the Company

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is
authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a
liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration
by the Company's Board of Directors.
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u. Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which
are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

v. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

w. Recentaccounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements-

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.The
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial
statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors —

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is
no impact on its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes -This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is
no impact on its standalone financial statement.
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Note 2.04 Non-current investments (In % Lakh)
As at As at
Particulars Face March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Value No Amount | No | Amount

(I) Investment Unquoted
(a) Investment in Equity Instrument- measured at amortised cost
Instasafe Technologies Private Limited 10| 25,225 | 327.93 | 25,225 | 327.93
Scanit Technologies, Inc [Refer Note 2.31 (iv)] $0.001| 9,51,085 | 727.44 - -

(b) Investments in Share warrant - measured at amortised cost
Scanit Technologies, Inc [Refer Note 2.31 (iv)] $0.001| 5,94,428 | 523.32 - -

(c)Investments in preference shares-measured at a mortised cost
Compulsory Convertible preference shares of 170 71,259 | 360.82 | 71,259 | 386.29
Instasafe Technologies Private Limited

(d) Investment in Alternative Investment Fund (AIF) - measured at - -| 134.55 -| 121.15
Fair value through profit and loss

Total Non-current Investments 2,074.06 -| 835.37

Aggregate books value of Quoted Investments - -
Aggregate market value of investments designated at FVTOCI - -

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 2,074.06 835.37
Note 2.05 Trade Receivable (In % Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trade Receivables - Considered good and secured - -
Trade Receivables - Considered good and unsecured 332.02 224.93
Trade Receivables - Doubtful which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - -

Allowance for doubtful debts - -

Total trade receivables 332.02 224.93

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule- March 31, 2023

. Less than|6 months More than
Particulars 6 months| - 1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed - Considered Good 31.88 66.46 62.90 46.45 124.33 | 332.02
(ii) Undisputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed - Considered Good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total 31.88 66.46 62.90 46.45 124.33 | 332.02
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Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule- March 31, 2022

. Less than|6 months More than
Particulars 6 months| - 1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed - Considered Good 34.32 21.03 45.25 124.33 - | 224.93
(ii) Undisputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed - Considered Good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total 34.32 21.03 45.25 124.33 - 224.93
Note 2.06 Non-current Loans (In X Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Loan to related party
Loan - Considered good and secured

Loan - Considered good and unsecured 155.51 141.37
Loan which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Loan considered credit impaired - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss) - -
Total non-current Loans 155.51 141.37
Note 2.07 Other non-current financial asset (In X Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Security / margin deposit 39.32 43.42
(ii) Deposits with bank

- with maturity period of more than 12 months * 310.71 329.40

Total other non current financial assets 350.03 372.82

** Amount held as margin money or security against Bank Guarantee ¥309.47 Lakh and Previous year ¥328.22 Lakh.

Note 2.08 Other non-current assets

(In ¥ Lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(i) Capital Advance
(ii) Advances other than capital advance
(a)Advances to other parties
Unsecured, considered good

105.00

Unsecured, considered doubtful 105.00

Less: Provision for doubtful advance (105.00) (105.00)

(iii) Others - -
Employee benefit assets 13.32 15.69
Prepaid expenses 7.67 0.91

20.99 16.60

Total other non-current assets 20.99 16.60

o
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Note 2.09 Current investment (In X Lakh)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(i) Investment Quoted
(a) Investment in equity instruments-measured at Fair value through 38.47 40.89

profit and loss

(b) Investments in Debentures - carried at Fair value through profit and loss 100.00 101.08
(c) Investment in Mutual Funds - carried at Fair value through profit and loss 8,348.67 7,745.87
Total current investment 8,487.14 7,887.84
Aggregate books value of Quoted Investments 8,487.14 7,887.84
Aggregate market value of investments designated at FVTPL 8,487.14 7,887.84

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments - -

Note 2.10 Trade Receivable ( In ¥ Lakh)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trade receivable
Trade Receivables - Considered good and secured -
Trade Receivables - Considered good and unsecured 2,743.77 3,281.97

Trade Receivables - Doubtful which have significant increase in Credit Risk 1,029.04 748.90
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - -
Allowance for doubtful debts (294.64) (199.79)
Total 3,478.17 3,831.08
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule- March 31, 2023
. Less than| 6 months More than
Particulars 6 months| - 1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed - Considered Good 1,454.73 | 507.31 779.11 2.62 T | 2,743.77
(ii) Undisputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - |1,000.12 1,000.12
(iii) Undisputed - Credit Impaired - - - - ) -
(iv) Disputed - Considered Good - - - - ) -
(v) Disputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - 28.92 28.92
(vi) Disputed - Credit Impaired
Total 1,454.73 | 507.31 779.11 2.62 |1,029.04 | 3,772.81
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule- March 31, 2022
. Less than|6 months More than
Particulars 6 months | - 1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed - Considered Good 2,383.78 | 569.60 246.44 82.14 - | 3,281.97
(i) Undisputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - 748.90 748.90
(iii) Undisputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed - Considered Good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed - Significant increase in Credit Risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Total 2,383.78 | 569.60 246.44 82.14 748.90 | 4,030.87
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Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

(In % Lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(i) Balances with banks

(a) In current accounts # 208.57 1,231.25

(i) Cheques in hand
(iif) Cash in hand 446.64 769.00
4.79 3.14
Total cash and cash equivalents 660.00 2,003.39

# The current accounts are in form of cash credit which are payable on demand and are secured by:-

(a) Hypothecation of book debts of the company.
(b) Collateral:

i) EMT of Office premises at Swastik Chambers, Office No.514 and 515, 5" floor, Umarshi Bappa Chowk, Chembur,

Mumbai - 400071 standing in the name of the company.

ii)  EMT of Office Premises at Prabhadevi Unique Industrial Premises Co-op Society Ltd, Unit No.5, Ground Floor,

Off Veer Savarkar Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400025 standing in the name of the company.

iii) EMT of Office Premises at ABM House, Unit No. 801, Eighth Floor, Plot no. 268, Linking Road, Bandra West,
Mumbai-400050 standing in the name of the company.

iv)  Three Fixed deposits in Canara Bank of Mr. Prakash B. Rane amounting to ¥ 3.13 Lakh hypothecated to the bank.

v) 5 KDR's having face value of ¥ 2.60 lakh in the personal names of directors Mr. Prakash B. Rane

vi)  Personal Guarantee from director — Mr. Prakash B. Rane

vii) Company has cash credit facility from banks on the basis of security of current assets:- Quarterly returns or

Note 2.12 Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

(In % Lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(i) Earmarked balances in unclaimed dividend account 66.30 49.83
(i) Fixed Deposits with maturity period of more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 813.53 652.36
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 879.83 702.19
* Amount held as margin money or security against Bank Guarantee.
Note 2.13 Current Loans ( In T Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Advances to employees

Unsecured, considered good 8.13 3.90
8.13 3.90

(ii) Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good 0.76 17.16
0.76 17.16
Total current loans 8.89 21.06
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Note 2.14 Others financial assets (In X Lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) Security deposits 83.69 67.50
Unsecured, considered good 16.38 16.38
Significant increase in credit risk 100.07 83.88
(16.38) (16.38)
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits 83.69 67.50
(ii) Accruals - receivables 1,376.93 985.79
Total others financial assets 1,460.62 1,053.29
Note 2.15 Current tax assets (Net) (In X Lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tax paid 23.40 1,325.33
Less: tax provision - (1,117.12)
Total current tax assets 23.40 208.20
Note 2.16 Other current assets (In % Lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) Advance to vendors 28.62 28.09
(ii) Others
(a) Prepaid Expenses 72.52 39.19
(b) Project under process (WIP)
Unsecured, considered good 1,233.29 1,400.34
Unsecured, considered doubtful 106.14 81.14
Less: Provision for doubtful WIP (106.14) (81.14)
1,233.29 1,400.34
(c) Balances with statutory / revenue authorities
- Goods & Service Tax 128.43 101.51
(d) Others 0.08 1.91
Total other current assets 1,462.94 1,571.05

Amounts in Lakh, except for per equity share data and number of shares are stated in absolute figures.
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Note 2.17 Equity share capital (In X Lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised Share Capital

Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each at par with voting rights 2,50,00,000 | 1,250.00 | 2,50,00,000 | 1,250.00
Issued

Equity Shares of X 5/- each at par with voting rights 2,07,00,000 | 1,035.00 |2,07,00,000| 1,035.00
Subscribed & Fully Paid up

Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each at par with voting rights 2,00,02,200 | 1,000.11 | 2,00,02,200| 1,000.11
Subscribed but not fully Paid up - - - -
Forfeited Shares (amount originally partly paid-up)

Equity Shares of X 5/- each at par with voting rights 6,97,800 24.04 6,97,800 24.04

Total 2,07,00,000 | 1,024.15 | 2,07,00,000 | 1,024.15

Note 2.17(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at
the March 31, 2023 and as at March 31, 2022 as set out below.

. As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Equity shares
No. of shares | Amount | No. of shares | Amount
At the beginning of the year 2,07,00,000 |1,024.15| 2,07,00,000 |1,024.15
Add:- Issued during the year - - - -
Less:- Forfeited during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,07,00,000 |1,024.15| 2,07,00,000 |1,024.15

Note 2.17 (ii) Details of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Name of Shareholder No. of shares % of No. of shares % of
Holding Holding

Prakash Baburao Rane 95,42,300 47.71 95,42,300 47.71
Supriya Prakash Rane 24,54,000 12.27 24,54,000 12.27

Lipsita Projects & Services Private Limited 13,81,500 6.91 13,81,500 6.91

Total 1,33,77,800 66.89 1,33,77,800 66.89

Note 2.17(iii) Details of shareholding of Promoters
Shares held by promoters As at March 31, 2023
Promoter name No. of % of % Change during
Shares total shares the year

Prakash Baburao Rane 95,42,300 47.71 -

Supriya Prakash Rane 24,54,000 12.27 -

Lipsita Projects & Services Private Limited 13,81,500 6.91 -

Baburao Bhikunaik Rane 5,000 0.03 =

Sunita Baburao Rane 2.500 0.01 -

Sharada Rane 1,629 0.01 -
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Shares held by promoters As at March 31, 2022
Promoter nam No. of % of % Change during
omoter name Shares total shares the year

Prakash Baburao Rane 95,42,300 47.71 -
Supriya Prakash Rane 24,54,000 12.27 -
Lipsita Projects & Services Private Limited 13,81,500 6.91 -
Baburao Bhikunaik Rane 5,000 0.03 -
Sunita Baburao Rane 2500 0.01 -
Sharada Rane 1’629 0.01 -

Note 2.17 (iv) Details of Shares forfeited

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Name of Shareholder No. of shares | Amount | No. of shares | Amount
paid up paid up

Equity Shares with voting rights 6,97,800 24.04 6,97,800 24.04
Total 6,97,800 24.04 6,97,800 24.04

Note 2.17 (v) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has a only one class of share referred as Equity shares having par value of ¥ 5 per share. Each Shareholder of equity
share is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company
after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to number of shares held.

Note 2.18 Other Equity (In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
General reserve 308.05 308.05
Retained earning 19,657.71 18,612.73
Total Other Equity 19,965.75 18,920.78
Note 2.19 Deferred tax liabilities (In % Lakh)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Deferred income tax asset
Deductible Expenditure

Provision for doubtful financial assets (103.96) (73.06)
Deferred income tax liability
Taxable temproary difference
Depreciation adjustment as per Books and Income Tax 773.47 761.01
Net Deferred Tax Liability 669.51 687.96
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Note 2.19(a) Movement in gross deferred tax liability/asset

(In ¥ Lakh)
. . Recognised in .
Particulars Opening Profit and Loss Closing Balance
2022-2023
Deferred Tax Liability/Asset in Relation to
Unabsorbed depreciation as per Income tax 761.01 12.46 773.47
Provision for doubtful financial assets (73.06) (30.90) (103.96)
Total 687.96 (18.46) 669.51
2021-2022
Deferred Tax Liability/Asset in Relation to
Unabsorbed depreciation as per Income tax 754.87 6.14 761.01
Provision for doubtful financial assets (52.90) (20.14) (73.06)
Total 701.97 (13.99) 687.96
Note 2.19(b) The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to
income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss (In % Lakh)
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Accounting Profit 1,672.93 1,943.46
Tax at the domestic rate of 25.17 % 421.04 489.13
Difference between Depreciation on Property Plant and equipment including (7.87) (10.80)
Intangibles as per books and Income taxes
Expenses provided but allowable in Income Tax on payment/write off(net)
Other than temporary differences (50.73) (34.67)
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 1.70 (0.54)
Income tax effect on OCI - -
Current tax on short term capital gain on sale of units of mutual fund 29.61 29.35
Current tax on long term capital gain on sale of units of mutual fund 9.56 0.19
Tax expense 403.30 472.66
Note 2.20 Other non-current liabilities (In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Provision for disputed liability 22.27 22.27
Total other non-current liabilities 22.27 22.27
Note 2.21 Trade payables (In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 15.95 10.52
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 443.02 813.46
Total Trade payables 458.97 823.98

®)
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Trade Paybale Ageing Schedule- March 31, 2023

Particulars
Less than 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than Total
1 Year 3 years
(i) MSME 12.97 0.67 1.17 1.14 15.95
(iiy Others 94.59 308.12 - 40.30 443.02
(iii) Disputed Dues MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others ) ) ) ) )
Total Trade payables 107.56 308.79 1.17 41.44 458.97
Trade Paybale Ageing Schedule- March 31, 2022
Particulars
Less than 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than Total
1 Year 3 years
(i) MSME 9.21 0.32 - 0.99 10.52
(ii) Others 773.16 - - 40.30 813.46
(iii) Disputed Dues MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others ) ) ) ) )
Total Trade payables 782.36 0.32 - 41.30 823.98
Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (MSMED Act): (In T Lakh)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

- Principal
- Interest\

accounting year.

(i) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the
MSMED Act along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

2.94
0.17

0.17

Note:

basis of information available with the Company . This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
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Note 2.22 Other financial liabilities

(In % Lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Salary payable 19.28 28.88
Unpaid Dividend 66.32 49.83
Outstanding expenses 220.71 743.11
Total Other financial liabilities 306.31 821.82

Note 2.23 Other current liabilities (In ¥ Lakh)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Statutory remittances 70.09 147.16
Unearned revenue 1,448.02 958.53
Advance from Customer - -
Total Other current liabilities 1,518.11 1,105.69
Note 2.24 Revenue from operations (In % Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Income from sale of products and Services 7,790.03 9,758.90
Less: GST recovered 1,225.31 1,400.14
Total Revenue from operation 6,564.72 8,358.76
Note 2.25 Other Incomes (In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Income related to financial assets

Interest on bank deposit 60.75 62.05
Interest on Investment 13.40 23.50
Dividend income 0.41 0.84
Interest Income on Preference shares accounted at FVTPL 14.14 13.87
Interest on income tax refund 23.83 -
Miscellaneous income 1.23 5.35
Other non - opearting income
Fair value of investment through Profit and Loss account (FVTPL) 380.14 291.62
Total other incomes 493.91 397.24

* Total Fair value gains include ¥ 84.81 Lakh (previous year: ¥ 56.83 Lakh) as ‘Net gain on sale of investments.

Note 2.26 Employee benefit expenses ( In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Salaries and wages 2,941.65 2,728.45
Contribution to provident and other funds 177.88 184.11
Staff welfare Expenses 67.32 60.61
3,186.86 2,973.17

Total employee benefit expenses
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Note 2.27 Finance cost

( In T Lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Other borrowing cost

Bank Limit charges 4.68 5.56
Interest Expenses 0.17 1.54
Bank Guarantee charges 21.47 27.78
Total finance cost 26.32 34.88
Note 2.28 Depreciation and amortisation expenses (In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 123.14 117.57
Total Depreciation and amortisation expenses 123.14 117.57
Note 2.29 (i) Other expenses (In X Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rates and taxes 27.81 29.38
Electricity charges 21.99 18.06
Legal and professional fees 192.07 125.16
Printing and stationery 6.17 6.45
Membership and subscription 7.58 9.99
Communication expenses 27.37 19.12
Advertising and business promotion expenses 36.15 35.29
Corporte social responsibility contributions 43.50 48.00
Bank charges 5.81 7.18
Provision for impairment 128.00 80.00
Insurance expenses 8.31 7.44
Other expenses 158.47 183.80
Total other expenses 663.22 569.85
Note 2.29 (ii) Payment to auditors (In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Auditors of the company
Service as statutory auditor (including limited review) 11.50 11.50
Total payment to auditors 11.50 11.50
Note 2.29 (iii) Net gains / losses on fair value changes (In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Net loss on fair value changes on other financial instrument classifie as FVTPL 25.47 27.59
Total 25.47 27.59

(e
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Note 2.30 Tax expenses

(In % Lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

(a) Income tax expenses :
Current tax

Current tax on profit for the year 401.60 473.20
Current tax expense pertaining to prior year 1.70 (0.54)
403.30 472.66
Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense for the current year (18.46) (13.99)
Total tax expense recognised in current year 384.84 458.67
(In % Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
(b) The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income
tax rate to income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 1,672.93 1,943.46
Profit from discontinuing operations before income tax expense - -
1,672.93 1,943.46
Tax at domestic tax rate (effective) - 25.17% 421.04 489.13
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 1.70 (0.54)
Current tax on short term capital gain on sale of units of mutual fund 29.61 29.35
Current tax on long term capital gain on sale of units of mutual fund 9.56 0.19
Difference between Depreciation on Property Plant and equipment including (7.87) (10.80)
Intangibles as per books and Income taxes
Expenses provided but allowable in Income Tax on payment/write-off(net) (50.73) (34.67)
Other than temporary differences
Income tax effect on OCI - -
Income tax expense 403.30 472.66
Note 2.31: Contingent Liabilities and commitments (to the extend not provided for): ( In ¥ Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(A) Contingent liabilties:

(a) Bank Gurantees [Refer Note 2.31 (i)] 3,091.88 2,719.16

(b) Service Taxes [Refer Note 2.31(ii)] 14.33 14.33

(B) Capital Commitments - -

(C) Investment in the shares of InstaSafe Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 400.00 400.00
[Refer note 2.31 (iii)]

(D) Investment in the shares of ScanIT [Refer Note 2.31 (iv)] 3,686.86 -

@)
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Note 2.31 (i)
The Cash creditand Bank Guarantee facility availed by the Company are payable on demand and are secured by:-

(a) Hypothecation of book debts of the company.

(b) Collateral:
i) EMT of Office premises at Swastik Chambers, Office No.514 and 515, 5" floor, Umarshi Bappa Chowk, Chembur,

Mumbai - 400071 Standing in the name of the company.

i) EMT of Office Premises at Prabhadevi Unique Industrial Premises Co-op Soc. Ltd,Unit No.5,Ground Floor,Off
Veer Savarkar Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400025 standing in the name of the company.

iii) EMT of Office Premises at ABM House, Unit No. 801, Eighth Floor, Plot no. 268, Linking Road, Bandra West,
Mumbai- 400050 standinginthe name of the company.

iv) Three fixed depositsin Canara bank of Mr. Prakash B. Rane amounting to ¥ 3.13 lakh hypothecated to the bank.
v) 5KDR's havingface value of¥2.60 lakh in the personal names of director Mr. Prakash B. Rane.
vi) Personal guarantee from director - Mr Prakash B. Rane.

Note 2.31 (ii)
The service taxamount shown of X 14.33 lakh pertains to the show cause notices received by the company for

i) Disallowances of cenvatcreditforthe F.Y.2014-15t02017-18,
i) Service Taxon"Employee Notice Pay Recovery amount",

iii) Common Cenvat Credit as per Rule 6(3A) of the Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 in proportionate to income from
Investmentin Mutual Fund and Sale of Motor Car.

The Company is in process of contesting or filing appeals in respect of the aforesaid disputed matters before the
authorities. The managementis hopeful that matters will be decided in favour of the company.

Note 2.31 (iii

Th(e g)ompany at a Board Meeting held on January 23, 2017 approved a strategic investment in InstaSafe Technologies
Private Limited ("Instasafe"). Instasafe Provides innovative cloud based security-as-a-service solutions. ABM has
executed definitive agreements including Share Purchase Agreement and Share Subscription & Shareholders'
Agreement. The transactions will be completed subject to satisfactory fulfillment of certain conditions precedent. The
aggregate investment would be upto INR 13.32 crore. As of March 31, 2023 the Company completed an aggregate
investment of ¥ 9.32 Cr in Instasafe Technologies Pvt Limited. Pursuant to the rights conferred on ABM under the
Shareholder's agreement and nomination of two Non-executive Directors on the Board of Directors of Instasafe, the said
Company has become a subsidiary of the company

Note 2.31 (iv)
The Company at a Board meeting held on September 30, 2022 has approved strategic investment in ScanlT. Company

has entered into definitive agreements for investment up to¥ 50 crores (approx.) for acquiring 52% shareholding in Scanit
Technologies, Inc (“ScanlT”), California, Silicon Valley, USA. ScanlT is developing a Solution to solve a critical unmet
need in agriculture by providing a way to physically detect airborne disease before infection enabling preventive action. In
accordance with the definitive agreements the indicative time period for completion of acquisition of approx. 52%
shareholding stake would be 24 months subject to the achievement of certain milestones. As of March 31, 2023,
Company hasinvested¥ 12.51 Cr.in ScanlT.

(1E
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Note 2.32 Earnings per share (EPS) (In X Lakh)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for Basic EPS 1,295.02 1,466.61
Add/Less: Adjustment relating to potential equity shares - -
Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for Diluted EPS 1,295.02 1,466.61
Weighted average no. of equity shares (in Lakh) outstanding during the year

For basic EPS 200.02 200.02
For diluted EPS 200.02 200.02
Face Value per Equity Share (3) 5.00 5.00
Basic EPS () 6.47 7.33
Diluted EPS (%) 6.47 7.33

Reconciliation between no. of shares (in Lakh) used for calculating
basic and diluted EPS

No. of shares used for calculating Basic EPS 200.02 200.02
Add: Potential equity shares - -
No. of shares used for calculating Diluted EPS 200.02 200.02

Note 2.33 Employee Benefits
A) Defined contribution plans
Provident fund:
The company operated defined benefits contribution retirement benefits plans for all qualifying employees.
The total expensse recognised in the statement of profit and loss of ¥123.06 Lakh (for the year ended March 31, 2022 :
¥ 137.96 Lakh) represents contributions paid to Provident fund by the Company at rates specified in rules of the plans.

)
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B) Defined Benefit plans:-
Movementin plan assets and Plan liabilities:-

(In X Lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Amount recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost

Finance cost/(income)

Past service cost

Total expense recognised in the Statement of profit /loss

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised for the period

Return on plan assets excluding net interest

Total actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Changes in present value of obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning

Interest cost

Current service cost

Past service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on present value of obligation
Present value of obligation at the end

Changes in present value of planned assets
Fair value at the beginning

Adjustment to opening fair value of plan asset
Return on plan assets

Interest income

Contributions

Benefits paid

Fair Value at the end of the year

Compostion of the plan assets is as follow
Gratuity Fund (LIC OF INDIA)

Actuarial assumptions
Financial assumptions
Discount rate
Salary Escalation
Expected return on plan assets
Attrition

Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate

48.35
(2.41)

45.94

(9.13)
2.20

(6.93)

194.34
12.01
48.35

(50.26)
(9.13)

195.31

210.03

(2.20)
14.43
36.64
(50.26)

208.64

100%

7.29%
4%
7.01%
2%

IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate

39.67
(2.93)

36.73

17.36
0.81
18.18

174.82
10.25
39.67

(47.76)
17.36

194.34

224.68
(34.04)
(0.81)
13.18
54.79
(47.76)

210.03

100%

7.10%
4%
7.59%
2%

IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate

®
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C) The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end March 31, 2023 as follows:

(In T Lakh)
Year As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
First year 6.93 5.17
Second year 43.56 7.08
Third year 4.73 42.96
Fourth year 5.48 5.39
Fifth year 6.11 6.02
Sixth to Ten year 61.02 63.75

Sensitivity analysis:

Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumption for determination of defined obligation and
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

(In T Lakh)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Discount rate increase by 100 basis Points 177.72 175.97
Discount rate decrease by 100 basis Points 216.17 216.07
Salary Escalation rate increase by 100 basis points 216.00 215.56
Salary Escalation rate decrease by 100 basis points 177.67 176.22

Note: 2.34 Related party disclosure
(A) Name of related parties and description of relationship

(i) Key Management Personnel (KMPs):
Mr. Prakash Baburao Rane, Managing Director
Mr. Paresh Golatkar, Chief Financial Officer
Mrs. Sarika Ghanekar, Company Secretary

(ii) Non-Executive Directors
Mrs. Supriya Prakash Rane
Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar
Mr. Sumit Dutta Chowdhary
Mr. Devendra Kamalakar Parulekar
Mr. Ashokkumar Vitthal Dugade
Mr. Punit Kumar Jain

(iii) Subsidiary
InstaSafe Technologies Private Limited

(iv) Fellow subsidiary

InstaSafe Inc. (wholly owned subsidiary of InstaSafe Technologies Private Limited)

(v) Enterprises over which Directors and Relatives of such personnel exercise significant influence:

Khaitan & Company LLP, Mumbai
Saffron Studios Private Limited
Lipsita Projects & Services Private Limited

&
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(B) Transactions with related parties

(In ¥ Lakh)
Nature of transactions As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Purchase of Goods/Services:

Khaitan & Company LLP 6.00 -

Saffron Studios Private Limited 0.53 -
Transaction with key management personnel

Remuneration 217.04 212.67

Other long term benefit 1.81 27.26
Dividend

Mr. Prakash Rane 119.28 119.28

Mrs. Supriya Rane 30.68 30.68

Lipsita Projects & Services Private Limited 17.27 17.27
Sitting Fees

Mrs. Supriya Rane 2.60 2.40

Mr. Sharadchandra Abhyankar 3.60 3.40

Mr. Sumit Dutta Chowdhary 2.40 2.60

Mr. Devendra Kamalakar Parulekar 2.20 2.80

Mr. Ashok Dugade 1.40 2.60

Mr. Punit Jain 1.40 1.20

Note 2.35 Capital management
Risk management
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

(i) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(i) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by
Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet, including non-controlling interests).

The Company's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio within 1:1. The gearing ratios were as follows :

(In X Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Net debt - -
Total equity 20,989.90 19,944.93
Net debt to equity ratio - -

)
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Note 2.36 Financial Instruments

(i) Mehtod and assumptions used to estimate the fair value

"The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either
observable orunobservable and consists of the following three levels:"

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities.
Level2: Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e.as prices) orindirectly (i.e.derived from prices).
Level 3: Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole orin
part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current
market transactions inthe same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

The cost of unquoted investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy approximate their fair value because there is a
wide range of possible fair value measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole.The fair value hierarchy is described as below:

March 31, 2023 (In X Lakh)
] Carrying Classification Fair Value
Particulars -
Value FVTPL |FVTOCI| Amortised Cost| Level 1| Level 2 | Level 3
Financial assets
Long Term Loans 155.51 - - 155.51
Trade Receivables 3,810.19 - - 3,810.19
Cash & Cash equivalents 660.00 - - 660.00
Other Bank Balances 879.83 - - 879.83
Short term Loans 8.89 - - 8.89
Other financial assets 1,810.65 - - 1,810.65
Investments 10,561.20 | 8,621.69 - 1,939.51 | 8,621.69
17,886.27 | 8,621.69 - 9,264.58 | 8,621.69 - -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - -
Trade payables 458.97 458.97
Other financial liabilities 306.31 306.31
765.28 - - 765.28 - - -
March 31, 2022 ( In ¥ Lakh)
. Carrying Classification Fair Value
Particulars -
Value FVTPL |FVTOCI| Amortised Cost| Level 1| Level 2 | Level 3
Financial assets
Long Term Loans 141.37 - - 141.37 - - -
Trade Receivables 4,056.01 - - 4,056.01 - - -
Cash & Cash equivalents 2,003.39 - - 2,003.39 - - -
Other Bank Balances 702.19 - - 702.19 - - -
Short term Loans 21.06 - - 21.06 - - -
Other financial assets 1,426.11 - - 1,426.11 - - -
Investments 8,723.20 | 8,008.98 - 714.22 [8,008.98 - -
17,073.33 | 8,008.98 - 9,064.35 |8,008.98 - -
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 823.98 - 823.98 - - -
Other financial liabilities 821.82 - 821.82 - - -
1,645.79 - 1,645.79 - - -

o)
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Financial Risk Management
The board of director has overall responsibility for the establishment & oversight of the company's risk management

framework. The Board of director has established a risk management policy to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management systems
are reviewed periodically to reflect changed market conditions and the company's activities. The audit committee oversees
how management monitors compliances with the company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
risk management framework. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Auditor
undertakes reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Note 2.37 Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, company is require to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the
immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility. The areas for CSR activities are eradication
of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment
sustainability, disaster relief, and rural developement projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per
the actandthe CSRfunds are usedin the areas mentioned above to some extent.

(In T Lakh)
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act for the year 43.30 47.77
Shortfall of previous year/s (if any) - -
Total amount required to be spent for the year 43.30 47.77
Amount spent during the year 43.50 48.00
Excess/(short) amount spent 0.20 0.23

Note 2.38
The Company's business activity falls within a single business segment i.e. software and services and hence no additional

disclosure other than those already made in the financial statements are required under Accounting Standard 108,
"Operating Segments". The Company at present, operates in India only and therefore analysis of geographical segment is
notapplicable.

Note 2.39
Balance of Sundry Creditors, Debtors, Loans & Advances and Deposits are subject to confirmation and reconciliation if any.

For the year, letters for confirmation of balances have been sent to various parties by the Company which have not been
responded to. The Management however, does not expect any material changes therein. The balances are as per records
available with the company.

Note 2.40 Additional Disclosure

Note 2.40(a) Relationship with Struck off Companies

Nature of transactions with Balance as at | gejationship with the
Name of struck off Company struck-off Company March 31,2023 | giryck off company,
(in ¥ Lakh)
Daman Investments And Securities (P) Ltd | Shares held by stuck off company 0.21 Shareholder

Note 2.40(b): Details of Benami Property held

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(Aaa)
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Note 2.40(c): Loans or Advances in the nature of loans

No Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined
under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.

Note 2.40(d) - Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

a. Thecompany has not advanced orinvested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other source or kind
of funds) to any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intremidiaries) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermidiary shall: (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entiities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any

guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

b. The company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding parties)
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, directly or indirectly lend or
investin other persons or entiities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (the ultimate
beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Note 2.40 (e) - Registration of Charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

The Company does not have any charge or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies

Note 2.40 (f) Significant Financial Ratio

from investments

invested fund

. . c Previ % of Reason
Ratio Numerator Denominator urrent revious Variancel ., for
Period Period ! Variance

(a) Current Ratio Total Current | Total Current 7.21 6.28 | 14.80%

Assets liabilities

Net Profits after Average
(b) Return on Equity Ratio (%) taxes - Preference|Shareholder’s 6.33% 7.58% -16.58%

Dividend (if any) Equity
. . Avg. Accounts
(c) Trade Receivables turnover ratio Revenue Receivable 1.98 3.03 -34.58% | Note 1

(d) Net capital turnover ratio Revenue Vggg‘l'tg? 0.46 058 | -19.53%
(e) Net profit ratio (%) Net Profit Revenue 19.62% 17.76% 10.46%

Capital

Employed =
Earning bef Tangible Net

(f) Return on Capital employed (%) |. arning belore fyyorth + Total 7.85% 9.59% -18.18%

interest and taxes Debt +

Deferred

Tax Liability

(g) Return on investment (%) Income generated|  Average 4.85% 427% | 13.73%

Note 1: Trade Receivables turnover ratio decreased on account of decrease in sales & increase in average receivables.

There is nosignificantchange (i.e.change of 25% or more as compared to the FY 2021-22) in the other key financial ratios.

TR
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Note2.41 Previousyear'sfigures
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognised accounting practices and
polices to the extent applicable. The previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Borkar & Muzumdar - Prakash B. Rane - Managing Director
Chartered Accountants (DIN : 00152393)

Firm Registration No.:101569W Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar - Director
Deepak Kumar Jain (DIN - 001 08866)

Partner .

Membership No.: 154390 Sarika A. Ghanekar - Company Secretary
Mumbai Paresh M. Golatkar - Chief Financial Officer
May 26, 2023
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FORM NO. AOC.1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiary
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiary/associate companies/Joint ventures

Part "A": Subsidiary

( In T Lakh)
Name of the subsidiary
fl:;- Particulars TEI(':\lI-?I.\lrgigngS INSTASAFE INC.
PRIVATE LIMITED

1 | Date when Subsidiary was acquired / incorporated 12.05.2017 23.08.2018

2 | Reporting currency INR UsSD

3 | Share capital 12.12 1.75

4 | Reserves & surplus 336.64 (7.06)

5 | Total assets 1,037.17 302.53

6 | Total Liabilities 688.41 307.84

7 | Investments 7.13 -

8 | Turnover 1,160.16 855.04

9 | Profit/(Loss) before taxation 147.85 30.68
10 | Provision for taxation 8.20 3.65
11 | Profit (Loss) after taxation 139.66 27.03
12 | Other Comprehensive Income 3.51 (7.46)
13 | Total Comprehensive income 143.17 19.58
14 | Proposed Dividend - -
15 | % of shareholding 20.82% 100.00%

Notes : There is no associate companies &joint venturs. Hence PartBis notapplicable.

Prakash B. Rane
Managing Director
(DIN: 00152393)

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sarika A. Ghanekar
Company Secretary

Sharadchandra D. Abhyankar
Director

(DIN: 00108866)

Paresh M. Golatkar
Chief Financial Officer
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Achievements, Awards & Recognitions 2022-23

1. Prakash B.Rane, Founder and Managing Director of the Company, joined a delegation
of entrepreneurs to meet Maharashtra Governor, Hon'ble Shri Bhagat Singh Koshyari,
discussing the role of e-governance in achieving a $5 Trillion economy by 2025, with
positive acknowledgement from the Governor.

2. ABM's successful implementation of the State Urban Development Agency (SUDA)
project in Chhattisgarh, covering all 169 Urban Local Bodies (ULBs), has received
appreciation from the World Bank.

3. ABM received a Letter of Appreciation from the Former Deputy CM Office,
Government of Maharashtra, for the development & implementation of ‘The Budget
Speech Tracking Web Application’

4. ABM secured a work order from the Department of IT, Govt. of Himachal Pradesh for
implementing a fully automated online building plan approval system across 61 Urban
Local Bodiesin the state.

5. ABM secured a new order from SFAC (Small Farmers Agri-Business Consortium) to
design and develop an Integrated MIS Portal for the formation and promotion of
10,000 Farmer Producer Organizations (FPOs) in the Agriculture Industry,
encompassing a website, web platform, and mobile app.

6. ABM strengthened its presence in Haryana with a state-wide order from the Town &
Country Planning Department (TCP). The order involves software development
services and encompasses all Municipal Bodies and Town and Country Planning
authoritiesin Haryana.

7. Prakash B. Rane, Founder & Managing Director, ABM shared his view on '"How ABM is
Helping Government Make India Digital' in Fortune India Exchange.
https://abmindia.com/uploads/milestone_pdf/MDFortuneApril.pdf

8. ABM secured a new order for providing SAP Techno Functional Support to a large
Public Sector Undertakingsin the Coal Sector.
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Industry Consultation with the ABM has become CMMI-SVC Level 3 certified

Hon’ble Governor of Maharashtra

This is to affirm that

ABM Knowledgeware Ltd.

Organizational Unit: Operations and Maintenance projects

has been appraised at

Maturity Level 3

of the Capability Maturity Model Integration Version 2.0 for Services view

Based on CMMI Apprassal Method Definition Document Developed by ISAGA
Appraisal Number 63158
Benchmark Appraisal Phase 2 dates — 23 Jan 2023 10 30% Jan 2023

q.;ﬂ.ul‘ufyc.uc
Mangesh Katalkar

High Maturity Lead Appraiser

Issued on — 28" February 2023, Appraisal Expiration Date — 30% January 2026 Please refer appraisal disclosure statement for
details.

o gt e ks ISACA

WORLD BANK applauded ABM's . o q . .
work for SUDA Project, Chhattisgarh Prayagraj Municipal Corporation services

State Urban Development Agency (SUDA), will now be JUSt a click i thrOUgh
Chhattisgarh is one of the 8 state-wide projects of a Mobile App which is being developed by ABM

ABM which is running successfully and has gained

much appreciation for work done across all 169 |
ULBs by ABM. Recently, one of them has been IR IS amarujala com RO | TR, 19 2012 u
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The World Bank made a recent visit to SUDA office e ) 9 1 e o o b p e W N T PRER W o, T R

and appreciated the work done by the ABM team. :&:m?‘"mmmm foey o) g g e, s 3, Lo fm o 0 v A v

They also deep-dived into the Accounts module : o e b E R W AR f e R e a
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and were happy with the project work and gave o 3 [ s
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good feedback.
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‘ ABM participated in Drone Expo 2022, Rajasthan - June ABM as a Silver Partner during Technology

. ﬁ 7 Sabha Event, 25th - 27th Aug, Kolkata

S
=A% iSTART

CERTIFICATE

of participation is presented to

Adoption of emerging technologies"

ABM  KNDWALEDGEWARE  LWITED in E-governance

-
in recognition of participation in %
it S
ool

i \ > By: ABM Knowledgeware Ltd.

RAJASERTIAN gy
DREONE =

EXPO 2022

[ ___1sJune 2022 ]

TECHNO HUR, JAIPUR

organized by the Department of Information Technology & Communication

Government of Rajasthan
16 June, 2022 C;r?fj:/

ABM Knowledgeware Limited:
ABM House, Plot No. 268, Linking Road, Bandra (West), Mumbai - 400 050. Website: www.abmindia.com
CMMI V2.0 DEV Level 5 | CMMI V2.0 SVC Level 3 | 1ISO 20000-1:2018 | 1SO 9001:2015 | 1SO 27001:2013 Compliant Software & Services Company
FOLLOW US ON
m @abmknowledgewareltd n @ABMindia1998 ﬁ @abmindia r@ @abmknowledgeware u @ABMKnowledgewareltd @ egovernance@abmindia.com
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